
 
 

 
Restricted Share Units (RSUs)  

 
Each RSU granted under the long-term incentive program entitles the holder to receive one NU common share at the time of vesting. 
All RSUs granted in 2009 will vest in equal annual installments over three years.  RSU holders are eligible to receive reinvested 
dividend units on outstanding RSUs held by them to the same extent that dividends are declared and paid on NU common shares. 
 Reinvested dividend units are accounted for as additional RSUs that accrue and are distributed with the common shares issued upon 
vesting and distribution of the underlying RSUs.  Common shares, including any additional common shares in respect of reinvested 
dividend units, are not issued for any RSUs that do not vest.  
 

General  
 
Annually, the Compensation Committee determines RSU grants for each officer participating in the long-term incentive program. 
Initially, the target RSU grants are equal to 25% of the long-term incentive compensation target for each officer.  RSU grants are based 
on a percentage of base salary and measured in dollars.  The percentage used for each officer is based on the officer’s position in the 
company and ranges from 9% to 75% of salary.  The Committee reserves the right to increase or decrease the RSU grant from target 
for each officer under special circumstances.  The Compensation Committee acting jointly with the Corporate Governance Committee 
recommends to the Board of Trustees the final RSU grant for Mr. Shivery.  Based on input from Mr. Shivery, the Compensation 
Committee determines the final RSU grants for each of the other officers, including the other NEOs.  Increases or decreases to target 
RSU grants for our officers will increase or decrease their compensation as compared to the compensation of officers of utilities listed in 
our customized peer group.  
 
All RSUs are granted on the date of the Committee meeting at which they are approved.  RSU grants are subsequently converted from 
dollars into NU common share equivalents by dividing the value of each grant by the average closing price for NU common shares 
during the last ten trading days in January in the year of the grant.  
 

RSU Grants under the 2009 – 2011 Program  
 
Under the 2009 – 2011 program, the target RSU grant totaled approximately $2.4 million for all 30 officers participating in the long-term 
incentive program.  The Committee did not adjust any officer’s RSU grant from target for the 2009 – 2011 program.  Accordingly, the 
final total RSU grant for officers, including Mr. Shivery, was unchanged from target.  Dividing the final total RSU grant by $23.74, the 
average closing price for NU common shares during the last ten trading days in January 2009, resulted in an aggregate of 100,157 
RSUs.  The following RSU grants at 100% of target were approved, reflected in RSUs: Mr. Shivery: 32,702; Mr. McHale: 8,294; 
Mr. Olivier: 8,689; Mr. Butler:  6,430; and Mr. Robb: 4,213.  
 

Performance Units  
 

General  
 
Performance Units are a performance-based component of our long-term incentive program.  A new three-year program commences 
every year.  Performance unit grants are equal to 75% of total individual long-term incentive grants at target.  Two-thirds of the 
performance unit grant in the 2009 – 2011 program consists of a performance cash grant and the remaining one-third of each 
performance unit grant consists of a performance share grant.  Consequently, performance cash grants are equal to 50% of the total 
individual long-term incentive grants at target, and performance share grants are equal to 25% of the total individual long-term incentive 
grants at target.  Both performance cash grants and performance share grants are measured in dollars.  Performance share grants are 
subsequently converted from dollars into NU common share equivalents by dividing the value of each grant by the average closing 
price for NU common shares during the last ten trading days in January in the year of the grant.  During the three-year performance 
program period, the dividends that would have been paid with respect to the performance shares to holders of performance share 
grants are accounted for as additional common shares that accrue and are distributed with the common shares, if any, at the end of the 
program.  Prior to the 2009 – 2011 program, the performance unit grants consisted solely of performance cash.  
 
Awards under a program are earned to the extent to which NU achieves goals in the four metrics described below during each year of 
the program, except as reduced in the discretion of the Compensation Committee.  The Compensation Committee determines the 
actual awards, if any, only after the end of the final year in the respective program.  
 

Cumulative Adjusted Net Income, which is consolidated NU net income adjusted by the Compensation 
Committee to exclude the effects of certain nonrecurring income and expense items or events (which are 
defined as ANI under the annual incentive program) over the three years in a program.  

 
Average adjusted ROE, which is the average of the annual return on equity for the three years in a program. The 
Committee adjusts average ROE on the same basis as cumulative adjusted net income.  

 
Average credit rating of Northeast Utilities (excluding the regulated companies), which is the time-weighted 
average daily credit rating by the rating agencies Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch. The metric is 
calculated by assigning numerical values, or "points," to credit ratings (A or A2: 5; A- or A3: 4; BBB+ or Baa1: 3; 
BBB or Baa2: 2; and BBB- or Baa3: 1) so that a large point value represents a high credit rating. In addition to 
average credit rating objectives, the ratings of Northeast Utilities by S&P and Moody’s must remain above 
investment grade.  

 
 
 

• 

• 
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Relative total shareholder return of Northeast Utilities as compared to the return of the utility companies listed in 
the performance peer group identified for each long term incentive program.  

 
The selection of these four metrics reflects the Compensation Committee’s belief that these areas are critical measurements of 
corporate success.  For the 2009 – 2011 program, the Committee weighted each of the four metrics equally.  The Committee measures 
performance against the cumulative adjusted net income, average adjusted ROE, and average credit rating, because these metrics are 
directly related to NU’s multi-year business plan in effect at the beginning of the three-year program.  The Committee also measures 
performance against relative total shareholder return to emphasize to the plan participants the importance of achieving total 
shareholder returns that are comparable to the returns for companies listed in the performance peer group.  Before any amount is 
payable with respect to a metric, NU must achieve a minimum level of performance under that metric.  If NU achieves the minimum 
level of performance for any goal, then the resulting payout will equal 50% of the target for that goal.  If NU achieves the maximum level 
of performance for any goal, then the resulting payout will equal 150% of target for that goal.  The Committee fixed the minimum 
opportunity at 50% of target and the maximum opportunity at 150% of target because the Committee believes this range is consistent 
with the ranges used by companies listed in the performance peer group.  
 
Set forth below are descriptions of each of the three long-term performance programs that were in effect during 2009.  The peer groups 
used by the Committee for performance comparisons under each program are listed in footnote 1 to the table that accompanies each 
description.  The performance peer groups represent companies with investment profiles, including growth potential, business models 
and areas of focus substantially similar to NU’s.  The Committee compared NU’s total shareholder return to the total shareholder 
returns of the companies in the performance peer group.  Prior to the 2009 – 2011 program, the customized peer group had been larger 
than the performance peer groups because NU competes for talent with more companies than those with which it competes for 
investment.  However, beginning with the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program, to simplify the peer group structure, the 
Committee evaluates the total shareholder return metric using the same customized group of peer utilities described above under 
"Market Analysis."  
 

2007 – 2009 Performance Cash  
 
The Compensation Committee approved the 2007 – 2009 performance cash grants in early 2007.  Upon completion of NU’s fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2009, the Committee determined that NU achieved goals under each of the four metrics during the three-year 
program and, accordingly, that awards under the program were payable at an overall level of 109% of target.  
 
The 2007 – 2009 program included goals in four metrics: cumulative adjusted net income, average adjusted ROE, average credit rating, 
and relative total shareholder return, as described below.  For the 2007 – 2009 program, cumulative adjusted net income and average 
adjusted ROE excluded the positive and negative effects of the following nonrecurring income and expense items or events:  
 

 
The table set forth below describes the goals under the 2007 – 2009 program and NU’s actual results during that period:  
 

 
The performance peer group for the 2007 – 2009 program includes Northeast Utilities and the following companies: Allegheny 
Energy, Inc., Alliant Energy Corporation, Ameren Corporation, CenterPoint Energy, Inc., Consolidated Edison, Inc., Energy 
East Corporation, NiSource Inc., NSTAR, NV Energy, Inc., Pepco Holdings, Inc., Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, Puget 
Energy, Inc., SCANA Corporation, Wisconsin Energy Corporation and Xcel Energy Inc.  
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Excluded Categories  

   Specific 2009  
Adjustments  
($ in millions)  

Changes to net income as the result of accounting or tax law changes     $ 31.2     
Unexpected costs related to nuclear decommissioning     (1.4)    
Unexpected costs related to environmental remediation at HWP  
  (formerly Holyoke Water Power Company)  

   
2.4  

   

NU  Enterprises, Inc. mark-to-market impact     (4.2)    
Unbudgeted charitable contributions     1.9     
Changes to net income resulting from any settlement of, or final decision  
  in, ongoing litigation with Consolidated Edison  

   
25.8  

   

Divestiture or discontinuance of a segment or component of NU’s business     2.4     
Discretionary adjustment by Compensation Committee due to delayed  
  in-service date of customer service system  

   
(6.4) 

   

Net Adjustments:     $(51.7)    

2007 – 2009 Program Goals  
Goal  Minimum  Target  Maximum  Actual Results  
Cumulative Adjusted Net Income  
($ in millions)  $753.2  $836.9  $920.6  $889.0  

Average Adjusted ROE  8.4%  9.2%  10.0%  9.5%  
Average Credit Rating Points  1.2  1.7  2.2  1.7  
Relative Total Shareholder Return  
(percentile) (1)  40th  60th  80 th  54th  

(1) 
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Based on NU’s financial performance during the three-year performance period of the 2007 – 2009 Long-Term Incentive Program, the 
Committee approved the following performance cash awards: Mr. Shivery: $1,635,000; Mr. McHale: $367,875; Mr. Olivier: $323,594; 
and Mr. Butler: $316,870.  Mr. Robb did not participate in this program.  The payments were determined pursuant to formulas set forth 
in the 2007 – 2009 Long-Term Incentive Program and were not subject to the discretion of the Compensation Committee.  
 

2008 – 2010 Performance Cash  
 
The Committee approved the 2008 – 2010 performance cash goals in early 2008.  No awards have been paid under this program, and 
the Committee will not determine whether any awards are payable until the end of our 2010 fiscal year, which is the final year in the 
three-year program.    
 
The 2008 – 2010 program also includes goals in four metrics: cumulative adjusted net income, average adjusted ROE, average credit 
rating, and relative total shareholder return, as described below.  For the 2008 – 2010 program, cumulative adjusted net income and 
average adjusted ROE exclude the positive and negative effects of the following nonrecurring income and expense items or events: 
accounting or tax law changes; unusual Internal Revenue Service or regulatory issues; unexpected changes in costs related to nuclear 
decommissioning; unexpected changes in costs related to environmental remediation of HWP Company; divestiture or discontinuance 
of a segment or component of NU’s business; the acquisition of shares or assets of another entity comprising an additional segment or 
component of NU’s business; impairments on goodwill acquired before 2003 (more than five years prior to the beginning of this 
program cycle); and the impact of the litigation settlement with Consolidated Edison, Inc.  
 
The table set forth below describes the goals under the 2008 – 2010 program:  
 

 
The performance peer group for the 2008 – 2010 program includes Northeast Utilities and the following companies:  Allegheny 
Energy, Inc., Alliant Energy Corporation, Ameren Corporation, CenterPoint Energy, Inc., CMS Energy Corporation, Consolidated 
Edison, Inc., NiSource Inc., NSTAR, NV Energy, Inc., Pepco Holdings, Inc., Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, SCANA 
Corporation, TECO Energy, Inc., Wisconsin Energy Corporation and Xcel Energy Inc.  

 
2009 – 2011 Performance Units  

 
The Committee approved the 2009 – 2011 performance unit goals in early 2009.  No awards have been paid under this program, and 
the Committee will not determine whether any awards are payable until the end of our 2011 fiscal year, which is the final year in the 
three-year program.    
 
As described above, under the 2009 – 2011 program, two-thirds of each performance unit grant consists of a performance cash grant 
and the remaining one-third of each performance unit grant consists of a performance share grant.  The 2009 – 2011 program also 
includes goals in four metrics: cumulative adjusted net income, average adjusted ROE, average credit rating, and relative total 
shareholder return, as described below.  For the 2009 – 2011 program, cumulative adjusted net income and average adjusted ROE 
exclude the positive and negative effects of the following nonrecurring income and expense items or events: accounting or tax law 
changes; unusual Internal Revenue Service or regulatory issues; unexpected changes in costs related to nuclear decommissioning; 
unexpected changes in costs related to environmental remediation of HWP Company; divestiture or discontinuance of a segment or 
component of NU’s business; the acquisition of shares or assets of another entity comprising an additional segment or component of 
NU’s business; and impairments on goodwill acquired before 2003 (more than six years prior to the beginning of this program cycle).  
 
The table set forth below describes the goals under the 2009 – 2011 program:  
 

 
The performance peer group for the 2009 – 2011 program includes Northeast Utilities and the following companies:  Allegheny 
Energy, Inc., Alliant Energy Corporation, Ameren Corporation, CenterPoint Energy, Inc., CMS Energy Corporation, Consolidated 
Edison, Inc., DTE Energy Company, Great Plains Energy Incorporated, Integrys Energy Group Inc., NiSource Inc., NSTAR, NV 
Energy, Inc., OGE Energy Corp., Pepco Holdings, Inc., Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, Progress Energy Inc., SCANA 
Corporation, TECO Energy, Inc., Wisconsin Energy Corporation and Xcel Energy Inc.  
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2008 – 2010 Program Goals  
Goal  Minimum  Target  Maximum  
Cumulative Adjusted Net Income ($ in millions)  $845.7       $939.7       $1,033.7      
Average Adjusted ROE  8.6%    9.5%    10.5%    
Average Credit Rating Points  1.2        1.7        2.2        
Relative Total Shareholder Return (percentile) (1)  40th     60th     80th     

(1) 

2009 – 2011 Program Goals  
Goal  Minimum  Target  Maximum  
Cumulative Adjusted Net Income ($ in millions)  $899.3        $999.2        $1,099.1       
Average Adjusted ROE  8.4%    9.3%    10.1%    
Average Credit Rating Points  1.2        1.7        2.2        
Relative Total Shareholder Return (percentile) (1)  40th     60th     80th     

(1) 
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2010 CHANGES  
 

2010 – 2012 Long-Term Incentive Program  
 
In late-2009, the Compensation Committee changed the performance elements of the 2010 – 2012 Long-Term Incentive Program by 
shifting a portion of performance cash to performance shares to further strengthen the alignment of the performance elements with 
NU’s shareholders. For the 2010 – 2012 program, the grant value at target will consist of 37.5% performance shares and 37.5% 
performance cash.  RSUs will constitute 25% of the grant value at target, unchanged from the 2009 – 2011 program.  
 
Also in late-2009, the Compensation Committee changed the weighting of the four metrics used to determine payments under the 2010 
– 2012 Long-Term Incentive Program to further emphasize to participants the importance of achieving a relative total shareholder return 
that exceeds the median peer group performance and to better align the long-term interests of participants and NU’s shareholders 
consistent with the long-term objectives of the company to build and sustain value.  Previously, the four metrics, consisting of 
cumulative adjusted net income, average adjusted ROE, average credit rating, and relative total shareholder return, were equally 
weighted.  Commencing with the 2010 – 2012 program, , the relative total shareholder return goal will account for 40% of the 
performance units granted, while the cumulative adjusted net income, average adjusted ROE, and average credit rating metrics will 
each account for 20% of the performance units granted.  
 

SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES  
 
Effective in 2006, the Compensation Committee approved share ownership guidelines to emphasize the importance of share ownership 
by certain of NU’s executive officers.  The Committee most recently reviewed the guidelines for these executive officers in 2009 and 
determined that they remain reasonable and require no modification.  The guidelines call for Mr. Shivery to own 200,000 shares, which 
is currently valued at approximately five- to six-times base salary, and the other executive officers to own a minimum number of 
common shares valued at approximately two- to three-times base salary.  
 

 
At the time the share ownership guidelines were implemented, the Committee required NU’s executive officers to attain these 
ownership levels within five years.  The Committee requires all newly-elected executive officers to attain the ownership levels within 
seven years.  All of our NEOs are currently at, or close to, the share ownership guidelines except for Mr. Robb, who commenced 
employment with NU in 2007.  Common shares, whether held of record, in street name, or in individual 401(k) accounts, and RSUs 
satisfy the guidelines.  Unexercised stock options do not count toward the ownership guidelines.  
 

HEDGING PRACTICES  
 
NU does not allow any NEO to enter into any derivative transaction on NU common shares, including any short-sales, forward-sales, 
options and collars.  
 
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS  
 
We provide a variety of basic and supplemental benefits designed to assist us in attracting and retaining executive officers critical to 
NU’s success by reflecting competitive practices.  The Compensation Committee endeavors to adhere to a high level of propriety in 
managing executive benefits and perquisites.  We do not provide permanent lodging or personal entertainment for any executive officer 
or employee, and our executive officers are eligible to participate in substantially the same health care and benefit programs available 
to our employees.  
 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS  
 
We provide retirement income benefits for employees, including executive officers, who commenced employment before 2006 under 
the Northeast Utilities Service Company Retirement Plan (Retirement Plan) and, for officers, under the Supplemental Executive 
Retirement Plan for Officers of Northeast Utilities System Companies (Supplemental Plan).  Each plan is a defined benefit pension 
plan, which determines retirement benefits based on years of service, age at retirement, and "plan compensation."  Plan compensation 
for the Retirement Plan, which is a qualified plan under the Internal Revenue Code, includes primarily base pay and nonofficer annual 
incentives up to the Internal Revenue Code limits for qualified plans.  Beginning in 2006, newly-hired nonunion employees, including 
Mr. Robb and other executive officers, participate in an enhanced defined contribution retirement program in the Northeast Utilities 
Service Company 401k Plan (401k Plan), called the K-Vantage benefit, instead of participating in the Retirement Plan.  
 
For NEOs who participate in the Retirement Plan, the Supplemental Plan adds to plan compensation: base pay over the Internal 
Revenue Code limits; deferred base salary; annual executive incentive program awards; and, for certain participants, long-term 
incentive program awards, as explained in the narrative accompanying the Pension Benefits Table.  
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Executive Officer     

Ownership  
Guidelines  

(Number of Shares)     
Approximate  

Salary Multiple  
   Mr. Shivery     200,000     5-6    
   EVPs/SVPs     30,000 – 45,000     2-3    
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The Supplemental Plan consists of two parts.  The first part, called the make-whole benefit, compensates for benefits lost due to 
Internal Revenue Code limitations on benefits provided under the Retirement Plan.  The second part, called the target benefit, is 
available to all NEOs except Mr. Olivier and Mr. Robb.  The target benefit supplements the Retirement Plan and make-whole benefit 
under the Supplemental Plan so that, upon attaining at least 25 years of service, total retirement benefits from these plans will equal a 
target percentage of the final average compensation.  To receive the target benefit, a participant must remain employed by NU or its 
subsidiaries at least for five years and until age 60, unless the Board of Trustees establishes a lower age.  
 
The value of the target benefit was reduced in 2005 to reflect changes in competitive practices, which indicated general reductions in 
the prevalence of defined benefit plans and the value of special retirement benefits to senior executives.  Individuals who began serving 
as officers before February 2005 are eligible to receive a target benefit with the target percentage fixed at 60%.  Individuals who began 
serving as officers from and after February 2005 are eligible to receive a target benefit with the target percentage fixed at 50%.  As a 
result, Messrs. Shivery and Butler have target benefits at 60% while Mr. McHale has a target benefit at 50%.  
 
Mr. Shivery’s employment agreement provides for a special total retirement benefit determined using the Supplemental Plan target 
benefit formula plus three additional years of company service.  This benefit will be reduced by two percent per year for each year 
Mr. Shivery retires before age 65.  Upon retirement, Mr. Shivery will be eligible to receive retirement health benefits.  In addition, the 
Named Executive Officers are eligible to receive certain health and welfare benefits upon termination of employment following a change 
of control or, for Messrs. Shivery, Olivier, McHale and Butler, an involuntary termination of employment.  To the extent such benefits 
may not be provided through our tax qualified plans, the executive is entitled to participate in a non-qualified health plan that will be 
treated as taxable compensation to the executive officer to the extent of company contributions and will be provided with a tax gross-up 
so that the value to the executive is equivalent to a tax qualified plan benefit.  See the Pension Benefits Table and the accompanying 
narrative for more details of these arrangements.  
 
NU entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Olivier that includes retirement benefits similar to the benefits provided by his 
previous employer.  Accordingly, Mr. Olivier is entitled to receive separate retirement benefits in lieu of the Supplemental Plan benefits 
described above.  Pursuant to his agreement, Mr. Olivier will receive a targeted pension value if he meets certain eligibility 
requirements.  See the Pension Benefits Table and the accompanying narrative for more details of this arrangement.  
 

401K PLAN  
 
We provide an opportunity for employees to save money for retirement on a tax-favored basis through the 401k Plan.  The 401k Plan is 
a defined contribution qualified plan under the Internal Revenue Code and contains a cash or deferred arrangement under Section 401
(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.  Participants with at least six months of service receive employer matching contributions, not to 
exceed 3% of base compensation, one-third of which are in cash available for investment in various mutual fund alternatives and two-
thirds of which are in the form of common shares (ESOP shares).  
 
The K-Vantage benefit provides for employer contributions to the 401k Plan in amounts between 2.5% and 6.5% of plan compensation 
based on an eligible employee’s age and years of service.  These contributions are in addition to employer matching contributions.  Mr. 
Robb and other executive officers hired beginning in 2006 also participate in a companion nonqualified K-Vantage benefit in the 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (Deferral Plan) that provides defined contribution benefits above Internal Revenue Code 
limits on qualified plans.  
 

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN  
 
Our executive officers participate in the Deferral Plan to provide additional retirement benefits not available in our 401k Plan because of 
Internal Revenue Code limits on qualified plans.  Under the Deferral Plan, executive officers are entitled to defer up to 100% of base 
salary and annual incentive awards.  NU matches officer deferrals in an amount equal to 3% of the amount of base salary above 
Internal Revenue Code limits on qualified plans.  The matching contribution is deemed to be invested in common shares and vests at 
the end of the third year after the calendar year in which the matching contribution was earned, or at retirement, whichever occurs first. 
Participants are entitled to select deemed investments for all deferred amounts from the same investments available in the 401k Plan, 
except for investments in NU’s common shares.  NU also credits the Deferral Plan in amounts equal to the K-Vantage benefit that 
would have been provided under the 401k Plan but for Internal Revenue Code limits on qualified plans.  This nonqualified plan is 
unfunded.  Please see the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table and the accompanying notes for additional plan details.  
 

PERQUISITES  
 
It is our philosophy that perquisites should be provided to executive officers only as needed for business reasons, and not simply in 
reaction to prevalent market practices.  
 
Senior executive officers, including the NEOs, are eligible to receive reimbursement for financial planning and tax preparation services. 
This benefit is intended to help ensure that executive officers seek competent tax advice, properly prepare complex tax returns, and 
leverage the value of our compensation programs.  Reimbursement is limited to $4,000 every two years for financial planning services 
and $1,500 per year for tax preparation services.  
 
All executive officers receive a special annual physical examination benefit to help ensure serious health issues are detected early. 
 The benefit is limited to the reimbursement of up to $800 for fees incurred beyond those covered by our medical plan.  
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When hiring a new executive officer or transferring an executive officer to a new location, we sometimes reimburse executive officers 
for reasonable temporary living and relocation expenses, or provide a lump sum payment in lieu of specific reimbursement.  These 
expenses are grossed-up for income taxes attributable to such reimbursements so that relocation or transfer is cost neutral to the 
executive officer.  
 
When required for a valid business purpose, an executive officer may be accompanied by his or her spouse, in which case we will 
reimburse the executive officer for all spousal travel expenses.  
 
Effective beginning in 2009, we no longer pay gross-ups for taxes on any perquisites other than for taxes on reimbursement of 
relocation expenses for newly-hired or transferred executives.  
 
CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS  
 
NU has entered into employment and other agreements with certain executive officers, including the NEOs.  The agreements specify all 
or part of the following: compensation and benefits during the employment term, benefits payable upon involuntary termination of 
employment, and benefits payable upon termination of employment following a change of control.  These termination and change of 
control benefits were in prevalent practice at the time the agreements were signed and were necessary to attract and retain competent 
and capable executive talent.  We continue to believe that these benefits help to ensure our executive officers’ dedication and 
objectivity at a time when they might otherwise be concerned about their future employment.  
 
In the event of a change of control, the agreements with Messrs. Shivery, McHale, Butler and Robb provide for enhanced cash 
severance benefits following termination of employment without "cause" (as defined in the employment agreement, generally involving 
a felony conviction; acts of fraud, embezzlement, or theft in the course of employment; intentional, wrongful damage to NU property; 
gross misconduct or gross negligence in the course of employment; or a material breach of obligations under the agreement) or upon 
termination of employment by the executive for "good reason" (as defined in the employment agreement, generally meaning an 
assignment to duties inconsistent with his position, a failure by the employer to satisfy material terms of the agreement or the transfer of 
the executive to an office location more than 50 miles from his or her principal place of business immediately prior to a change of 
control). The Compensation Committee believes that termination for good reason is conceptually the same as termination "without 
cause" and, in the absence of this provision, potential acquirers would have an incentive to constructively terminate executives to avoid 
paying severance.  Mr. Olivier’s employment agreement does not provide for severance payments in the event that his employment 
terminates following a change of control.  Mr. Olivier participates instead in the Special Severance Program.  
 
For Messrs. Shivery, McHale and Butler, a "change of control" is defined in their employment agreements as a change in ownership or 
control effected through (i) the acquisition of 20% or more of the combined voting power of common shares or other voting securities, 
(ii) a change in the majority of NU’s Board of Trustees over a 24-month period, unless approved by a majority of the incumbent 
Trustees, (iii) certain reorganizations, mergers or consolidations where substantially all of the persons who were the beneficial owners 
of the outstanding common shares immediately prior to such business combination do not beneficially own more than 50% of the voting 
power of the resulting business entity, and (iv) complete liquidation or dissolution of Northeast Utilities, or a sale or disposition of all or 
substantially all of the assets of Northeast Utilities other than to an entity with respect to which following completion of the transaction 
more than 50% of common shares or other voting securities is then owned by all or substantially all of the persons who were the 
beneficial owners of common shares and other voting securities immediately prior to such transaction.  For Mr. Robb, a "change of 
control" is as defined in the shareholder-approved Northeast Utilities Incentive Plan.  
 
Pursuant to the change of control provisions in the employment agreements, each NEO except for Mr. Olivier and Mr.  Robb would be 
reimbursed for the full amount of any excise taxes imposed on severance payments and any other payments under Section 4999 of the 
Internal Revenue Code.  This "gross-up" is intended to preserve the aggregate amount of the severance payments by compensating 
the executive officers for any adverse tax consequences to which they may become subject under the Internal Revenue Code. 
 Mr. Olivier’s and Mr. Robb’s severance payments may be reduced to avoid excise taxes.  
 
We describe and explain how the appropriate payment and benefit levels are determined under the various circumstances that trigger 
payments or provision of benefits in the tables and accompanying footnotes appearing in the section captioned "Potential Payments 
Upon Termination or Change of Control," below.  
 
To help protect us after the termination of an executive officer’s employment, the employment agreements include non-competition and 
non-solicitation covenants pursuant to which the executive officers have agreed not to compete with NU system companies or solicit 
NU companies’ employees for a period of two years (one year for Mr. Olivier pursuant to the Special Severance Program and one year 
for Mr. Robb pursuant to his agreement) after termination of employment.  
 
In the event of termination of employment without "cause" or upon termination of employment by an NEO for good reason, in each case 
following a change of control, the expiration date of all vested unexercised stock options held by our NEOs would be extended 
automatically for up to an additional 36 months, but not beyond the original expiration date, to provide these holders with an opportunity 
to benefit from increased shareholder value created by the change of control.  Also, in the event of a change of control, the long-term 
incentive programs provide for the vesting, pro rata based on the number of days of employment during the performance period, and 
payment at target of performance cash, whether or not the executive’s employment terminates, unless the Committee determines 
otherwise.  
 
Finally, in the event of a change of control, the Deferral Plan provides for the immediate vesting of any employer matches, although 
these matches would be paid according to the schedule defined by the executive’s original election.  
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As discussed under the caption entitled "Supplemental Benefits," above, the employment agreements with Messrs. Shivery and Olivier 
also include additional retirement benefits payable upon voluntary termination of employment.  
 
TAX AND ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS  
 
Tax Considerations.  All executive compensation for 2009 was fully deductible for federal income tax purposes, except for 
approximately $81,000 paid to Mr. Shivery, consisting of RSU distributions of approximately $68,000 and salary and reimbursements of 
approximately $13,000.  
   
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code limits the tax deduction for compensation paid to a company’s CEO and certain other 
executives.  NU is entitled to deduct compensation payments above $1 million as compensation expense only to the extent that these 
payments are "performance based" in accordance with Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.  Our annual incentive program 
and performance unit grants qualify as performance-based compensation under the Internal Revenue Code.  As required by Section 
162(m), the Compensation Committee reports to the Board of Trustees annually the extent to which various performance goals have 
been achieved.  RSUs do not qualify as performance-based compensation.  
 
Currently, Mr. Shivery is the only NEO to exceed the Section 162(m) limit.  To preserve an employee compensation tax deduction, 
Mr. Shivery agreed, for as long as it is beneficial to NU, to defer the distribution to him of common shares in respect of all vested RSUs 
until the calendar year after he leaves NU’s employment, at which time Section 162(m) will no longer apply to him. The non-deductible 
RSU distributions for Mr. Shivery in 2009 described above relate to RSUs granted before Mr. Shivery was elected as NU’s CEO.  
 
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code provides that amounts deferred under nonqualified deferred compensation plans are 
includable in an employee’s income when vested unless certain requirements are met. If these requirements are not met, employees 
are also subject to additional income tax and interest penalties.  All of our supplemental retirement plans, executive employment 
agreements, severance arrangements, and other nonqualified deferred compensation plans were amended in 2008 to satisfy the 
requirements of Section 409A.  
 
Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code disallows a tax deduction for "excess parachute payments" in connection with the 
termination of employment related to a change of control (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code), and Section 4999 of the Internal 
Revenue Code imposes a 20% excise tax on any person who receives excess parachute payments.  As discussed above, our NEOs 
are entitled to receive certain payments upon termination of their employment, including termination following a change of control. 
Under the terms of the agreements, all NEOs except Mr. Olivier and Mr. Robb are entitled to receive tax gross-ups for any payments 
that constitute an excess parachute payment.  Accordingly, a tax deduction would be disallowed under Section 280G for all excess 
parachute payments as well as tax gross-ups.  Not all of the payments to which NEOs are entitled are excess parachute payments. 
 The amounts of the payments that constitute excess parachute payments are set forth in the tables found under the caption entitled 
"Potential Payments at Termination or Change of Control," below.  
 
In the event of a change of control in which NU is not the surviving entity, RSUs granted to executive officers provide that the acquirer 
will assume or replace the grants, even if the executive remains employed after the change of control.  
 
Accounting Considerations.  RSUs and performance shares disclosed in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table are accounted for 
based on their grant date fair value, as determined under FASB ASC Topic 718, which is recognized over the service period, or the 
three-year vesting period applicable to the grant.  Assumptions used in the calculation of this amount appear under the caption entitled 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2009.  Forfeitures are estimated, and the compensation cost of the grants will be reversed if the employee does not 
remain employed by us throughout the three-year vesting period.  Performance unit grants are accounted for on a variable basis based 
on the most likely payment outcome.  
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE  
 
The table below summarizes the total compensation paid or earned by CL&P’s NEOs. As explained in the footnotes below, the 
amounts reflect the economic benefit to each Named Executive Officer of the compensation item paid or accrued on his behalf for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. All salaries, annual incentive amounts and long-term incentive amounts shown for each Named 
Executive Officer were paid for all services rendered to NU and its subsidiaries, including CL&P, in all capacities.  
 

Name and  
Principal  Position  Year  

Salary  
($) (1)  

Bonus  
($) (2)  

Stock  
Awards  
($) (3)  

 
 
 
 
 

Option  
Awards  
($) (4)  

Non-Equity  
Incentive Plan  
Compensation  

($) (5 )  

Change in  
Pension  

Value and Non- 
Qualified Deferred 

Compensation 
Earnings  

($) (6)  

All Other  
Compen-  

sation  
($) (7)  Total ($)  

Charles W. Shivery  
Chairman of the Board, 
President and CEO of NU; 
Chairman of CL&P  

2009  1,035,000 ―  1,574,915  ―  3,280,650   1,812,023  31,050 7,773,638 
2008  1,067,404 ―  1,891,430  ―  3,257,929   1,627,493  35,397 7,879,653 

2007  987,308 ―  2,754,632  ―  3,048,360   1,326,931  49,026 8,166,257 

                              
David R. McHale  
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 
(8)  

2009  524,520 ―  399,436  ―  923,603   1,038,268  7,350 2,893,177 
2008  508,654 ―  456,858  ―  750,214   514,753  9,907 2,240,386 

2007  434,135 ―  531,240  ―  755,810   614,481  7,603 2,343,269 

                              
Leon J. Olivier  
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Operating 
Officer of NU; CEO of 
CL&P  

2009  550,000 ―  418,459  ―  
882,009   219,565  16,500 2,086,533 

2008  550,962 ―  407,367  ―  839,571   324,854  18,997 2,141,751 

2007  462,096 ―  467,313  ―  777,226   251,556  15,042 1,973,233 

                             
Gregory B. Butler  
Senior Vice President and 
General Counsel  

2009  406,988 ―  309,666  ―  730,878   503,614  7,350 1,958,496 
2008  418,542 ―  327,261  ―  723,674   206,850  8,207 1,684,534 
2007  382,244 ―  396,595  ―  731,950   195,321  12,941 1,719,051 

                              
James B. Robb  
Senior Vice President 
Enterprise Planning & 
Development of NUSCO  

2009  400,000 ―  202,896  ―  316,500   ―  23,025 942,422 

                           
                           

 
Includes amounts deferred in 2009 by the Named Executive Officers under the Deferral Plan, as follows: Mr. Shivery: $31,050; 
Mr. Olivier: $137,500; and Mr. Robb: $8,000. For more information, see the Executive Contributions in the Last Fiscal Year 
column of the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plans Table.  

 
We pay each of our salaried employees, including each of the Named Executive Officers, 1/26th of their annual base salary 
every two weeks. This bi-weekly pay schedule typically results in one extra pay date per year approximately once every twelve 
years. One additional pay date occurred in 2008. Accordingly, the amounts reported for Salary for each Named Executive 
Officer in 2008 reflect 27 pay dates, as compared to 26 pay dates in each of 2009 and 2007.    

 
No discretionary bonus awards were made to any of the Named Executive Officers in the fiscal years ended 2007, 2008 and 
2009.  

 
Reflects the aggregate grant date fair value of restricted share units (RSUs) and performance shares granted in each fiscal 
year, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.  

 
In 2007, 2008 and 2009, certain Named Executive Officers were granted RSUs that vest in equal annual installments over 
three years as long-term incentive compensation. NU deferred the distribution of common shares upon vesting of RSUs 
granted to Mr. Shivery until the calendar year after he leaves the Company. RSU holders are eligible to receive dividend 
equivalent units on outstanding RSUs held by them to the same extent that dividends are declared and paid on NU’s common 
shares. Dividend equivalent units are accounted for as additional common shares that accrue and are distributed 
simultaneously with the common shares issued upon vesting of the underlying RSUs.    
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In 2009, the Named Executive Officers were granted performance shares as long-term compensation.  These performance 
shares will vest on December 31, 2011, based on the extent to which four performance conditions are achieved.  The grant 
date values for the performance shares, assuming achievement of the highest level of all four performance conditions, are as 
follows: Mr. Shivery: $1,187,063; Mr. McHale: $301,067; Mr. Olivier: $315,406; Mr. Butler: $233,405; and Mr. Robb: $152,929. 
   
NU has not granted any stock options since 2002. Accordingly, we did not grant stock options to any of the Named Executive 
Officers in 2009.  

 
Includes payments to the Named Executive Officers under the 2009 Annual Incentive Program (Mr. Shivery: $1,645,650; 
Mr. McHale: $555,728; Mr. Olivier: $558,415; Mr. Butler: $414,009; and Mr. Robb: $316,500)  Also includes performance cash 
payments under the 2007 – 2009 Long-Term Incentive Program (Mr. Shivery: $1,635,000; Mr. McHale: $367,875; Mr. Olivier: 
$323,594; and Mr. Butler: $316,870).  Performance goals under the 2009 Annual Incentive Program were communicated to 
each officer by Mr. Shivery or, in the case of Mr. Shivery, jointly by NU’s Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance 
Committee of the Board of Trustees, during the first 90 days of 2009.  The Compensation Committee acting jointly with the 
Corporate Governance Committee determined the extent to which these goals were satisfied (based on input from Mr. 
Shivery, in the case of the other Named Executive Officers) in February 2010.  Performance goals under the 2007 – 2009 
Long-Term Incentive Program were communicated to each officer by Mr. Shivery or, in the case of Mr. Shivery, jointly by the 
Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance Committee, during the first 90 days of 2007.  The Compensation 
Committee determined the extent to which the long-term goals were satisfied in February 2010.  

 
Includes the actuarial increase in the present value from December 31, 2008 to December 31, 2009 of the Named Executive 
Officer’s accumulated benefits under all of our defined benefit pension plans determined using interest rate and mortality rate 
assumptions consistent with those appearing in Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations in 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  The Named Executive Officer may not be fully vested in such amounts. More information 
on this topic is set forth in the notes to the Pension Benefits table, appearing further below. Mr. Robb does not participate in a 
plan that provides pension benefits.  There were no above-market earnings on deferrals in 2009.  

 
Includes matching contributions of $7,350 allocated to the account of each of the Named Executive Officers under the 401k 
Plan; plus nonqualified K-Vantage Contributions under the 401k Plan (Mr. Robb: $11,025); and employer matching 
contributions under the Deferral Plan for the NEOs who deferred part of their salary in the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2009 (Mr. Shivery: $23,700; Mr. Olivier: $9,150; and Mr. Robb: $4,650). Mr. McHale and Mr. Butler did not participate in the 
Deferral Plan in 2009.      

 
Mr. McHale was elected Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of CL&P effective January 1, 2009.  He served 
as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of CL&P from January 1, 2005 until January 1, 2009.  

 
GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS DURING 2009  

 
The Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table provides information on the range of potential payouts under all incentive plan awards during 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. The table also discloses the underlying stock awards and the grant date for equity-based 
awards.  NU has not granted any stock options since 2002.  Accordingly, we did not grant stock options to any of the Named Executive 
Officers in 2009.  
 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

Name  Grant Date  

Estimated Future Payouts Under  
Non -Equity Incentive Plan Awards  

All Other Stock  
Awards: Number  

of Shares of  
Stock or Units  

(#) (3)  

Grant Date  
Fair Value of  

Stock and  
Option  
Awards  
($) (4)  Threshold ($)  Target ($)  Maximum ($)  

Charles W. Shivery                    
Annual Incentive (1)  2/10/2009  517,500 1,035,000 2,070,000 -- --
Long-Term Incentive (2)  2/10/2009  776,250 1,552,500 2,328,750 65,404 1,574,915 

                     
David R. McHale                    

Annual Incentive (1)  2/10/2009  170,625 341,250 682,500 -- --
Long-Term Incentive (2)  2/10/2009  196,875 393,750 590,625 16,588 399,436 

                     
Leon J. Olivier                    

Annual Incentive (1)  2/10/2009  178,750 357,500 715,000 -- --
Long-Term Incentive (2)  2/10/2009  206,250 412,500 618,750 17,378 418,459 

                     
Gregory B. Butler                    

Annual Incentive (1)  2/10/2009  132,271 264,542 529,084 -- --
Long-Term Incentive (2)  2/10/2009  152,621 305,241 457,862 12,860 309,666 

                     
James B. Robb                    

Annual Incentive (1)  2/10/2009  100,000 200,000 400,000 -- --
Long-Term Incentive (2)  2/10/2009  100,000 200,000 300,000 8,426 202,896 

 
 

 
Amounts reflect the range of potential payouts, if any, under the 2009 Annual Incentive Program for each Named Executive (1) 
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Officer, as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. The payment in 2010 for performance in 2009 is set forth 
in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table. The threshold payment under 
the Annual Incentive Program is 50% of target. However, based on Adjusted Net Income and individual performance, the 
actual payment under the Annual Incentive Program could be zero.  

 
Reflects the range of potential payouts, if any, pursuant to performance cash awards under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term 
Incentive Program, as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. Grants of three-year performance cash 
awards were made in 2009 under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program. Performance cash will be fully vested at the 
end of the performance period and paid to the officers in cash during the first fiscal quarter after the end of the performance 
period.  

 
Reflects the number of RSUs and performance shares granted to each of the Named Executive Officers on February 10, 2009 
under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program.  Performance shares were granted with a three-year Performance 
Period that ends on December 31, 2011. At the end of the Performance Period, common shares will be awarded based on 
performance compared to goals, subject to reduction for applicable withholding taxes. RSUs vest in equal installments on 
February 25, 2010, 2011 and 2012. Except for Messrs. Shivery and Robb, NU will distribute common shares in respect to 
vested RSUs on a one-for-one basis immediately upon vesting, after reduction for applicable withholding taxes. For 
Mr. Shivery, NU will distribute common shares, after reduction for applicable withholding taxes, in respect of vested RSUs in 
three approximately equal annual installments beginning the later of (i) six months after he leaves NU’s employment and 
(ii) January of the calendar year after he leaves NU’s employment. For Mr. Robb, NU will distribute common shares after 
reduction for applicable withholding taxes, in respect of vested RSUs beginning the earlier of (i) sixteen years beyond the 
vesting date or (ii) six months after he leaves NU’s employment. Holders of RSUs and performance shares are eligible to 
receive dividend equivalent units on outstanding RSUs and performance shares held by them to the same extent that 
dividends are declared and paid on NU’s common shares. Dividend equivalent units are accounted for as additional common 
shares that accrue and are distributed simultaneously with the common shares distributed in respect of the underlying RSUs 
or performance shares.  The Annual Incentive Program does not include an equity component.  

 
Reflects the grant-date fair value of RSUs and performance shares granted to the Named Executive Officers on February 10, 
2009, under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program determined pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles. 
The Annual Incentive Program does not include an equity component.  

 
EQUITY GRANTS OUTSTANDING AT DECEMBER 31, 2009  

 
The following table sets forth option and RSU grants outstanding at the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 for each of the 
Named Executive Officers. All outstanding options were fully vested as of December 31, 2009.  
 

 
NU has not granted stock options since 2002.  

 
Awards and market values of awards appearing in the table and the accompanying notes have been rounded to whole units.  

 
An aggregate of 116,669 unvested RSUs vested on February 25, 2010 (Mr. Shivery: 70,958; Mr. McHale: 15,568; Mr. Olivier: 
14,249; Mr. Butler: 11,526; and Mr. Robb: 4,368).  An additional 2,188 unvested RSUs will vest on September 4, 2010 (Mr. 
Robb).  An additional 63,810 unvested RSUs will vest on February 25, 2011 (Mr. Shivery: 35,870; Mr. McHale: 8,801; Mr. 
Olivier: 8,297; Mr. Butler: 6,474 and Mr. Robb: 4,368). An additional 20,943 unvested RSUs will vest on February 25, 2012 
(Mr. Shivery: 11,353; Mr. McHale: 2,879 Mr. Olivier: 3,016 Mr. Butler: 2,232 and Mr. Robb: 1,463).  

 
The market value of RSUs is determined by multiplying the number of RSUs by $25.79, the closing price per share of common 
shares on December 31, 2009, the last trading day of the fiscal year.  
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   Option Awards (1)  Stock Awards (2)  

Name  

Number of  
Securities  
Underlying  

Unexercised  
Options  

Exercisable  
(#)  

Option  
Exercise  

Price  
($)  

Option  
Expiration  

Date  

Number of  
Shares or Units  

of Stock that  
have not Vested  

(#) (3)  

Market Value of  
Shares or Units  

of Stock that  
have not Vested  

($)(4)  
Charles W. Shivery  29,024  $18.90  06/11/2012  118,181  3,047,882  
David R. McHale  --  --  --  27,249  702,744  
Leon J. Olivier  --  --  --  25,563  659,264  
Gregory B. Butler  --  --  --  20,233  521,797  
James B. Robb  --  --  --  12,388  319,476  

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 
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OPTIONS EXERCISED AND STOCK VESTED IN 2009  
 
The following table reports amounts realized on equity compensation during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. None of the 
Named Executive Officers exercised options in 2009. The Stock Awards columns report the vesting of RSU grants to the Named 
Executive Officers in 2009.  
 

 
Represents the amounts realized upon option exercises, which is the difference between the option exercise price and the 
market price at the time of exercise.  

 
Includes RSUs granted to our Named Executive Officers under our long-term incentive programs, including dividend 
reinvestments, as follows:  

 

 
In all cases, NU reduces the distribution of common shares by that number of shares valued in an amount sufficient to satisfy 
tax withholding obligations, which amount NU distributes in cash. Included in the value realized are values associated with 
deferred RSUs, which are also reported in the Registrant Contributions in Last Fiscal Year column of the Non-Qualified 
Deferred Compensation Table.  

 
Value realized on vesting of Mr. Robb’s 2007 RSU grant is based on $23.66 per share, the closing price of common shares on 
September 3, 2009.  Value realized on vesting for all other amounts is based on $22.40 per share, the closing price of 
common shares on February 24, 2009. This value includes the value of vested RSUs for which the distribution of common 
shares is currently deferred.  

 
PENSION BENEFITS IN 2009  

 
The Pension Benefits Table sets forth the estimated present value of accumulated retirement benefits that would be payable to each 
Named Executive Officer upon his retirement as of the first date upon which he is eligible to receive an unreduced pension benefit (see 
below).  The table distinguishes the benefits among those available through the Retirement Plan, the Supplemental Plan and any 
additional benefits available under the respective officer’s employment agreement. The Supplemental Plan provides a make whole 
benefit that is based in part on compensation that is not permitted to be recognized under a tax-qualified plan and provides a target 
benefit if the eligible officer continues his or her employment until age 60. Benefits under the Supplemental Plan are also based on 
elements of compensation that are not included under the Retirement Plan. This includes compensation equal to: (i) deferred 
compensation; (ii) the value of awards under the Annual Incentive Program for officers; and (iii) long-term incentive awards only for 
Messrs. McHale and Butler (as to each of their respective make whole benefits), the values of which are frozen at the 2001 target 
levels.  
 
The present value of accumulated benefits shown in the Pension Benefits Table was calculated as of December 31, 2009 assuming 
benefits would be paid in the form of a one-half spousal contingent annuitant option (the typical form of payment for the target benefit). 
For Mr. Olivier, who has a special retirement arrangement, we assumed that his special retirement benefit would be paid as a lump 
sum, and his Retirement Plan benefit would be paid in the form of a life annuity with a one-third spousal contingent annuitant option (the 
typical form of payment under the Retirement Plan). None of Mr. Olivier’s benefits will be provided under the Supplemental Plan. In 
addition, the present value of accrued benefits for any Named Executive Officer assumes that benefits commence at the earliest age at 
which the participant would be eligible to retire and receive unreduced benefits. Named Executive Officers are eligible to receive 
unreduced benefits upon the earlier of (a) attainment of age 65 or (b) attainment of at least age 55 when age plus service equals 85 or 
more years, except for Mr. Olivier. Mr. Olivier’s unreduced benefit is available at age 60 pursuant to his employment agreement. The 
target benefit is available for Messrs. Butler and McHale only after age 60.  Accordingly, Mr. Shivery is eligible to receive unreduced 
benefits at age 65, Messrs. McHale and Olivier are eligible to receive unreduced benefits at age 60, and Mr. Butler is eligible to receive 
unreduced benefits at age 62. Mr. Robb does not participate in the Retirement Plan nor the Supplemental Plan.  
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   Option Awards  Stock Awards  

Name  

Number of  
Shares  

Acquired on  
Exercise (#)  

Value Realized  
on  

Exercise  
($) (1)  

Number of  
Shares  

Acquired on  
Vesting  
(#) (2)  

Value Realized  
on  

Vesting  
($) (3)  

Charles W. Shivery  --  --  86,056  1,927,665  
David R. McHale  --  --  16,902  378,596  
Leon J. Olivier  --  --  15,361  344,089  
Gregory B. Butler  --  --  13,728  307,500  
James B. Robb  --  --  4,916  112,788  

(1) 

(2) 

   
Name  

2006     
Program   

2007     
Program   

2008      
Program   

   Charles W. Shivery  28,826  33,690  23,541  
   David R. McHale  4,718  6,497  5,686  
   Leon J. Olivier  4,576  5,715  5,070  
   Gregory B. Butler  4,804  4,850  4,073  
   James B. Robb  --  2,125  2,790  

(3) 
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The limitations applicable to the Retirement Plan under the Internal Revenue Code as of December 31, 2009 were used to determine 
the benefits under each plan. The accrued benefits reflect actual compensation (both salary and incentives) earned during 2009. Under 
the terms of the Supplemental Plan, annual incentives earned for services provided in a plan year are deemed to have been paid 
ratably over that plan year. For example, the March 2010 payment pursuant to the 2009 Annual Incentive Program was reflected in the 
2009 plan compensation. We determined the present value of the benefit at retirement age by using the discount rate of 5.98% under 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87 for the 2009 fiscal year end measurement (as of December 31, 2009). This 
present value assumes no pre-retirement mortality, turnover or disability. However, for the postretirement period beginning at the 
retirement age, we used the RP2000 Combined Healthy mortality table as published by the Society of Actuaries projected to 2010 with 
projection scale AA (same table used for financial reporting under FAS 87). Additional assumptions appear in Item 7 Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  
 

Pension Benefits  
 

 
Mr. Shivery’s actual service with NU totaled 7.6 years at December 31, 2009.  However, Mr. Shivery’s employment agreement 
provides for a special retirement benefit consisting of an amount equal to the difference between: (i) the equivalent of fully-
vested benefits under the Retirement Plan and the Supplemental Plan calculated by adding three years to his actual service 
and using an early retirement commencement reduction factor of two percent per year for each year Mr. Shivery’s age upon 
retirement is under age 65, if that factor yields a more favorable result to Mr. Shivery than the factors then in use under the 
Retirement Plan, and (ii) benefits otherwise payable from the Retirement Plan and the Supplemental Plan. The value of the 
additional three years of service on December 31, 2009 was approximately $2,200,220.  

 
Mr. Olivier was employed with Northeast Nuclear Energy Company, one of NU’s subsidiaries, from October of 1998 through 
March of 2001.  In connection with this employment, he received a special retirement benefit that provided credit for service 
with his previous employer, Boston Edison Company (BECO), when calculating the value of his defined benefit pension, offset 
by the pension benefit provided by BECO. The benefit, which commenced upon Mr. Olivier’s 55th birthday, provides an 
annuity of $105,966 per year in a form that provides no contingent annuitant benefit.  The present value of future payments 
under this benefit was calculated using the actuarial assumptions currently used by the Retirement Plan.  Mr. Olivier was 
rehired by NU from Entergy in September 2001.  Mr. Olivier’s current employment agreement provides for certain 
supplemental pension benefits in lieu of benefits under the Supplemental Plan, in order to provide a benefit similar to that 
provided by Entergy.  Under this arrangement, if Mr. Olivier remains continuously employed by NU until September 10, 2011 
(or terminates his employment earlier with NU’s consent), he will be eligible to receive a special benefit, subject to reduction 
for termination prior to age 65, consisting of three percent of final average compensation for each of his first 15 years of 
service since September 10, 2001, plus one percent of final average compensation for each of the second 15 years of service. 
 Alternatively, if Mr. Olivier voluntarily terminates his employment with NU after his 60th birthday, or NU terminates his 
employment earlier for any reason other than "cause" (as defined in his employment agreement, generally meaning willful and 
continued failure to perform his duties after written notice, a violation of NU’s Standards of Business Conduct or conviction of a 
felony) he is eligible to receive upon retirement a lump sum payment of $2,050,000 in lieu of benefits under the Supplemental 
Plan and the benefit described in the preceding sentence. These supplemental pension benefits will be offset by the value of 
any benefits he receives from the Retirement Plan.  Because Mr. Olivier attained age 60 during 2008, amounts reported in the 
table assume the termination of his employment on December 31, 2009, and payment of the lump sum benefit of $2,194,293, 
offset by Retirement Plan benefits.  
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Name  Plan Name  

Number of Years  
Credited  

Service (#)  

Present Value of  
Accumulated  

Benefit ($)  

Payments  
During Last  
Fiscal Year  

($)  
Charles W. Shivery (1)  Retirement Plan  7.6  265,667   --  

Supplemental Plan  7.6  5,295,389   --  
Other Special Benefit  10.6  2,200,220   --  

David R. McHale  Retirement Plan  28.3  576,214   --  
Supplemental Plan  28.3  2,762,825   --  

Leon J. Olivier (2)  Retirement Plan  10.8  373,692   --  
Supplemental Plan  8.3  --   --  
Other Special Benefit  8.3  1,820,601   --  
Other Special Benefit  31.3  1,280,779  105,966  

Gregory B. Butler  Retirement Plan  13.0  269,241   --  
Supplemental Plan  13.0  1,435,036   --  

James B. Robb  Retirement Plan   --               --   --  
Supplemental Plan   --               --   --

(1) 

(2) 
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NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION IN 2009  

 

 
Reflects base salary deferrals by the Named Executive Officers under the 2009 Deferral Plan.  Named Executive Officers who 
participate in the Deferral Plan are provided with a variety of investment opportunities, which the individual can modify and 
reallocate at any time.  Fund gains and losses are updated daily by our recordkeeper, Fidelity Investments.  Contributions by 
the Named Executive Officer are vested at all times; however, the employer matching contribution vests after three years and 
will be forfeited if the executive’s employment terminates, other than for retirement, prior to vesting.    

 
Includes employer matching contributions made to the Deferral Plan as of December 31, 2009 and posted on January 31, 
2010, as reported in the All Other Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table (Mr. Shivery: $23,700; 
Mr. Olivier: $9,150; and Mr. Robb: $4,650).  The employer matching contribution is deemed to be invested in NU common 
shares but is paid in cash at the time of distribution.  All other amounts relate to the value of common shares, the distribution of 
which was automatically deferred upon vesting of underlying RSUs pursuant to the terms of the respective Long-Term 
Incentive Programs, calculated using $22.40 per share, the closing price of the common shares on February 24, 2009, the last 
trading day preceding the vesting date of February 25, 2009.  For more information, see the footnotes to the Options 
Exercised and Stock Vested Table.  

 
Includes the total market value of Deferral Plan balances at December 31, 2009 plus the value of vested RSUs for which the 
distribution of common shares is currently deferred, based on $25.79 per share, the closing price of NU’s common shares on 
December 31, 2009.  

 
POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE OF CO NTROL  

 
In the event of a change of control, the NEO’s are each entitled to receive compensation and benefits following termination of 
employment without "cause" or upon termination of employment by the executive for "good reason," either within 24 months following 
the change of control.  The Compensation Committee believes that termination for good reason is conceptually the same as termination 
"without cause" and, in the absence of this provision, potential acquirers would have an incentive to constructively terminate executives 
to avoid paying severance.  Termination for "cause" generally means termination due to a felony conviction; acts of fraud, 
embezzlement, or theft in the course of employment; intentional, wrongful damage to company property; gross misconduct or gross 
negligence in the course of employment; or a material breach of obligations under the agreement. Termination for "good reason" 
generally is deemed to occur following an assignment to duties inconsistent with his position, a failure by the employer to satisfy 
material terms of the agreement, a reduction in the compensation or benefits of the executive officer (a material reduction in 
compensation or benefits for Messrs. Olivier and Robb under the terms of the Special Severance Program for Officers of Northeast 
Utilities System Companies (SSP)), or the transfer of the executive to an office location more than 50 miles from his or her principal 
place of business immediately prior to a change of control.  
 
Generally, a "change of control" means a change in ownership or control of NU effected through (i) the acquisition of 20% or more of 
the combined voting power of common shares or other voting securities, (ii) a change in the majority of NU’s Board of Trustees over a 
24-month period, unless approved by a majority of the incumbent Trustees, (iii) certain reorganizations, mergers or consolidations 
where substantially all of the persons who were the beneficial owners of the outstanding NU common shares immediately prior to such 
business combination do not beneficially own more than 50% of the voting power of the resulting business entity, and (iv) complete 
liquidation or dissolution of Northeast Utilities, or a sale or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of Northeast Utilities other 
than to an entity with respect to which following completion of the transaction more than 50% (75% for Messrs. Olivier and Robb) of 
common shares or other voting securities is then owned by all or substantially all of the persons who were the beneficial owners of 
common shares and other voting securities immediately prior to such transaction.  
 
The discussion and tables below reflect the amount of compensation that would be payable to each of the Named Executive Officers in 
the event of: (i) termination of employment for cause; (ii) voluntary termination; (iii) involuntary not-for-cause termination (or voluntary 
termination for good reason); (iv) termination in the event of disability; (v) death; and (vi) termination following a change of control.  The 
amounts shown assume that each termination was effective as of December 31, 2009, the last business day of the fiscal year as 
required under Securities and Exchange Commission reporting requirements.  
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Aggregate  
Withdrawals/  

Distributions ($)  

Aggregate  
Balance at  
Last FYE  

($) (3)  
Charles W. Shivery  31,050  1,951,366  819,376  (68,253)  6,690,943  
David R. McHale  --  52,846  35,015  --    298,328  
Leon J. Olivier  137,500  60,398  192,229  (30,312)  1,660,946  
Gregory B. Butler  --  53,807  53,469  (42,735)  505,556  
James B. Robb  8,000  4,650  32,488  --    73,267  

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 9358 of 9808



 
 

Payments Upon Termination  
 
Regardless of the manner in which the employment of a Named Executive Officer terminates, he is entitled to receive certain amounts 
earned during his term of employment.  Such amounts include:  
 

Vested RSUs;  
 

Amounts contributed under the Deferral Plan;  
 

Vested matching contributions under the Deferral Plan;  
 

Pay for unused vacation; and  
 

Amounts accrued and vested through the Retirement Plan and the 401k Plan.  
 

Post-Employment Compensation: Termination for Cause   
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

I. 

    
Type of Payment  

Shivery  
($)  

McHale  
($)  

Olivier  
($)  

Butler  
($)  

Robb  
($)  

                     
   Incentive Programs                 
   Annual Incentives  -- -- -- -- --
      Performance Cash -- -- -- -- --
   Performance Shares  -- -- -- -- --
   RSUs (1)  6,281,838 298,328 406,038 484,670 --
   Pension and Deferred Compensation                 
   Retirement Plan (2)  245,892 296,990 360,719 162,160 --
   Supplemental Plan  -- -- -- -- --
   Special Retirement Benefit (3)  -- -- 1,689,281 -- --
   Deferral Plan (4)  409,106 -- 1,254,908 20,886 24,226 
   Other Benefits                 
   Health and Welfare Cash Value  -- -- -- -- --
   Perquisites  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payments                 
   Excise Tax & Gross-Up  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Non-Compete  

 Agreement  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Liquidated  

 Damages  
-- -- -- -- --

   Total  6,936,836 595,318 3,710,946 667,716 24,226 
 

Represents values of all RSUs granted to the Named Executive Officers under our long-term incentive programs that, as of 
the end of 2009, had been deferred upon vesting and remained deferred.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of benefits payable from the Retirement Plan to each Named 
Executive Officer at the earliest time that the payment of pension benefits can commence.  The earliest benefit 
commencement times are different for each NEO based on plan provisions and age, as follows:  Messrs. Shivery and Olivier: 
immediately; Messrs. Butler and McHale: age 55.  The benefits are payable as annuities, and the present values are 
calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.    

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of the amounts payable to the Named Executive Officers solely as 
the result of provisions in employment agreements which are in addition to amounts payable by the Retirement Plan or the 
Supplemental Plan.  Pursuant to the employment agreement with Mr. Olivier, a lump sum payment of $2,050,000 offset by the 
value of benefits from the Retirement Plan, would be payable to Mr. Olivier upon termination.  Pension amounts reflected in 
the table are present values at the end of 2009 of benefits payable to each NEO upon termination.    

 
Represents the Deferral Plan account balance of each Named Executive Officer accrued as of the end of 2009.  
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Post-Employment Compensation: Voluntary Termination   

 
II. 

    
Type of Payment  

Shivery  
($)  

McHale  
($)  

Olivier  
($)  

Butler  
($)  

Robb  
($)  

   Incentive Programs                 
   Annual Incentives (1)  1,645,650 555,728 558,415 414,009 316,500 
   Performance Cash (2)  3,187,500 367,875 684,011 316,870 --
   Performance Shares (3)  295,720 -- 78,573 -- --
      RSUs (4) 7,831,844 298,328 717,303 484,670 --
   Pension and Deferred Compensation                 
   Retirement Plan (5)  245,892 296,990 360,719 162,160 --
   Supplemental Plan (6)  5,499,657 -- -- -- --
   Special Retirement Benefit (7)  2,273,214 -- 1,833,574 -- --
   Deferral Plan (8)  409,106 -- 1,254,908 20,886 24,226 
   Other Benefits                 
   Health and Welfare Benefits (9)  111,089 -- -- -- --
   Perquisites  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payments                 
   Excise Tax & Gross-Up  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Non-Compete  

  Agreement  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Liquidated  

  Damages  
-- -- -- -- --

    Total 21,499,672 1,518,921 5,487,503 1,398,595 340,726 
 

Represents the actual 2009 annual incentive award for each Named Executive Officer, determined as described in the 
"Compensation Discussion and Analysis" above.    

 
Represents the actual performance cash award under the 2007 – 2009 Long-Term Incentive Program for each Named 
Executive Officer.  Also includes, for Messrs. Shivery and Olivier, prorated performance cash awards under the 2008 – 2010 
and 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Programs, because each of them would be considered to be a "retiree" under those 
programs.  Amounts are prorated for time worked in each three-year performance period, determined as described in the 
"Compensation Discussion and Analysis" above.  

 
Includes, for Messrs. Shivery and Olivier, the prorated performance share award under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive 
Program, because each of them would be considered to be a "retiree" under those programs.  Amounts are prorated for time 
worked in the three-year performance period, determined as described in the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" above. 

 
Represents values of all RSUs granted to the Named Executive Officers under our long-term incentive programs that, as of 
the end of 2009, had been deferred upon vesting and remained deferred, or that would vest upon voluntary termination of 
employment according to their program grant rules.  Under the terms of each RSU grant, unvested RSUs that would have 
vested on February 25, 2010, would vest for Messrs. Shivery and Olivier based on time worked since February 25, 2009, 
because each of them would be considered to be a "retiree" under those programs.  The values were calculated by multiplying 
the number of RSUs by $25.79, the closing price of NU common shares on December 31, 2009.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of benefits payable from the Retirement Plan to each Named 
Executive Officer at the earliest time pension benefits can begin.  The earliest benefit commencement times are different for 
each NEO based on plan provisions and age, as follows:  Messrs. Shivery and Olivier: immediately; Messrs. Butler and 
McHale: age 55.  The benefits are payable as annuities, and the present values are calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 
to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present value at the end of 2009 of the benefit payable from the Supplemental Plan to Mr. Shivery 
upon termination.  The benefit is payable as an annuity, and the present value was calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to 
the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of the amounts payable to the Named Executive Officers solely as 
the result of provisions in employment agreements, which are in addition to amounts payable by the Retirement Plan or the 
Supplemental Plan.  Pursuant to the employment agreement with Mr. Shivery, pension benefits available upon voluntary 
termination were calculated with the addition of three years of service.  Pursuant to the employment agreement with 
Mr. Olivier, a lump sum payment of $2,194,293, offset by the value of benefits from the Retirement Plan, would be payable to 
Mr. Olivier upon voluntary termination.  Pension amounts reflected in the table are present values at the end of 2009 of 
benefits payable to each Named Executive Officer upon termination.  Mr. Shivery’s benefit would be paid as an annuity 
calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  
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Represents the Deferral Plan account balance of each Named Executive Officer accrued as of the end of 2009.  
 

Represents the costs estimated by our benefits consultants as of the end of 2009 of providing post-employment welfare 
benefits to Mr. Shivery beyond those benefits that would be provided to a nonexecutive employee upon involuntary 
termination.  Mr. Shivery is entitled to receive retiree health benefits under his employment agreement.  To the extent these 
benefits are provided in excess of those provided to employees in general, Mr. Shivery would receive payments to offset the 
taxes incurred on such benefits.  

 
Post-Employment Compensation:  Involuntary Terminat ion, Not for Cause  

 

(8) 

(9) 

III. 

    
Type of Payment  

Shivery  
($)  

McHale  
($)  

Olivier  
($)  

Butler  
($)  

Robb  
($)  

   Incentive Programs                 
   Annual Incentives (1)  1,645,650 555,728 558,415 414,009 316,500 
   Performance Cash (2)  3,187,500 367,875 684,011 622,111 --
   Performance Shares (3)  295,720 -- 78,573 58,146 --
   RSUs (4)  9,329,719 298,328 717,303 736,445 --
   Pension and Deferred Compensation                 
   Retirement Plan (5)  245,892 296,990 360,719 397,831 --
   Supplemental Plan (6)  5,499,657 -- -- -- --
   Special Retirement Benefit (7)  3,788,690 3,587,502 1,833,574 2,266,014 --
   Deferral Plan (8)  409,106 -- 1,254,908 20,886 24,226 
   Other Benefits                 
   Health and Welfare Benefits (9)  123,912 41,890 -- 17,078 --
   Perquisites (10)  7,000 7,000 -- 7,000 --
   Separation Payments                 
   Excise Tax & Gross-Up  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Non-Compete  

  Agreement (11)  2,070,000 865,457 -- 671,531 300,000 
   Separation Payment for Liquidated  

  Damages (12)  2,070,000 865,457 -- 671,531 300,000 
   Total  28,672,846 6,886,226 5,487,503 5,882,582 940,726 
 

Represents the actual 2009 annual incentive award for each Named Executive Officer, determined as described in the 
"Compensation Discussion and Analysis" above.  

 
Represents the actual performance cash award under the 2007 – 2009 Long-Term Incentive Program for each Named 
Executive Officer.  Also includes, for Messrs. Shivery, Olivier and Butler, prorated performance cash awards under the 2008 – 
2010 and 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Programs.  Amounts are prorated for time worked in each three-year performance 
period, because each of them would be considered to be a "retiree" under those programs, determined as described in the 
"Compensation Discussion and Analysis" above.  

 
Includes, for Messrs. Shivery, Olivier and Butler, a prorated performance share award under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term 
Incentive Program.  Amounts are prorated for time worked in the  three-year performance period, because each of them would 
be considered to be a "retiree" under those programs, determined as described in the "Compensation Discussion and 
Analysis" above.  

 
Represents values of all RSUs granted to the Named Executive Officers under our long-term incentive programs that, as of 
the end of 2009, had been deferred upon vesting and remained deferred, or that had not yet vested according to their program 
grant vesting schedules.  Under the terms of each RSU grant, for the Named Executive Officers other than Mr. Shivery and 
Mr. Robb, unvested RSUs that would have vested on February 25, 2010, vest based on time worked since February 25, 2009, 
because each of them would be considered to be a "retiree" under those programs.  The values were calculated by multiplying 
the number of RSUs by $25.79, the closing price of NU common shares on December 31, 2009.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of benefits payable from the Retirement Plan to each Named 
Executive Officer at the earliest time pension benefits can begin.  The earliest benefit commencement times are different for 
each NEO based on plan provisions and age, as follows:  Messrs. Shivery and Olivier: immediately; Messrs. Butler and 
McHale: age 55.  The benefits are payable as annuities, and the present values are calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 
to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present value at the end of 2009 of the benefit payable from the Supplemental Plan to Mr. Shivery 
upon termination.  The benefit is payable as an annuity, and the present value was calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to 
the Pension Benefits Table above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of the amounts payable to the Named Executive Officers solely as 
the result of provisions in employment agreements, which are in addition to amounts payable by the Retirement Plan or the 
Supplemental Plan.  Pursuant to the employment agreements with Messrs. McHale and Butler, pension benefits available  
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upon an involuntary termination other than for cause were calculated with the addition of two years of age and service. 
 Pursuant to the employment agreement with Mr. Shivery, pension benefits available upon an involuntary termination other 
than for cause were calculated with the addition of two years of age and five years of service.  Pursuant to the employment 
agreement with Mr. Olivier, a lump sum payment of $2,194,293, offset by the value of benefits from the Retirement Plan, 
would be payable to Mr. Olivier upon an involuntary termination other than for cause.  Pension amounts reflected in the table 
are present values at the end of 2009 of benefits payable to each Named Executive Officer upon termination.  Except for the 
benefit payable to Mr. Olivier, all benefits are annuities calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table 
appearing above.  

 
Represents the Deferral Plan account balance of each Named Executive Officer accrued as of the end of 2009.  

 
Represents the costs estimated by our benefits consultants as of the end of 2009 of providing post-employment welfare 
benefits to the Named Executive Officers beyond those benefits that would be provided to a nonexecutive employee upon 
involuntary termination.  Each of Messrs. Shivery, McHale and Butler is entitled to receive active health benefits and the cash 
value of company-paid active long-term disability and life insurance benefits for two years under the terms of his respective 
employment agreement.  Each of Messrs. Shivery and Olivier is entitled to receive retiree health benefits under his respective 
employment agreement.  For all health and welfare benefits provided in excess of those provided to employees in general, 
executives receive payments to offset the taxes incurred on such benefits.  Six months of company-paid COBRA benefits are 
generally made available to all employees whose employment terminates involuntarily without cause.  As a result, the amount 
reported in the table for Mr. Shivery represents (a) the value of 18 months of employer contributions toward active health, long-
term disability, and life insurance benefits, plus (b) the value of lifetime retiree health coverage, plus (c) tax gross-up payments 
thereon.  The amounts reported in the table for Messrs. McHale and Butler represent (a) the value of 18 months of employer 
contributions toward active health, long-term disability, and life insurance benefits, plus (b) tax gross-up payments thereon. 
 The amount reported in the table for Mr. Olivier represents (a) the value of lifetime retiree health coverage, plus (b) tax gross-
up payments thereon.  

 
Represents the cost of reimbursing fees for financial planning and tax preparation services to Messrs. Shivery, McHale, and 
Butler for two years.  

 
Represents payments made as consideration for agreements by each of Messrs. Shivery, McHale, Butler, and Robb not to 
compete with NU or its subsidiaries following termination.  Employment or other agreements with these Named Executive 
Officers provide for a lump-sum payment in an amount equal to the sum (one-half of the sum for Mr. Robb) of their annual 
salary plus their annual incentive award at target.  These payments do not replace, offset or otherwise affect the calculation or 
payment of the annual incentive awards.  

 
Represents severance payments to Messrs. Shivery, McHale, Butler and Robb paid in addition to the non-compete agreement 
payments described in note (11).  This payment is an amount equal to the sum (one-half of the sum for Mr. Robb) of their 
actual base salary paid in 2009 plus annual incentive award at target.  These payments do not replace, offset or otherwise 
affect the calculation or payment of the annual incentive awards.  

 
Post-Employment Compensation: Termination Upon Disa bility  

 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

(11) 

(12) 

IV. 

    
Type of Payment  

Shivery  
($)  

McHale  
($)  

Olivier  
($)  

Butler  
($)  

Robb  
($)  

   Incentive Programs                 
   Annual Incentives (1)  1,645,650 555,728 558,415 414,009 316,500 
   Performance Cash (2)  3,187,500 749,125 684,011 622,111 200,000 
   Performance Shares (3)  292,792 74,259 77,795 57,570 37,720 
   RSUs (4)  7,831,844 638,398 717,303 736,445 95,415 
   Pension and Deferred Compensation                 
   Retirement Plan (5)  265,667 831,895 360,719 269,240 --
   Supplemental Plan (6)  5,295,389 3,963,775 -- 1,435,035 --
   Special Retirement Benefit (7)  2,200,220 -- 1,833,574 -- --
   Deferral Plan (8)  409,106 -- 1,254,908 20,886 73,267 
   Other Benefits                 
   Health and Welfare Benefits (9)  111,089 -- -- -- --
   Perquisites  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payments                 
   Excise Tax & Gross-Up  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Non-Compete  

 Agreement  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Liquidated  

  Damages  -- -- -- -- --
   Total  21,239,257 6,813,180 5,486,725 3,555,296 722,902 
 

Represents the actual 2009 annual incentive award for each Named Executive Officer, determined as described in the 
Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.  
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Represents the actual performance cash award under the 2007 – 2009 Long-Term Incentive Program determined as 
described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above, plus performance cash awards at target under each of the 
2008 – 2010 Long-Term Incentive Program and 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program prorated for time worked in each 
three-year performance period.  

 
Represents the performance share award at target under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program prorated for time 
worked in the three-year performance period, as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.  

   
Represents values of all RSUs granted to the Named Executive Officers under our long-term incentive programs that, as of 
the end of 2009, had been deferred upon vesting and remained deferred, or that had not yet vested according to their program 
grant vesting schedules.  Under the terms of each RSU grant, unvested RSUs that would have vested on February 25, 2010, 
vest based on time worked since February 25, 2009.  The values were calculated by multiplying the number of RSUs by 
$25.79, the closing price of NU common shares on December 31, 2009.  

 
Under our Long-Term Disability (LTD) program, disabled participants in the Retirement Plan are allowed to continue to accrue 
service in the Retirement Plan during the period when they are receiving disability payments. Disability payments stop when 
the LTD participant elects to commence pension payments, but not later than age 65.  We have assumed similar treatment in 
the development of the pension amounts reported in this table.  For purposes of valuing the pension benefits, we have 
assumed that each Named Executive Officer would remain on LTD until the executive’s first unreduced combined pension 
benefit age.  All payments would consist of life annuities calculated using the same assumptions detailed in the notes to the 
Pension Benefits Table.  Therefore, the numbers shown represent the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of benefits 
payable from the Retirement Plan to each Named Executive Officer, assuming termination of employment at the earliest 
unreduced benefit age for the combined total of all pension benefits.  The earliest unreduced benefit ages are different for 
each NEO based on employment agreement provisions and years of service, as follows:  Mr. Shivery: age 65; Mr. McHale: 
age 55; Mr. Olivier: immediately; and Mr. Butler: age 62.  The benefits are payable as annuities, and the present values are 
calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present value at the end of 2009 of the benefit payable from the Supplemental Plan to each NEO 
other than Mr. Olivier under the assumptions discussed in note (5).  The benefit is payable as an annuity, and the present 
value was calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of the amounts payable to the Named Executive Officers under the 
assumptions discussed in note (5), solely as the result of provisions in employment agreements, which are in addition to 
amounts payable by the Retirement Plan or the Supplemental Plan.  Pursuant to the employment agreement with Mr. Shivery, 
pension benefits available upon disability termination were calculated with the addition of three years of service.  Pursuant to 
the employment agreement with Mr. Olivier, a lump sum payment of $2,194,293, offset by the value of benefits from the 
Retirement Plan, would be payable to Mr. Olivier upon disability termination.  Mr. Shivery’s benefit would be paid as an annuity 
calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the Deferral Plan account balance of each Named Executive Officer accrued as of the end of 2009.  

 
Represents the costs estimated by our benefits consultants as of the end of 2009 of providing post-employment welfare 
benefits to Messrs. Shivery and Olivier beyond those benefits that would be provided to a nonexecutive employee upon 
disability termination.  Each of Messrs. Shivery and Olivier is entitled to receive retiree health benefits under his respective 
employment agreement.  To the extent these benefits are provided in excess of those provided to employees in general, 
Messrs. Shivery and Olivier would receive payments to offset the taxes incurred on such benefits.  
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Post -Employment Compensation:  Death  
 
V. 

    
Type of Payment  

Shivery  
($)  

McHale  
($)  

Olivier  
($)  

Butler  
($)  

Robb  
($)  

   Incentive Programs                 
   Annual Incentives (1)  1,645,650 555,728 558,415 414,009 316,500 
   Performance Cash (2)  3,187,500 749,125 684,011 622,111 200,000 
   Performance Shares (3)  292,792 74,259 77,795 57,570 37,720 
   RSUs (4)  7,831,844 638,398 717,303 736,445 95,415 
   Pension and Deferred Compensation                 
   Retirement Plan (5)  124,181 1,171,164 301,203 159,074 --
   Supplemental Plan (5)  2,777,456 3,933,933 -- 1,138,176 --
   Special Retirement Benefit (6)  1,148,027 -- 1,893,090 -- --
   Deferral Plan (7)  409,106 -- 1,254,908 20,886 73,267 
   Other Benefits                 
   Health and Welfare Benefits (8)  58,514 -- -- -- --
   Perquisites  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payments                 
   Excise Tax & Gross-Up  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Non-Compete  

  Agreement  -- -- -- -- --
   Separation Payment for Liquidated  

    Damages  -- -- - -- --
   Total  17,475,070 7,122,607 5,486,725 3,148,271 722,902 
 

Represents the actual 2009 annual incentive award for each Named Executive Officer, determined as described in the 
Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.  

 
Represents the actual performance cash award under the 2007 – 2009 Long-Term Incentive Program determined as 
described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above, plus performance cash awards at target under each of the 
2008 – 2010 Long-Term Incentive Program and the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program prorated for time worked in 
each three-year performance period.  

 
Represents the performance share award at target under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program prorated for time 
worked in the three-year performance period, as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.  

   
Represents values of all RSUs granted to the Named Executive Officers under our long-term incentive programs that, as of 
the end of 2009, had been deferred upon vesting and remained deferred, or that had not yet vested according to their program 
grant vesting schedules.  Under the terms of each RSU grant, unvested RSUs that would have vested on February 25, 2010, 
vest based on time worked since February 25, 2009.  The values were calculated by multiplying the number of RSUs by 
$25.79, the closing price of NU common shares on December 31, 2009.  

 
Represents the lump sum present value of pension payments from the Retirement Plan and the Supplemental Plan to the 
surviving spouse of each Named Executive Officer.  The benefits are payable as annuities, and the present values are 
calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of the amounts payable to the surviving spouses of the Named 
Executive Officers, solely as the result of provisions in employment agreements, which are in addition to amounts payable by 
the Retirement Plan or the Supplemental Plan.  Pursuant to the employment agreement with Mr. Shivery, pension benefits 
available upon death were calculated with the addition of three years of service.  Pursuant to the employment agreement with 
Mr. Olivier, a lump sum payment of $2,194,293, offset by the value of benefits from the Retirement Plan, would be payable to 
Mr. Olivier’s spouse upon death.  Pension amounts reflected in the table are present values at the end of 2009 of benefits 
payable immediately to each Named Executive Officer’s surviving spouse.  Mr. Shivery’s benefit would be paid as an annuity 
calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the Deferral Plan account balance of each Named Executive Officer accrued as of the end of 2009.  

 
Represents the costs estimated by our benefits consultants as of the end of 2009 of providing post-employment welfare 
benefits to the surviving spouses of Messrs. Shivery and Olivier beyond those benefits that would be provided to a 
nonexecutive employee’s spouse upon the employee’s death.  The surviving spouses of Messrs. Shivery and Olivier are 
entitled to receive retiree health benefits under the employment agreements.  To the extent these benefits are taxable to the 
surviving spouses, they would receive payments to offset the taxes incurred on such benefits.  
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Payments Made Upon a Change of Control  
 
The employment or other agreements with Messrs. Shivery, McHale, Olivier, Butler, and Robb include change of control benefits. 
Mr. Olivier participates in the SSP, which provides benefits upon termination of employment in connection with a change of control. The 
employment agreements and the SSP are binding on NU and, except for Mr. Shivery’s agreement, on certain of NU’s majority-owned 
subsidiaries, including CL&P. The terms of the various employment agreements are substantially similar, except for the agreement with 
Mr. Olivier, which refers instead to the change of control provisions of the SSP, and the agreement with Mr. Robb.     
 
Pursuant to the employment or other agreements and under the terms of the SSP, if an executive officer’s employment terminates 
following a change of control, other than termination of employment for "cause" (as defined in the employment agreements, generally 
meaning willful and continued failure to perform his duties after written notice, a violation of our Standards of Business Conduct or 
conviction of a felony), or by reason of death or disability), or if the executive officer terminates his or her employment for "good 
reason" (as defined in the employment agreements, generally meaning an assignment to duties inconsistent with his position, a failure 
by the employer to satisfy material terms of the agreement or the transfer of the executive to an office location more than 50 miles from 
his or her principal place of business immediately prior to a change of control), then the executive officer will receive the benefits listed 
below, which receipt is conditioned upon delivery of a binding release of all legal claims against the NU and its subsidiaries:  
 

A lump sum severance payment of two-times (one-times for Mr. Olivier and one-half times for Mr. Robb) the sum of the 
executive’s base salary plus all annual awards that would be payable for the relevant year determined at target (Base 
Compensation);  

 
As consideration for a non-competition and non-solicitation covenant, a lump sum payment in an amount equal to the 
Base Compensation (one-half times Base Compensation for Mr. Robb);  

 
Active health benefits continuation, provided for three years (two years for Mr. Olivier, none for Mr. Robb);  

 
Retirement health coverage (Messrs. Shivery and Olivier), and for Messrs. McHale and Butler if the addition of three 
years of age and service would make the executive eligible under our retirement health plan;  

 
Benefits as if provided under the Supplemental Plan, notwithstanding eligibility requirements for the Target Benefit, 
including favorable actuarial reductions and the addition of three years to the executive’s age and years of service as 
compared to benefits available upon voluntary termination of employment (except for Mr. Olivier, whose benefits are 
described below, and Mr. Robb, who does not participate in the Supplemental Plan);  

 
Automatic vesting and distribution of common shares in respect of all unvested RSUs; and  

 
A lump sum payment in an amount equal to the excise tax charged to the executive under the Internal Revenue Code as 
a result of the receipt of any change of control payments, plus tax gross-up (except for Mr. Olivier and Mr. Robb).  

 
The summaries of the employment agreements above do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by the actual 
terms and provisions of the employment agreements, copies of which have been filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K .  
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Post-Employment Compensation: Termination Following  a Change of Control  

 
VI. 

    
Type of Payment  

Shivery  
($)  

McHale  
($)  

Olivier  
($)  

Butler  
($)  

Robb  
($)  

   Incentive Programs                 
   Annual Incentives (1)  1,645,650  555,728  558,415  414,009  316,500  
   Performance Cash (2)  4,740,000  1,136,625  1,070,469  927,352  400,000  
   Performance Shares (3)  878,375  222,777  233,386  172,710  113,161  
   RSUs (4)  9,329,719  1,001,072  1,065,302  1,006,468  319,476  
   Pension and Deferred Compensation                 
   Retirement Plan (5)  245,892  296,990  360,719  162,160  --  
   Supplemental Plan (6)  5,499,657  --  --  --  --  
   Special Retirement Benefit (7)  4,546,428  3,731,373  1,833,574  2,784,513  --  
   Deferral Plan (8)  409,106  --  1,254,908  20,886  73,267  
   Other Benefits                 
   Health and Welfare Benefits (9)  139,895  259,572  6,773  30,191  --  
   Perquisites (10)  8,500  8,500  --  8,500  --  
   Separation Payments                 
   Excise Tax and Gross-Up (11)  3,506,888  3,244,828  --  2,217,997  --  
   Separation Payment for Non-Compete  

    Agreement (12)  2,070,000  865,457  907,501  671,531  300,000  
   Separation Payment for  

    Liquidated Damages (13)  4,140,001  1,730,914  907,501  1,343,062  300,000  
   Total  37,160,111  13,053,836  8,198,548  9,759,379  1,822,404  
 

Represents the actual 2009 annual incentive award for each Named Executive Officer, determined as described in the 
Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.  

 
Represents the actual performance cash award under the 2007 – 2009 Long-Term Incentive Program for each Named 
Executive Officer, determined as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above, plus performance cash 
awards at target for each Named Executive Officer under each of the 2008 – 2010 Long-Term Incentive Program and the 2009 
– 2011 Long-Term Incentive Program.    

 
Represents the performance share award at target for each Named Executive Officer under the 2009 – 2011 Long-Term 
Incentive Program, determined as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.  

   
Represents values of all RSUs granted to the Named Executive Officers under our long-term incentive programs that, as of 
the end of 2009, had been deferred upon vesting and remained deferred, or that had not yet vested according to their program 
grant vesting schedules. The values were calculated by multiplying the number of RSUs by $25.79, the closing price of NU 
common shares on December 31, 2009.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of benefits payable from the Retirement Plan to each Named 
Executive Officer at the earliest time pension benefits can begin.  The earliest benefit commencement times are different for 
each NEO based on plan provisions and age, as follows:  Messrs. Shivery: immediately; Messrs. Butler and McHale: age 55. 
 The benefits are payable as annuities, and the present values are calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension 
Benefits Table appearing  above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present value at the end of 2009 of the benefit payable from the Supplemental Plan to Mr. Shivery 
upon termination.  The benefit is payable as an annuity, and the present value was calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to 
the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  

 
Represents the actuarial present values at the end of 2009 of the amounts payable to the Named Executive Officers solely as 
the result of provisions in employment agreements, which are in addition to amounts payable by the Retirement Plan or the 
Supplemental Plan.  Pursuant to the employment agreements with Messrs. McHale and Butler, pension benefits available 
upon termination following a Change of Control were calculated with the addition of three years of age and service.  Pursuant 
to the employment agreement with Mr. Shivery, pension benefits available upon termination following a Change of Control 
were calculated with the addition of three years of age and six years of service.  Pursuant to the employment agreement with 
Mr. Butler, the value of the Supplemental Plan and Special Retirement Benefits will be paid as a single lump sum rather than 
as an annuity if his termination date occurs within two years following a change in control that qualifies under Section 1.409A 
of the Treasury Regulations.  Pursuant to the employment agreement with Mr. Olivier, a lump sum payment of $2,194,293, 
offset by the value of benefits from the Retirement Plan, would be payable to Mr. Olivier upon termination following a Change 
in Control.  Pension amounts reflected in the table are present values at the end of 2009 of benefits payable to each Named 
Executive Officer upon termination Except for the benefits payable to Messrs. Butler and Olivier, all benefits are annuities 
calculated as described in Notes 1 and 2 to the Pension Benefits Table appearing above.  
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Represents the Deferral Plan account balance of each Named Executive Officer accrued as of the end of 2009.  
 

Represents the costs estimated by our benefits consultants as of the end of 2009 of providing post-employment welfare 
benefits to the Named Executive Officers beyond those benefits that would be provided to a nonexecutive employee upon 
involuntary termination.  Each of Messrs. Shivery, McHale and Butler is entitled to receive active health benefits and the cash 
value of company-paid active long-term disability and life insurance benefits for three years under the terms of his respective 
employment agreement.  Each of Messrs. Shivery and Olivier is entitled to receive retiree health benefits under his respective 
employment agreement.  Under his respective employment agreement, each of Messrs. McHale and Butler is entitled to 
receive retiree health benefits if adding three years of age and service would have made the executive eligible under the 
Retirement Plan.  Mr. Olivier participates in the SSP and is eligible for two years of active health benefits continuation.  For all 
health and welfare benefits provided in excess of those provided to employees in general, executives receive payments to 
offset the taxes incurred on such benefits.  Six months of company-paid COBRA benefits are generally made available to all 
employees whose employment terminates involuntarily without cause.  As a result, the amounts reported in the table for 
Messrs. Shivery, McHale, and Butler represent (a) the value of 30 months of employer contributions toward active health, long-
term disability, and life insurance benefits, plus (b) the value of lifetime retiree health coverage, plus (c) tax gross-up payments 
thereon.  The amount reported in the table for Mr. Olivier represents (a) the value of 18 months of employer contributions 
toward active health benefits, plus (b) the value of lifetime retiree health coverage, plus (c) tax gross-up payments thereon.    

 
Represents the cost of reimbursing fees for financial planning and tax preparation services to Messrs. Shivery, McHale, and 
Butler for three years.  

 
Represents payments made to offset costs to Messrs. Shivery, McHale, and Butler associated with certain excise taxes under 
Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code.  Employees may be subject to certain excise taxes under Section 280G if they 
receive payments and benefits related to a termination following a Change of Control that exceed specified Internal Revenue 
Service limits.  Employment agreements with each Named Executive Officer except Mr. Olivier and Mr. Robb provide for a 
grossed-up reimbursement of these excise taxes. The amounts in the table are based on the Section 280G excise tax rate of 
20%, the statutory federal income tax withholding rate of 35%, the Connecticut state income tax rate of 6.5%, and the 
Medicare tax rate of 1.45%.  

 
Represents payments made as consideration for each Named Executive Officer’s agreement not to compete with the 
company following termination of employment. This payment equals the sum (one-half of the sum for Mr. Robb) of the actual 
base salary paid in 2009 plus annual incentive award at target.  Agreements with each Named Executive Officer provide for a 
lump-sum payment equal to their annual salary plus their annual incentive award at target.  These payments do not replace, 
offset or otherwise affect the calculation or payment of the annual incentive awards.  

 
Represents severance payments to each Named Executive Officer paid in addition to the non-compete agreement payments 
described in note (12).  For Messrs. Shivery, McHale, and Butler, this payment equals two-times the sum of the actual base 
salary paid in 2009 plus annual incentive award at target.  For Mr. Olivier, this payment equals the sum of the actual base 
salary paid in 2009 plus annual incentive award at target.  For Mr. Robb this payment equals one-half of the sum of his actual 
base salary paid in 2009 plus annual incentive award at target.  These payments do not replace, offset or otherwise affect the 
calculation or payment of the annual incentive awards.  

 
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and  Management and Related Stockholder Matters  

 
NU  
 
In addition to the information below under "Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans," incorporated herein 
by reference is the information contained in the sections "Common Share Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" and "Common 
Share Ownership of Trustees and Management" of NU’s definitive proxy statement for solicitation of proxies, expected to be filed with 
the SEC on or about April 1, 2010.  
 
PSNH and WMECO  
Certain information required by this Item 12 has been omitted for PSNH and WMECO pursuant to Instruction I(2)(c) to Form 10-K, 
Omission of Information by Certain Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries.  
 
CL&P  
NU owns 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of CL&P.  The following table sets forth, as of February 15, 2010, the beneficial 
ownership of the equity securities of NU by (i) the Chief Executive Officer of CL&P and the executive officers of CL&P listed on the 
Summary Compensation Table in Item 11 and (ii) all of the current executive officers and directors of CL&P, as a group.  No equity 
securities of CL&P are owned by any of the directors or executive officers of CL&P.    
 
 

102  
 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

(11) 

(12) 

(13) 

Item 12. 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 9370 of 9808



 
 

 

 
*Less than 1 percent of common shares outstanding.  
 

The persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned by each 
of them, except as note below.  
Reflects common shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable within the 60-day period after 
February 15, 2010.  
Includes unissued common shares consisting of restricted share units, deferred restricted share units and/or deferred shares, 
including dividend equivalents, as to which none of the individuals has voting or investment power.  Also includes phantom 
common shares, representing employer matching contributions distributable only in cash, held by executive officers who 
participate in our Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives.  Accordingly, these securities have been excluded from the 
"Total" column.  
Includes 33,948 shares owned jointly by Mr. Gregory Butler and his spouse with whom he shares voting and investment 
power.  
Includes common shares held in the 401K Plan in the employer stock ownership plan account over which the holder has sole 
voting and investment power (Mr. Jeffrey Butler: 46 shares; Mr. Gregory Butler: 2,977 shares; Mr. McHale: 3,655 shares; Mr. 
Olivier: 1,649 shares; Mr. Robb: 453 shares; and Mr. Shivery: 1,786 shares).  
Includes common shares held as units in the 401k Plan invested in the NU Common Shares Fund over which the holder has 
sole voting and investment power (Mr. Jeffrey Butler: 647 shares;  Mr. Gregory Butler: 426 shares; and Mr. McHale: 1,699 
shares).  
Includes 108 shares held by Mr. McHale in the 401k Plan TRAESOP/PAYSOP account over which Mr. McHale has sole voting 
and investment power.  
Includes 1,500 shares owned jointly by Mr. Shivery and his spouse with whom he shares voting and investment power.  

 
SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS  
 
The following table sets forth the number of NU common shares issuable under NU equity compensation plans, as well as their 
weighted exercise price, as of December 31, 2009, in accordance with the rules of the SEC:  
 

     Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership (1)  

   

  

NU  
Common  
Shares  

   

 
 

Options 
(2)     

 
 

Total  
   

 
Percent  
of Class  

   

Restricted 
 

Share  
Units (3)  

Leon J. Olivier, CEO, Director (5)    24,193     -     24,193     *     51,871  

David R. McHale, CFO, Director (5)(7)    23,962     -     23,962     *     46,465  

Jeffrey D. Butler, President, Chief Operating Officer, Director (5)    693     -     693     *     5,740  
Gregory B. Butler, Senior Vice President and General  
  Counsel, Director (4)(5)(6)    

 
37,351     

 
-     

 
37,351     

 
*     

 
45,314  

James B. Robb, Director (5)    5,094     -     5,094     *     16,830  

Charles W. Shivery, Chairman, Director (5)(8)    51,358     29,024     80,382     *     399,462  
All directors and Executive Officers as a Group (8 persons)    156,533     29,024     185,557     *     588,443  

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Plan Category  

    
Number of  

securities to be  
issued upon  
exercise of  
outstanding  

options, warrants  
and rights  

(a)  

    
 
 
 

Weighted-average  
exercise price of  

outstanding options,  
warrants and rights  

(b)  

   Number of securities  
remaining available  
for future issuance  

under equity  
compensation plans  
(excluding securities  

reflected in  
column (a))  

(c)  

   

Equity compensation plans approved by  
  security holders  

   
1,294,261  

 
(a)  $18.96  

 
(b)  8,312,825  (c) 

Equity compensation plans not approved by  
  security holders (d)  

   
--  

   
--  

   
--  

   

Total     1,294,261  (a)  $18.96     8,312,825     
 

Includes 225,216 common shares to be issued upon exercise of options, 970,006 common shares for distribution of restricted 
share units, and 99,039 performance shares issuable at target, all pursuant to the terms of our Incentive Plan.    
The weighted-average exercise price in Column (b) does not take into account restricted share units, which have no exercise 
price.  
Includes 6,048,343 common shares issuable under our Employee Share Purchase Plan II.  
All of our current compensation plans under which equity securities of NU are authorized for issuance have been approved by 
NU’s shareholders.  
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and  Director Independence  
 
NU  
 
Incorporated herein by reference is the information contained in the sections captioned "Trustee Independence" and "Certain 
Relationships and Related Transactions" of NU’s definitive proxy statement for solicitation of proxies, expected to be filed with the SEC 
on or about April 1, 2010.  
 
PSNH and WMECO  
 
Certain information required by this Item 13 has been omitted for PSNH and WMECO pursuant to Instruction I(2)(c) to Form 10-K, 
Omission of Information by Certain Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries .  
 
CL&P  
 
NU’s Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers applies to the Senior Financial Officers (Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer and Controller) of CL&P and certain other NU subsidiaries.  Under the Code, one’s position as a Senior Financial Officer in the 
company may not be used to improperly benefit such officer or his or her family or friends. Under the Code, specific activities that may 
be considered conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to, directly or indirectly acquiring or retaining a significant financial interest 
in an organization that is a customer, vendor or competitor, or that seeks to do business with the company; serving, without proper 
safeguards, as an officer or director of, or working or rendering services for an organization that is a customer, vendor or competitor, or 
that seeks to do business with the company. Waivers of the provisions of the Code of Ethics for Trustees, executive officers or Directors 
must be approved by NU’s Board of Trustees.  Any such Waivers will be disclosed pursuant to legal requirements.  
 
NU’s Standards of Business Conduct, which applies to all Trustees, directors, officers and employees of NU and its subsidiaries, 
including CL&P, contains a Conflict of Interest Policy which requires all such individuals to disclose any potential conflicts of interest. 
 Such individuals are expected to discuss their particular situations with management to ensure appropriate steps are in place to avoid 
a conflict of interest.  All disclosures must be reviewed and approved by management to ensure a particular situation does not 
adversely impact the individual’s primary job and role.  
 
NU’s Related Party Transactions Policy is administered by the Corporate Governance Committee of the Board.  The Policy generally 
defines a "Related Party Transaction" as any transaction or series of transactions in which (i) Northeast Utilities or a subsidiary is a 
participant, (ii) the aggregate amount involved exceeds $120,000 and (iii) any "Related Party" has a direct or indirect material interest. 
 A "Related Party" is defined as any Trustee or nominee for Trustee, any executive officer, any shareholder owning more than 5 percent 
of our total outstanding shares, and any immediate family member of any such person.  Management submits to the Corporate 
Governance Committee for consideration any Related Party Transaction into which NU proposes to enter.  The Corporate Governance 
Committee recommends to the Board of Trustees for approval only those transactions that are in NU’s best interests.  If management 
causes the company to enter into a Related Party Transaction prior to approval by the Committee, the transaction will be subject to 
ratification by the Board of Trustees.  If the Board determines not to ratify the transaction, then management will make all reasonable 
efforts to cancel or annul such transaction.  
 
The Directors of CL&P are employees of CL&P and/or other subsidiaries of NU and thus are not considered independent.  
 

Principal Accountant Fees and Services  
 
NU  
 
Incorporated herein by references is the information contained in the section "Relationship with Independent Auditors" of NU’s definitive 
proxy statement for solicitation of proxies, expected to be filed with the SEC on or about April 1, 2010.  
 
CL&P, PSNH and WMECO  
 
Pre-Approval of Services Provided by Principal Audi tors  
 
None of CL&P, PSNH or WMECO is subject to the audit committee requirements of the SEC, the national securities exchanges or the 
national securities associations.  CL&P, PSNH and WMECO obtain audit services from the independent auditor engaged by the Audit 
committee of NU’s Board of Trustees.  NU’s Audit Committee has established policies and procedures regarding the pre-approval of 
services provided by the principal auditors.  Those policies and procedures delegate pre-approval of services to the Audit Committee 
Chair and/or Vice Chair provided that such offices are held by Trustees who are "independent" within the meaning of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 and that all such pre-approvals are presented to the Audit Committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Committee.  
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The following relates to fees and services for the entire NU system, including NU, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO.  
 
Fees Paid to Principal Auditor  
 
NU and its subsidiaries paid Deloitte & Touche LLP fees aggregating $2,727,410 and $3,053,830 for the years ended December 31, 
2009 and 2008, respectively, comprised of the following:  
 

Audit Fees  
 
The aggregate fees billed to NU and its subsidiaries by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and 
their respective affiliates (collectively, the Deloitte Entities), for audit services rendered for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 
2008 totaled $2,636,775 and $2,914,860, respectively.  The audit fees were incurred for audits of NU’s annual Consolidated Financial 
Statements and those of its subsidiaries, reviews of financial statements included in NU’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and those of 
its subsidiaries, comfort letters, consents and other costs related to registration statements and financings. The fees also included 
audits of internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, as well as auditing the implementation of new 
accounting standards and the accounting for new contracts and proposed transactions.  
 

Audit Related Fees  
 
The aggregate fees billed to NU and its subsidiaries by the Deloitte Entities for audit related services rendered for the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008 totaled $66,000 and $117,500, respectively, primarily related to the examination of management’s 
assertions about the securitization subsidiaries of CL&P, PSNH and WMECO.    
 

Tax Fees  
 
The aggregate fees billed to NU and its subsidiaries by the Deloitte Entities for tax services for the years ended December 31, 2009 
and 2008 totaled $23,135 and $20,000, respectively. These services related primarily to the reviews of tax returns and reviewing the tax 
impacts of proposed transactions in 2009 and reviewing tax returns in 2008.  There were no services related to tax advice or tax 
planning in 2008.  
 

All Other Fees  
 
The aggregate fees billed to NU and its subsidiaries by the Deloitte Entities for services other than the services described above totaled 
$1,500 for each of the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, consisting of a license fee for access to an accounting research tool. 
 
The Audit Committee of the NU Board of Trustees (Audit Committee) pre-approves all auditing services and permitted non-audit 
services (including the fees and terms thereof) to be performed for NU and its subsidiaries by the independent auditors, subject to the 
de minimis exceptions for non-audit services described in Section 10A(i)(1)(B) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which are 
approved by the Audit Committee prior to the completion of the audit.  The Audit Committee may form, and delegate its authority to 
subcommittees consisting of one or more members when appropriate, including the authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and 
permitted non-audit services, provided that decisions of such subcommittee to grant pre-approvals are presented to the full Audit 
Committee at its next scheduled meeting.  During 2009, all services described above were pre-approved by the Audit Committee. 
 During 2008, the only audit related services provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP that were not pre-approved by the Audit Committee 
were de minimis services for work paper review and other work related to transitioning the audit of our employee benefit plans to a 
different firm, for which Deloitte & Touche LLP received a fee of $2,500.  Also not pre-approved were services provided in rendering an 
agreed upon procedures certificate letter as required by a bond indenture, for which Deloitte & Touche LLP received a fee of $5,000. 
 The Audit Committee approved these de minimis services prior to the completion of the financial statement audit. Deloitte & Touche 
LLP did not provide any other services that were not pre-approved by the Audit Committee.  
 
The Audit Committee has considered whether the provision by Deloitte & Touche LLP of the non-audit services described above was 
allowed under Rule 2-01(c)(4) of Regulation S-X and was compatible with maintaining auditor independence and has concluded that 
Deloitte & Touche LLP was and is independent of NU and its subsidiaries in all respects.  
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PART IV  
 

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules  
 
Item 15. 

(a)  1.  Financial Statements:     
            
         The Company Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting for each of NU, CL&P, 

PSNH and WMECO, the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 
each of NU, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, Consolidated Financial Statements of each of NU, 
CL&P, PSNH and WMECO and the accompanying Combined Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements  

 
 
 
 

FS-1  
               
   2.  Schedules     
               
      I.  Financial Information of Registrant:  

Northeast Utilities (Parent) Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008  
 

S-1  
               
         Northeast Utilities (Parent) Statements of Income for the Years Ended  

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  
 

S-2  
               
         Northeast Utilities (Parent) Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended  

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  
 

S-3  
               
      II.  Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves for NU, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO for 

2009, 2008 and 2007  
 

S-4  
               
         All other schedules of the companies for which inclusion is required in the applicable 

regulations of the SEC are permitted to be omitted under the related instructions or are not 
applicable, and therefore have been omitted.  

   

               
   3.     Exhibit Index  E-1  
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NORTHEAST UTILITIES  
 

SIGNATURES  
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report 
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
 

 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on 
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
 

 
 

NORTHEAST UTILITIES  
(Registrant)  

By  Charles W. Shivery  /s/    Date  
   Charles W. Shivery        
   Chairman of the Board,       February 26, 2010  
   President and Chief Executive Officer        
   (Principal Executive Officer)        

Signature     Title     Date  
               

Charles W. Shivery  /s/    Chairman of the Board, President and Chief 
Executive Officer, and a Trustee  
(Principal Executive Officer)  

   February 26, 2010  

Charles W. Shivery           

               
David R. McHale  /s/    Executive Vice President and  

Chief Financial Officer  
(Principal Financial Officer)  

   February 26, 2010  
David R. McHale           

            
               
               

Jay S. Buth  /s/    Vice President - Accounting and Controller     February 26, 2010  
Jay S. Buth              

               
               

Richard H. Booth  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
Richard H. Booth              

               
               

John S. Clarkeson  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
John S. Clarkeson              

               
               

Cotton M. Cleveland  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
Cotton M. Cleveland              

               
               

Sanford Cloud, Jr.  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
Sanford Cloud, Jr.              

               
               

James F. Cordes  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
James F. Cordes              

               
               

E. Gail de Planque  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
E. Gail de Planque              

               
               

John G. Graham  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
John G. Graham              

               
               

Elizabeth T. Kennan  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
Elizabeth T. Kennan              
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Kenneth R. Leibler  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
Kenneth R. Leibler              

               
               

Robert E. Patricelli  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
Robert E. Patricelli              

               
               

John F. Swope  /s/    Trustee     February 26, 2010  
John F. Swope              
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THE CONNECTICUT LIGHT AND POWER COMPANY  
 

SIGNATURES  
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report 
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
 

 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on 
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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THE CONNECTICUT LIGHT AND POWER COMPANY  
(Registrant)  

By  Leon J. Olivier  /s/    Date  
   Leon J. Olivier        
   Chief Executive Officer     February 26, 2010  
   (Principal Executive Officer)        

Signature     Title     Date  
               

Charles W. Shivery  /s/    Chairman and a Director     February 26, 2010  
Charles W. Shivery              

               
               
               

Leon J. Olivier  /s/    Chief Executive Officer and a Director     February 26, 2010  
Leon J. Olivier     (Principal Executive Officer)        

               
               

Jeffrey D. Butler  /s/    President and Chief Operating Officer     February 26, 2010  
Jeffrey D. Butler     and a Director        

               
               

David R. McHale  /s/    Executive Vice President and Chief Financial     February 26, 2010  
David R. McHale     Officer and a Director        

      (Principal Financial Officer)        
               
               

Gregory B. Butler  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
Gregory B. Butler              

               
               

Jean M. LaVecchia  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
Jean M. LaVecchia              

               
               

James B. Robb  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
James B. Robb              

               
               

Jay S. Buth  /s/    Vice President - Accounting and Controller     February 26, 2010  
Jay S. Buth              
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE  
 

SIGNATURES  
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report 
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
 
 

 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on 
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE  
(Registrant)  

By  Leon J. Olivier  /s/    Date  
   Leon J. Olivier        
   Chief Executive Officer     February 26, 2010  
   (Principal Executive Officer)        

Signature     Title     Date  
               

Charles W. Shivery  /s/    Chairman and a Director     February 26, 2010  
Charles W. Shivery              

               
               

Leon J. Olivier  /s/    Chief Executive Officer and a Director     February 26, 2010  
Leon J. Olivier     (Principal Executive Officer)        

               
               

Gary A. Long  /s/    President and Chief Operating Officer     February 26, 2010  
Gary A. Long     and a Director        

               
               

David R. McHale  /s/    Executive Vice President and Chief Financial     February 26, 2010  
David R. McHale     Officer and a Director        

      (Principal Financial Officer)        
               

Gregory B. Butler  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
Gregory B. Butler              

               
               

Jean M. LaVecchia  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
Jean M. LaVecchia              

               
               

James B. Robb  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
James B. Robb              

               
               

Jay S. Buth  /s/    Vice President - Accounting and Controller     February 26, 2010  
Jay S. Buth              
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WESTERN MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY  
 

SIGNATURES  
 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report 
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
 

 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on 
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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WESTERN MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY  
(Registrant)  

By  Leon J. Olivier  /s/    Date  
   Leon J. Olivier        
   Chief Executive Officer     February 26, 2010  
   (Principal Executive Officer)        

Signature     Title     Date  
               

Charles W. Shivery  /s/    Chairman and a Director     February 26, 2010  
Charles W. Shivery              

               
               

Leon J. Olivier  /s/    Chief Executive Officer and a Director     February 26, 2010  
Leon J. Olivier     (Principal Executive Officer)        

               
               

Peter J. Clarke  /s/    President and Chief Operating Officer     February 26, 2010  
Peter J. Clarke     and a Director        

               
               

David R. McHale  /s/    Executive Vice President and Chief Financial     February 26, 2010  
David R. McHale     Officer and a Director        

      (Principal Financial Officer)        
               
               

Gregory B. Butler  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
Gregory B. Butler              

               
               

Jean M. LaVecchia  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
Jean M. LaVecchia              

               
               

James B. Robb  /s/    Director     February 26, 2010  
James B. Robb              

               
               

Jay S. Buth  /s/    Vice President  - Accounting and Controller     February 26, 2010  
Jay S. Buth              
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Company Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
of Northeast Utilities and subsidiaries (NU or the Company) and of other sections of this annual report.  NU’s internal controls over 
financial reporting were audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP.  
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting.  The Company’s 
internal control framework and processes have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
 There are inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting that could allow material misstatements due to error or fraud 
to occur and not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by employees during the normal course of business.  Additionally, internal 
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate in the future due to changes in the business environment.    
 
Under the supervision and with the participation of the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, NU conducted an 
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  Based on this evaluation 
under the framework in COSO, management concluded that internal controls over financial reporting were effective as of December 31, 
2009.  
 
February 26, 2010  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  
 
To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders of Northeast Utilities:  
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of capitalization of Northeast Utilities 
and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
comprehensive income, common shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2009.  Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15.  We also have audited the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control — 
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  The Company's 
management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the 
accompanying Company Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements and financial statement schedules and an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based 
on our audits.  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits 
of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation.  Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.  
 
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal 
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, 
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. 
 Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Northeast Utilities and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  Also, in our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.  Also, in our 
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, 
based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission .  
 
 
/s/    Deloitte & Touche LLP  
        Deloitte & Touche LLP  
 
 
Hartford, Connecticut  
February 26, 2010  
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NORTHEAST UTILITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES           
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS           
   As of December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)  2009     2008  
            
ASSETS           
            
Current Assets:           
  Cash and cash equivalents  $            26,952     $            89,816  
  Receivables, net  512,770     698,755  
  Unbilled revenues  229,326     218,440  
  Fuel, materials and supplies - current  277,085     300,049  
  Marketable securities - current  66,236     78,452  
  Derivative assets - current  31,785     31,373  
  Prepayments and other  123,700     88,679  
Total Current Assets  1,267,854     1,505,564  
            
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net  8,839,965     8,207,876  
            
Deferred Debits and Other Assets:           
  Regulatory assets  3,244,931     3,502,606  
  Goodwill  287,591     287,591  
  Marketable securities - long-term  54,905     30,757  
  Derivative assets - long-term  189,751     241,814  
  Other  172,682     212,272  
Total Deferred Debits and Other Assets  3,949,860     4,275,040  
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
Total Assets  $     14,057,679     $     13,988,480  

            
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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NORTHEAST UTILITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES           
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS           
   As of December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)  2009     2008  
            
LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION           
            
Current Liabilities:           
  Notes payable to banks  $          100,313     $          618,897  
  Long-term debt - current portion  66,286     54,286  
  Accounts payable  457,582     678,614  
  Accrued taxes  50,246     12,527  
  Accrued interest  83,763     69,818  
  Derivative liabilities - current  37,617     100,919  
  Other  183,605     168,401  
Total Current Liabilities  979,412     1,703,462  
            
Rate Reduction Bonds  442,436     686,511  
            
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:           
  Accumulated deferred income taxes  1,380,143     1,223,461  
  Accumulated deferred investment tax credits  22,145     25,371  
  Regulatory liabilities  485,706     592,540  
  Derivative liabilities - long-term  955,646     912,426  
  Accrued pension  781,431     740,930  
  Other  823,723     864,105  
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities  4,448,794     4,358,833  
            
Capitalization:           
  Long-Term Debt  4,492,935     4,103,162  
            
  Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Subsidiary:           
    Preferred stock not subject to mandatory redemption  116,200     116,200  
            
  Common Shareholders' Equity:           
    Common shares  977,276     881,061  
    Capital surplus, paid in  1,762,097     1,475,006  
    Deferred contribution plan - employee stock ownership plan  (2,944)    (15,481) 
    Retained earnings  1,246,543     1,078,594  
    Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (43,467)    (37,265) 
    Treasury stock  (361,603)    (361,603) 
  Common Shareholders' Equity  3,577,902     3,020,312  
Total Capitalization  8,187,037     7,239,674  
            
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)           
            
Total Liabilities and Capitalization  $     14,057,679     $     13,988,480  

            
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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NORTHEAST UTILITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES              
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME              
               
      For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars, except share information)     2009  2008  2007  
               
Operating Revenues      $               5,439,430  $               5,800,095  $          5,822,226  
               
Operating Expenses:               
  Operation -               
    Fuel, purchased and net interchange power      2,629,619  2,996,180  3,350,673  
    Other      1,001,190  1,021,704  961,285  
  Maintenance      234,173  254,038  211,589  
  Depreciation      309,618  278,588  265,297  
  Amortization of regulatory assets, net      13,315  186,396  40,674  
  Amortization of rate reduction bonds      217,941  204,859  201,039  
  Taxes other than income taxes      282,199  267,565  252,188  
       Total operating expenses      4,688,055  5,209,330  5,282,745  
Operating Income      751,375  590,765  539,481  
               
Interest Expense:               
  Interest on long-term debt      224,712  193,883  162,841  
  Interest on rate reduction bonds      36,524  50,231  61,580  
  Other interest      12,401  25,031  15,824  
        Interest expense, net      273,637  269,145  240,245  
Other Income, Net     37,801  50,428  61,639  

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Tax Expense     515,539  372,048  360,875  
Income Tax Expense      179,947  105,661  109,420  
Income from Continuing Operations      335,592  266,387  251,455  
Discontinued Operations (Note 1B):              
  Income from discontinued operations     -  -  435  
  Gains from sale/disposition of discontinued operations     -  -  2,054  
  Income tax expense     -  -  1,902  
Income from Discontinued Operations     -  -  587  

Net Income     335,592  266,387  252,042  
Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest:              
  Preferred dividends of subsidiary     5,559  5,559  5,559  

Net Income Attributable to Controlling Interest     $                  330,033  $                  260,828  $             246,483  

               
Basic Earnings Per Common Share:              
Income from Continuing Operations Attributable to Controlling Interest     $                       1.91  $                       1.68  $                   1.59  
Income from Discontinued Operations Attributable to Controlling Interest     -  -  -  

Basic Earnings Per Common Share     $                       1.91  $                       1.68  $                   1.59  

               
Fully Diluted Earnings Per Common Share:              
Income from Continuing Operations Attributable to Controlling Interest     $                       1.91  $                       1.67  $                   1.59  
Income from Discontinued Operations Attributable to Controlling Interest     -  -  -  

Fully Diluted Earnings Per Common Share     $                       1.91  $                       1.67  $                   1.59  

               
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:              
  Basic     172,567,928  155,531,846  154,759,727  

  Fully Diluted     172,717,246  155,999,240  155,304,361  

                
Amounts Attributable to Controlling Interest:              
Income from Continuing Operations     $                  330,033  $                  260,828  $             245,896  
Income from Discontinued Operations     -  -  587  

Net Income Attributable to Controlling Interest     $                  330,033  $                  260,828  $             246,483  

               
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
 
 
 
 

FS-5  
 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 9385 of 9808



 
 

 
NORTHEAST UTILITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES                    
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME              
   For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  
                     
                     
Net Income     $        335,592     $        266,387     $        252,042  
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax:                    
  Qualified cash flow hedging instruments     200     (6,909)    (3,591) 
  Changes in unrealized gains/losses on other securities     (976)    (1,669)    (101) 
  Change in funded status of pension, SERP and other                    
    postretirement benefit plans     (5,426)    (38,046)    8,553  
      Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax     (6,202)    (46,624)    4,861  
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest     (5,559)    (5,559)    (5,559) 

Comprehensive Income Attributable to Controlling Interest     $        323,831     $        214,204     $        251,344  

                     
                     
                     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.              
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NORTHEAST UTILITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES                             
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY     
               Deferred     Accumulated     Total  

            Capital  Contribution     Other     Common  

      Common Shares  Surplus,  Plan -  Retained  Comprehensive  Treasury  Shareholders'  
(Thousands of Dollars, except share information)     Shares  Amount  Paid In  ESOP  Earnings  Income/(Loss)  Stock  Equity  

Balance as of                             
  January 1, 2007     154,233,141  $     877,101  $     1,449,586  $       (34,766) $       862,660  $                 4,498  $ (360,900) $    2,798,179  

  Adoption of accounting guidance for uncertain                             
    tax positions                 (41,816)       (41,816) 

  Net income                 252,042        252,042  

  Dividends on common shares - $0.775 per share                 (120,535)       (120,535) 

  Issuance of common shares, $5 par value     504,455  2,522  6,534              9,056  

  Dividends on preferred shares of CL&P                 (5,559)       (5,559) 

  Allocation of benefits - ESOP     363,470     2,129  8,414           10,543  

  Change in restricted shares, net     (21,104)    4,368           (627) 3,741  

  Change in treasury stock     (192)    6           (6) -  

  Tax deduction for stock options exercised and                             
     Employee Stock Purchase                             
    Plan disqualifying dispositions           3,183              3,183  

  Capital stock expenses, net           140              140  

  Other comprehensive income                    4,861     4,861  

Balance as of                             
  December 31, 2007     155,079,770  879,623  1,465,946  (26,352) 946,792  9,359  (361,533) 2,913,835  

  Net income                 266,387        266,387  

  Dividends on common shares - $0.825 per share                 (129,026)       (129,026) 

  Issuance of common shares, $5 par value     287,581  1,438  4,086              5,524  

  Dividends on preferred shares of CL&P                 (5,559)       (5,559) 

  Allocation of benefits - ESOP     469,601     865  10,871           11,736  

  Change in restricted shares, net     (2,591)    2,436           (70) 2,366  

  Tax deduction for stock options exercised and                             
    Employee Stock Purchase                             
    Plan disqualifying dispositions           1,622              1,622  

  Capital stock expenses, net           51              51  

  Other comprehensive loss                    (46,624)    (46,624) 

Balance as of                             
  December 31, 2008     155,834,361  881,061  1,475,006  (15,481) 1,078,594  (37,265) (361,603) 3,020,312  

  Adoption of accounting guidance for other-than-                             
    temporary impairments (Note 1D)                 728  (728)    -  

  Net income                 335,592        335,592  

  Dividends on common shares - $0.95 per share                 (162,812)       (162,812) 

  Issuance of common shares, $5 par value     19,242,939  96,215  293,502              389,717  

  Dividends on preferred shares of CL&P                 (5,559)       (5,559) 

  Allocation of benefits - ESOP     542,724     (98) 12,537           12,439  

  Change in restricted shares, net           5,303              5,303  

  Tax deduction for stock options exercised and                             
    Employee Stock Purchase                             
    Plan disqualifying dispositions           913              913  

  Capital stock expenses, net           (12,529)             (12,529) 

  Other comprehensive loss                    (5,474)    (5,474) 

Balance as of                             
  December 31, 2009     175,620,024  $     977,276  $     1,762,097  $         (2,944) $    1,246,543  $             (43,467) $ (361,603) $    3,577,902  

                              
                              
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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NORTHEAST UTILITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES                 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS                 
         
   For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)  2009     2008     2007  
                  
Operating Activities:                 

Net income  $          335,592     $          266,387     $          252,042  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash                 
 flows provided by operating activities:                 

Bad debt expense  53,947     28,573     29,140  
Depreciation  309,618     278,588     265,297  
Deferred income taxes  125,890     86,810     6,933  
Pension and PBOP expense/(income), net of capitalized                 
  portion and PBOP contributions  21,572     (3,839)    10,865  
Allowance for equity funds used during construction  (9,397)    (29,028)    (17,417) 
Regulatory overrecoveries/(refunds and underrecoveries), net  37,868     (185,252)    48,725  
Amortization of regulatory assets, net  13,315     186,396     40,674  
Amortization of rate reduction bonds  217,941     204,859     201,039  
Deferred contractual obligations  (29,155)    (32,326)    (41,950) 
Derivative assets and liabilities  (18,798)    (37,052)    (43,808) 
Other  12,549     9,567     (7,517) 

Changes in current assets and liabilities:                 
Receivables and unbilled revenues, net  91,081     (141,879)    (65,381) 
Investments in securitizable assets  -     (25,787)    33,531  
Fuel, materials and supplies  25,957     (74,531)    (33,727) 
Taxes receivable/accrued  16,194     63,251     (392,611) 
Accounts payable  (208,180)    72,791     (49,554) 
Other current assets and liabilities  (6,876)    (12,551)    17,713  

Net cash flows provided by operating activities  989,118     654,977     253,994  
                  
Investing Activities:                 

Investments in property and plant  (908,146)    (1,255,407)    (1,114,824) 
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities  208,947     259,361     254,832  
Purchases of marketable securities  (211,243)    (262,357)    (261,777) 
Rate reduction bond escrow and other deposits  594     1,686     63,722  
Other investing activities  7,369     3,360     (9,419) 

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (902,479)    (1,253,357)    (1,067,466) 
                  
Financing Activities:                 

Issuance of common shares  389,717     5,524     9,056  
Cash dividends on common shares  (162,381)    (129,077)    (120,988) 
Cash dividends on preferred stock of subsidiary  (5,559)    (5,559)    (5,559) 
(Decrease)/increase in short-term debt  (518,584)    539,897     79,000  
Issuance of long-term debt  462,000     760,000     655,000  
Retirements of long-term debt  (54,286)    (261,286)    (4,877) 
Retirements of rate reduction bonds  (244,075)    (230,925)    (259,722) 
Financing fees  (17,262)    (7,003)    (8,620) 
Other financing activities  927     1,521     3,375  

Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities  (149,503)    673,092     346,665  
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (62,864)    74,712     (466,807) 
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year  89,816     15,104     481,911  

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year  $            26,952     $            89,816     $            15,104  

                  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
                  
 

 
 

FS-8  
 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 9388 of 9808



 
 

 
NORTHEAST UTILITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION  
   As of December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)  2009  2008  
Common Shareholders’ Equity  $3,577,902  $3,020,312  
Preferred Stock:        
  CL&P Preferred Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption -  
    $50 par value - authorized 9,000,000 shares in 2009 and 2008;  
    2,324,000 shares outstanding in 2009 and 2008;  
    Dividend rates of $1.90 to $3.24;    
    Current redemption prices of $50.50 to $54.00     116,200     116,200  
  Long-Term Debt:  
  First Mortgage Bonds:  

      

    Final Maturity  Interest Rates        
2009-2012  7.19% in 2009; 6.20% to 7.19% in 2008  12,857  67,143  
2014-2018  4.80% to 6.90%  1,205,000  1,205,000  
2019-2024  4.50% to 8.48%  609,845  209,845  
2034-2037  5.35% to 6.375%  830,000  830,000  

Total First Mortgage Bonds     2,657,702  2,311,988  
Other Long-Term Debt:  
   Pollution Control Notes:  

         

  2016-2018  5.90%  25,400  25,400  
  2021-2022  Variable Rate and 4.75% to 6.00%  428,285  428,285  
  2028  5.85% to 5.95%  369,300  369,300  
  2031 (Note 11)  5.25% in 2009 and 3.35% and Variable Rate in 2008  62,000  62,000  
Other:           
  2012-2015  5.00% to 7.25%  618,000  618,000  
  2034-2037  5.90% to 6.70%  90,000  90,000  

Total Pollution Control Notes and Other  1,592,985  1,592,985  
Total First Mortgage Bonds, Pollution Control Notes and Other  4,250,687  3,904,973  
Fees and interest due for spent nuclear fuel disposal costs  300,647  298,555  
Change in fair value resulting from interest rate hedge instrument  13,258  20,828  
Unamortized premium and discount, net  (5,371) (4,908) 
Reacquisition of Pollution Control Notes  -  (62,000) 
Total Long-Term Debt  4,559,221  4,157,448  
Less:  Amounts due within one year  66,286  54,286  
Long-Term Debt  4,492,935  4,103,162  
Total Capitalization  $8,187,037  $7,239,674  
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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Company Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
of The Connecticut Light and Power Company and subsidiaries (CL&P or the Company) and of other sections of this annual report. 
 CL&P’s internal controls over financial reporting were audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP.  
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting.  The Company’s 
internal control framework and processes have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 There are inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting that could allow material misstatements due to error or fraud 
to occur and not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by employees during the normal course of business.  Additionally, internal 
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate in the future due to changes in the business environment.    
 
Under the supervision and with the participation of the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, CL&P conducted an 
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  Based on this evaluation 
under the framework in COSO, management concluded that internal controls over financial reporting were effective as of December 31, 
2009.  
 
February 26, 2010  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  
 
To the Board of Directors of  
The Connecticut Light and Power Company:  
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Connecticut Light and Power Company and subsidiaries (a 
Connecticut corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Northeast Utilities) (the "Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and 
the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, common stockholder’s equity, and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2009.  Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedules listed in 
the Index at Item 15.  We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission.  The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedules, for 
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, included in the accompanying Company Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules and an opinion on the Company's internal control 
over financial reporting based on our audits.  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our audits 
of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation.  Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.  
 
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal 
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, 
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
The Connecticut Light and Power Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations 
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  Also, in our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedules, when 
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the 
information set forth therein.  Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission .  
 
 
/s/    Deloitte & Touche LLP  
        Deloitte & Touche LLP  
 
 
Hartford, Connecticut  
February 26, 2010  
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THE CONNECTICUT LIGHT AND POWER COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
                  
      As of  December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)     2009        2008  
                  
ASSETS                 
                  
Current Assets:                 
  Cash     $                         45        $                            -  
  Receivables, net     327,969        416,304  
  Accounts receivable from affiliated companies     2,362        11,215  
  Notes receivable from affiliated companies     97,775        -  
  Unbilled revenues     140,632        127,844  
  Materials and supplies     65,623        70,676  
  Derivative assets - current     24,593        30,478  
  Prepayments and other     18,385        15,685  
Total Current Assets     677,384        672,202  
                  
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net     5,340,561        5,089,124  
                  
Deferred Debits and Other Assets:                 
  Regulatory assets     2,068,778        2,274,088  
  Derivative assets - long-term     183,231        215,288  
  Other     94,610        85,416  
Total Deferred Debits and Other Assets     2,346,619        2,574,792  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
Total Assets     $             8,364,564        $             8,336,118  

                  
                  
                  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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THE CONNECTICUT LIGHT AND POWER COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
                  
      As of December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)     2009        2008  
                  
LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION                 
                  
Current Liabilities:                 
  Notes payable to banks     $                            -        $                187,973  
  Notes payable to affiliated companies     -        102,725  
  Long-term debt - current portion     62,000        -  
  Accounts payable     242,853        353,584  
  Accounts payable to affiliated companies     48,795        57,053  
  Accrued taxes     36,860        24,839  
  Accrued interest     49,867        37,567  
  Derivative liabilities - current     9,770        8,873  
  Other     100,846        92,444  
Total Current Liabilities     550,991        865,058  
                  
Rate Reduction Bonds     195,587        378,195  
                  
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:                 
  Accumulated deferred income taxes     901,527        811,405  
  Accumulated deferred investment tax credits     16,355        18,805  
  Deferred contractual obligations     114,495        132,687  
  Regulatory liabilities     316,160        363,547  
  Derivative liabilities - long-term     913,349        848,106  
  Accrued pension     51,319        89,254  
  Accrued postretirement benefits     94,947        98,587  
  Other     200,090        215,620  
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities     2,608,242        2,578,011  
                  
Capitalization:                 
  Long-Term Debt     2,520,361        2,270,414  
                  
  Preferred Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption     116,200        116,200  
  Common Stockholder's Equity:                 
    Common stock     60,352        60,352  
    Capital surplus, paid in     1,601,792        1,454,198  
    Retained earnings     714,210        617,276  
    Accumulated other comprehensive loss     (3,171)       (3,586) 
  Common Stockholder's Equity     2,373,183        2,128,240  
Total Capitalization     5,009,744        4,514,854  
                  
                  
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)                 
                  
Total Liabilities and Capitalization     $             8,364,564        $             8,336,118  
                    
                  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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THE CONNECTICUT LIGHT AND POWER COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  
                     
      For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  
         
                     
                     
Operating Revenues     $         3,424,538     $         3,558,361     $         3,681,817  
                     
Operating Expenses:                    
  Operation -                    
     Fuel, purchased and net interchange power     1,690,671     1,845,367     2,277,054  
     Other     571,024     557,565     535,750  
  Maintenance     117,822     130,365     108,001  
  Depreciation     186,922     162,636     152,005  
  Amortization of regulatory assets, net     45,821     164,246     20,593  
  Amortization of rate reduction bonds     155,938     145,590     135,929  
  Taxes other than income taxes     191,234     179,201     167,943  
    Total operating expenses     2,959,432     3,184,970     3,397,275  
Operating Income     465,106     373,391     284,542  
                     
Interest Expense:                    
  Interest on long-term debt     133,422     104,954     84,292  
  Interest on rate reduction bonds     19,061     29,129     37,728  
  Other interest     3,334     12,163     16,413  
    Interest expense, net     155,817     146,246     138,433  
Other Income, Net     25,874     41,865     39,808  
Income Before Income Tax Expense     335,163     269,010     185,917  
Income Tax Expense     118,847     77,852     52,353  

Net Income     $            216,316     $            191,158     $            133,564  

                     
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   
Net Income     $            216,316     $            191,158     $            133,564  
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:                    
  Qualified cash flow hedging instruments     445     (3,348)    (4,814) 
  Changes in unrealized gains/losses on other securities     (30)    (59)    (5) 
     Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax     415     (3,407)    (4,819) 

Comprehensive Income     $            216,731     $            187,751     $            128,745  

                     
                     
                     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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THE CONNECTICUT LIGHT AND POWER COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY              
                                       
                                       
                              Accumulated        
                  Capital           Other        
      Common Stock     Surplus,     Retained     Comprehensive        
(Thousands of Dollars, except share information)   Shares     Amount     Paid In     Earnings     Income/(Loss)     Total  

Balance as of January 1, 2007     6,035,205     $  60,352     $   672,693     $ 513,344     $             4,640     $1,251,029  

                                       
    Adoption of  accounting guidance                                      
      for uncertain tax positions                       (24,030)          (24,030) 

    Net income                       133,564           133,564  

    Dividends on preferred stock                       (5,559)          (5,559) 

    Dividends on common stock                       (79,181)          (79,181) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP                 446                 446  

    Capital stock expenses, net                 140                 140  

    Capital contributions from NU parent                 570,661                 570,661  

    Other comprehensive loss                             (4,819)    (4,819) 

Balance as of December 31, 2007     6,035,205     60,352     1,243,940     538,138     (179)    1,842,251  

                                       
    Net income                       191,158           191,158  

    Dividends on preferred stock                       (5,559)          (5,559) 

    Dividends on common stock                       (106,461)          (106,461) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP                 207                 207  

    Capital stock expenses, net                 51                 51  

    Capital contributions from NU parent                 210,000                 210,000  

    Other comprehensive loss                             (3,407)    (3,407) 

Balance as of December 31, 2008     6,035,205     60,352     1,454,198     617,276     (3,586)    2,128,240  

                                       
    Adoption of accounting guidance for                                        
      other-than-temporary impairments                                      
      (Note 1D)                       25     (25)    -  

    Net income                       216,316           216,316  

    Dividends on preferred stock                       (5,559)          (5,559) 

    Dividends on common stock                       (113,848)          (113,848) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP                 (48)                (48) 

    Capital stock expenses, net                 51                 51  

    Capital contributions from NU parent                 147,591                 147,591  

    Other comprehensive income                             440     440  

Balance as of December 31, 2009     6,035,205     $  60,352     $1,601,792     $ 714,210     $            (3,171)    $2,373,183  

                                       
                                       
                                       
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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THE CONNECTICUT LIGHT AND POWER COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES        
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS                 
                  
   For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)  2009     2008     2007  
                  
Operating Activities:                 

Net income   $          216,316     $           191,158     $         133,564  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash                  
flows provided by operating activities:                  

Bad debt expense   15,276     5,951     18,121  
Depreciation   186,922     162,636     152,005  
Deferred income taxes   52,900     47,653     28,725  
Allowance for equity funds used during construction   (5,711)    (23,212)    (14,230) 
Pension income and PBOP expense, net of capitalized                 
  portion and PBOP contributions   (10,709)    (19,257)    (10,334) 
Regulatory overrecoveries/(refunds and underrecoveries), net   51,292     (153,843)    4,441  
Amortization of regulatory assets, net   45,821     164,246     20,593  
Amortization of rate reduction bonds   155,938     145,590     135,929  
Deferred contractual obligations   (19,560)    (21,526)    (28,019) 
Other   (13,460)    (5,932)    (11,544) 

Changes in current assets and liabilities:                  
Receivables and unbilled revenues, net   50,327     (125,241)    (44,025) 
Investments in securitizable assets   -     (25,787)    33,531  
Materials and supplies   (6,339)    (15,204)    (16,030) 
Taxes receivable/accrued   25,823     60,864     (216,714) 
Accounts payable   (85,773)    28,772     3,457  
Other current assets and liabilities   5,718     20,885     10,263  

Net cash flows provided by operating activities   664,781     437,753     199,733  
                  
Investing Activities:                  

Investments in property and plant   (435,723)    (849,549)    (826,248) 
Increase in NU Money Pool lending   (97,775)    -     -  
Rate reduction bond escrow and other deposits   1,368     (2,991)    56,872  
Other investing activities   3,520     548     3,784  

Net cash flows used in investing activities   (528,610)    (851,992)    (765,592) 
                  
Financing Activities:                  

Cash dividends on common stock   (113,848)    (106,461)    (79,181) 
Cash dividends on preferred stock   (5,559)    (5,559)    (5,559) 
(Decrease)/increase in short-term debt   (187,973)    187,973     -  
(Decrease)/increase in NU Money Pool borrowings   (102,725)    63,900     (220,100) 
Capital contributions from NU parent   147,591     210,000     570,661  
Issuance of long-term debt   312,000     300,000     500,000  
Reacquisition of long-term debt   -     (62,000)    -  
Retirements of rate reduction bonds   (182,608)    (170,491)    (195,213) 
Other financing activities   (3,004)    (3,661)    (7,521) 

Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities   (136,126)    413,701     563,087  
Net increase/(decrease) in cash   45     (538)    (2,772) 
Cash - beginning of year   -     538     3,310  
Cash - end of year   $                   45     $                       -     $                538  

                  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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Company Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
of Public Service Company of New Hampshire and subsidiaries (PSNH or the Company) and of other sections of this annual report. 
 PSNH’s internal controls over financial reporting were audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP.  
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting.  The Company’s 
internal control framework and processes have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 There are inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting that could allow material misstatements due to error or fraud 
to occur and not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by employees during the normal course of business.  Additionally, internal 
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate in the future due to changes in the business environment.    
 
Under the supervision and with the participation of the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, PSNH conducted an 
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  Based on this evaluation 
under the framework in COSO, management concluded that internal controls over financial reporting were effective as of December 31, 
2009.  
 
February 26, 2010  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  
 
To the Board of Directors of  
Public Service Company of New Hampshire:  
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Public Service Company of New Hampshire and subsidiaries (a 
New Hampshire corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Northeast Utilities) (the "Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, common stockholder’s equity, and cash flows for each of 
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009.  Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedules listed 
in the Index at Item 15.  We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based 
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission.  The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedules, 
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Company Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting.  Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules and an opinion on the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting based on our audits.  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our audits 
of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation.  Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.  
 
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal 
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, 
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Public Service Company of New Hampshire and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations 
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedules, when 
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the 
information set forth therein.  Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission .  
 
 
/s/    Deloitte & Touche LLP  
        Deloitte & Touche LLP  
 
 
Hartford, Connecticut  
February 26, 2010  
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
            
   As of December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)  2009     2008  
      
ASSETS           
            
Current Assets:           
  Cash  $                    1,974     $                       195  
  Receivables, net  89,337     108,857  
  Notes receivable from affiliated companies  -     53,800  
  Accounts receivable from affiliated companies  286     264  
  Unbilled revenues  49,358     41,449  
  Taxes receivable  22,600     8,809  
  Fuel, materials and supplies - current  127,447     113,121  
  Accumulated deferred income taxes - current  8,075     27,345  
  Prepayments and other  28,312     16,223  
Total Current Assets  327,389     370,063  
            
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net  1,814,714     1,580,985  
            
Deferred Debits and Other Assets:           
  Regulatory assets  494,077     549,934  
  Other  61,011     127,851  
Total Deferred Debits and Other Assets  555,088     677,785  
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
Total Assets  $             2,697,191     $             2,628,833  

            
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.        
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
            
   As of December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)  2009     2008  
            
LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION           
            
Current Liabilities:           
  Notes payable to banks  $                             -     $                   45,227  
  Notes payable to affiliated companies  26,700     -  
  Accounts payable  109,521     160,692  
  Accounts payable to affiliated companies  20,083     31,140  
  Accrued interest  10,255     11,778  
  Derivative liabilities - current  18,785     77,369  
  Other  27,983     23,422  
Total Current Liabilities  213,327     349,628  
            
Rate Reduction Bonds  188,113     235,139  
            
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:           
  Accumulated deferred income taxes  275,669     253,670  
  Accumulated deferred investment tax credits  211     355  
  Deferred contractual obligations  20,149     23,820  
  Regulatory liabilities  69,872     111,403  
  Derivative liabilities - long-term  7,635     14,846  
  Accrued pension  272,905     236,332  
  Accrued postretirement benefits  39,717     41,849  
  Other  45,893     41,297  
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities  732,051     723,572  
            
Capitalization:           
  Long-Term Debt  836,255     686,779  
            
  Common Stockholder's Equity:           
    Common stock  -     -  
    Capital surplus, paid in  420,169     351,245  
    Retained earnings  307,988     283,219  
    Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (712)    (749) 
  Common Stockholder's Equity  727,445     633,715  
Total Capitalization  1,563,700     1,320,494  
            
            
            
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)           
            
Total Liabilities and Capitalization  $              2,697,191     $              2,628,833  

            
            
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  
                     
      For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  
                     
                     
                     
Operating Revenues     $   1,109,591     $  1,141,202     $   1,083,072  
                     
Operating Expenses:                    
  Operation -                    
     Fuel, purchased and net interchange power     520,529     558,313     530,680  
     Other     239,650     215,497     208,691  
  Maintenance     87,026     90,933     74,070  
  Depreciation     61,961     56,321     53,315  
  Amortization of regulatory (liabilities)/assets, net     (29,619)    9,254     7,470  
  Amortization of rate reduction bonds     47,482     45,644     52,344  
  Taxes other than income taxes     47,975     42,291     39,671  
    Total operating expenses     975,004     1,018,253     966,241  
Operating Income     134,587     122,949     116,831  
                     
Interest Expense:                    
  Interest on long-term debt     33,045     32,655     26,029  
  Interest on rate reduction bonds     13,128     15,969     18,013  
  Other interest     316     1,539     2,243  
    Interest expense, net     46,489     50,163     46,285  
Other Income, Net     9,462     7,277     6,682  
Income Before Income Tax Expense     97,560     80,063     77,228  
Income Tax Expense     31,990     21,996     22,794  

Net Income     $        65,570     $       58,067     $        54,434  

                     
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
Net Income     $        65,570     $       58,067     $        54,434  
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:                    
  Qualified cash flow hedging instruments     87     (1,418)    605  
  Changes in unrealized gains/losses on other securities     (50)    (101)    (11) 
     Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax     37     (1,519)    594  

Comprehensive Income     $        65,607     $       56,548     $        55,028  

                     
                     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY  
                                       
                                       
                              Accumulated        
                  Capital           Other        
      Common Stock     Surplus,     Retained     Comprehensive        
(Thousands of Dollars, except share information)   Shares     Amount     Paid In     Earnings     Income/(Loss)     Total  

Balance as of January 1, 2007  301     $            -     $    231,171     $236,215     $               176     $ 467,562  

                                    
    Adoption of  accounting guidance                                   
      for uncertain tax positions                    1,599           1,599  

    Net income                    54,434           54,434  

    Dividends on common stock                    (30,720)          (30,720) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP              204                 204  

    Capital contributions from NU parent              44,194                 44,194  

    Other comprehensive income                          594     594  

Balance as of December 31, 2007  301     -     275,569     261,528     770     537,867  

                                    
    Net income                    58,067           58,067  

    Dividends on common stock                    (36,376)          (36,376) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP              93                 93  

    Capital contributions from NU parent              75,583                 75,583  

    Other comprehensive loss                          (1,519)    (1,519) 

Balance as of December 31, 2008  301     -     351,245     283,219     (749)    633,715  

                                    
    Adoption of accounting guidance for                                   
       other-than-temporary impairments                                   
       (Note 1D)                    43     (43)    -  

    Net income                    65,570           65,570  

    Dividends on common stock                    (40,844)          (40,844) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP              (22)                (22) 

    Capital contributions from NU parent              68,946                 68,946  

    Other comprehensive income                          80     80  

Balance as of December 31, 2009  301     $            -     $    420,169     $307,988     $              (712)    $ 727,445  

                                    
                                    
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.    
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND SUBSIDIARIES     
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS                 
                  
   For the Years Ended December 31,    
 (Thousands of Dollars)  2009     2008     2007  
                  
Operating activities:                 

Net income  $            65,570     $             58,067     $          54,434  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash                 
 flows provided by operating activities:                 

Bad debt expense  10,084     5,661     3,433  
Depreciation  61,961     56,321     53,315  
Deferred income taxes  35,270     25,001     (4,726) 
Pension and PBOP expense, net of capitalized portion                 
  and PBOP contributions  15,519     12,350     7,258  
Regulatory underrecoveries, net  (4,392)    (23,848)    (6,167) 
Amortization of regulatory (liabilities)/assets, net  (29,619)    9,254     7,470  
Amortization of rate reduction bonds  47,482     45,644     52,344  
Deferred contractual obligations  (4,275)    (4,978)    (6,365) 
Proceeds from insurance settlement  10,066     -     -  
Other  (3,251)    (28,919)    (11,854) 

Changes in current assets and liabilities:                 
Receivables and unbilled revenues, net  1,505     (12,058)    (15,799) 
Taxes receivable/accrued  (13,791)    (2,117)    4,144  
Fuel, materials and supplies  59     (26,209)    15,882  
Accounts payable  (77,738)    41,959     (8,178) 
Other current assets and liabilities  (9,192)    7,148     2,102  

Net cash flows provided by operating activities  105,258     163,276     147,293  
                  
Investing Activities:                 

Investments in property and plant  (266,440)    (238,912)    (167,712) 
Decrease/(increase) in NU Money Pool lending  53,800     (53,800)    -  
Other investing activities  (1,278)    4,607     5,683  

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (213,918)    (288,105)    (162,029) 
                  
Financing Activities:                 

Cash dividends on common stock  (40,844)    (36,376)    (30,720) 
(Decrease)/increase in short-term debt  (45,227)    35,227     10,000  
Issuance of long-term debt  150,000     110,000     70,000  
Increase/(decrease) in NU Money Pool borrowings  26,700     (11,300)    (25,200) 
Capital contributions from NU parent  68,946     75,583     44,194  
Retirements of rate reduction bonds  (47,026)    (46,879)    (51,813) 
Other financing activities  (2,110)    (1,681)    (1,306) 

Net cash flows provided by financing activities  110,439     124,574     15,155  
Net increase/(decrease) in cash  1,779     (255)    419  
Cash - beginning of year  195     450     31  

Cash - end of year  $              1,974     $                  195     $               450  

                  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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Company Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
of Western Massachusetts Electric Company and subsidiary (WMECO or the Company) and of other sections of this annual report. 
 WMECO’s internal controls over financial reporting were audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP.  
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting.  The Company’s 
internal control framework and processes have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 There are inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting that could allow material misstatements due to error or fraud 
to occur and not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by employees during the normal course of business.  Additionally, internal 
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate in the future due to changes in the business environment.    
 
Under the supervision and with the participation of the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, WMECO conducted an 
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  Based on this evaluation 
under the framework in COSO, management concluded that internal controls over financial reporting were effective as December 31, 
2009.  
 
February 26, 2010  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  
 
To the Board of Directors of  
Western Massachusetts Electric Company:  
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Western Massachusetts Electric Company and subsidiary (a 
Massachusetts corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Northeast Utilities) (the "Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, common stockholder’s equity, and cash flows for each of 
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009.  Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedules listed 
in the Index at Item 15.  We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based 
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission.  The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedules, 
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Company Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting.  Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules and an opinion on the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting based on our audits.  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits 
of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation.  Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.  
 
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal 
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, 
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Western Massachusetts Electric Company and subsidiary as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and 
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  Also, in our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedules, when considered in 
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth 
therein.  Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission .  
 
 
/s/    Deloitte & Touche LLP  
        Deloitte & Touche LLP  
 
 
Hartford, Connecticut  
February 26, 2010  
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WESTERN MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
                  
      As of December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)     2009        2008  
      
ASSETS                 
Current Assets:                 
  Cash     $                     1        $                      -  
  Receivables, net     38,415        56,802  
  Accounts receivable from affiliated companies     191        575  
  Unbilled revenues     16,090        16,694  
  Taxes receivable     4,192        5,499  
  Materials and supplies – current     8,314        3,825  
  Marketable securities – current     28,261        46,428  
  Prepayments and other     1,774        2,380  
Total Current Assets     97,238        132,203  
                  
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net     705,760        624,205  
                  
Deferred Debits and Other Assets:                 
  Regulatory assets     240,804        268,417  
  Marketable securities - long-term     28,500        9,322  
  Other     29,498        14,342  
Total Deferred Debits and Other Assets     298,802        292,081  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
Total Assets     $       1,101,800        $       1,048,489  

                  
                  
                  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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WESTERN MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY                 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS                 
                  
      As of December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)     2009        2008  
         
LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION                 
                  
Current Liabilities:                 
  Notes payable to banks     $                         -        $                 29,850  
  Notes payable to affiliated companies     136,100        31,600  
  Accounts payable     36,680        50,161  
  Accounts payable to affiliated companies     7,924        15,047  
  Accrued interest     5,274        5,824  
  Other     8,873        10,715  
Total Current Liabilities     194,851        143,197  
                  
Rate Reduction Bonds     58,735        73,176  
                  
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:                 
  Accumulated deferred income taxes     211,391        187,283  
  Accumulated deferred investment tax credits     1,499        1,753  
  Deferred contractual obligations     31,528        36,509  
  Regulatory liabilities     21,683        29,826  
  Accrued postretirement benefits     17,398        18,078  
  Other     12,433        16,649  
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities     295,932        290,098  
                  
Capitalization:                 
  Long-Term Debt     305,475        303,868  
                  
  Common Stockholder's Equity:                 
    Common stock     10,866        10,866  
    Capital surplus, paid in     145,400        144,545  
    Retained earnings     90,549        82,549  
    Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)/income     (8)       190  
  Common Stockholder's Equity     246,807        238,150  
Total Capitalization     552,282        542,018  
                  
                  
Commitment and Contingencies (Note 7)                 
                  
Total Liabilities and Capitalization     $            1,101,800        $            1,048,489  

                  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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WESTERN MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY              
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME                    
                     
      For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Thousands of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  
                     
                     
Operating Revenues     $               402,413     $               441,527     $             464,745  
                     
Operating Expenses:                    
  Operation -                    
     Fuel, purchased and net interchange power     192,177     237,369     236,582  
     Other     85,591     76,929     98,837  
  Maintenance     17,895     20,720     18,618  
  Depreciation     22,454     21,025     20,868  
  Amortization of regulatory (liabilities)/assets, net     (2,980)    12,445     10,601  
  Amortization of rate reduction bonds     14,521     13,625     12,766  
  Taxes other than income taxes     14,174     12,867     12,322  
    Total operating expenses     343,832     394,980     410,594  
Operating Income     58,581     46,547     54,151  
                     
Interest Expense:                    
  Interest on long-term debt     14,074     13,244     11,577  
  Interest on rate reduction bonds     4,335     5,133     5,839  
  Other interest     877     1,256     2,430  
     Interest expense, net     19,286     19,633     19,846  
Other Income, Net     1,824     1,961     3,885  
Income Before Income Tax Expense     41,119     28,875     38,190  
Income Tax Expense     14,923     10,545     14,586  

Net Income     $                 26,196     $                 18,330     $               23,604  

                     
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME              
Net Income     $                 26,196     $                 18,330     $               23,604  
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:                    
  Qualified cash flow hedging instruments     (79)    (79)    (704) 
  Changes in unrealized gains/losses on other securities     (119)    38     42  
     Other comprehensive loss, net of tax     (198)    (41)    (662) 
Comprehensive Income     $                 25,998     $                 18,289     $               22,942  

                     
                     
                     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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WESTERN MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY  

                                       
                                       
                              Accumulated        
                  Capital           Other        
      Common Stock     Surplus,     Retained     Comprehensive        
(Thousands of Dollars, except share information)   Shares     Amount     Paid In     Earnings     Income/(Loss)     Total  

Balance as of January 1, 2007     434,653     $  10,866     $     114,544     $      92,663     $             893     $  218,966  

                                       
    Adoption of  accounting guidance                                      
      for uncertain tax positions                       437           437  

    Net income                       23,604           23,604  

    Dividends on common stock                       (12,779)          (12,779) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP                 77                 77  

    Capital contributions from NU parent                 13,607                 13,607  

    Other comprehensive loss                             (662)    (662) 

Balance as of December 31, 2007     434,653     10,866     128,228     103,925     231     243,250  

                                       
    Net income                       18,330           18,330  

    Dividends on common stock                       (39,706)          (39,706) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP                 36                 36  

    Capital contributions from NU parent                 16,281                 16,281  

    Other comprehensive loss                             (41)    (41) 

Balance as of December 31, 2008     434,653     10,866     144,545     82,549     190     238,150  

                                       
    Adoption of accounting guidance for                                      
       other-than-temporary impairments                                      
       (Note 1D)                       7     (7)    -  

    Net income                       26,196           26,196  

    Dividends on common stock                       (18,203)          (18,203) 

    Allocation of benefits - ESOP                 (8)                (8) 

    Capital contributions from NU parent                 863                 863  

    Other comprehensive loss                             (191)    (191) 

Balance as of December 31, 2009     434,653     $   10,866     $     145,400     $       90,549     $               (8)    $  246,807  

                                       
                                       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.     
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WESTERN MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY        
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS                 
                  
    For the Years Ended December 31,  
 (Thousands of Dollars)  2009     2008     2007  
                  
Operating Activities:                 

Net income  $           26,196     $           18,330     $           23,604  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash                 
  flows provided by operating activities:                 

Bad debt expense  7,590     8,185     6,922  
Depreciation  22,454     21,025     20,868  
Deferred income taxes  22,908     12,222     (15,332) 
Pension income and PBOP expense, net of capitalized portion,                 
  and PBOP contributions  (2,630)    (4,844)    (3,050) 
Regulatory overrecoveries/(underrecoveries), net  589     (17,093)    32,129  
Amortization of regulatory (liabilities)/assets, net  (2,980)    12,445     10,601  
Amortization of rate reduction bonds  14,521     13,625     12,766  
Deferred contractual obligations  (5,320)    (5,822)    (7,568) 
Other  (227)    (3,875)    195  

Changes in current assets and liabilities:                 
Receivables and unbilled revenues, net  3,757     (14,210)    (9,749) 
Materials and supplies  (4,489)    (1,490)    (478) 
Accounts payable  (19,397)    22,186     1,417  
Taxes receivable/accrued  1,307     4,081     (35,014) 
Other current assets and liabilities  (2,150)    2,718     237  

Net cash flows provided by operating activities  62,129     67,483     37,548  
                  
Investing Activities:                 

Investments in property and plant  (105,440)    (78,253)    (47,315) 
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities  106,308     169,056     196,865  
Purchases of marketable securities  (106,937)    (169,902)    (199,803) 
Other investing activities  1,298     939     929  

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (104,771)    (78,160)    (49,324) 
                  
Financing Activities:                 

Cash dividends on common stock  (18,203)    (39,706)    (12,779) 
(Decrease)/increase in short-term debt  (29,850)    29,850     -  
Issuance of long-term debt  -     -     40,000  
Retirements of rate reduction bonds  (14,441)    (13,555)    (12,697) 
Increase/(decrease) in NU Money Pool borrowings  104,500     16,700     (15,900) 
Capital contributions from NU parent  863     16,281     13,607  
Other financing activities  (226)    (3)    (681) 

Net cash flows provided by financing activities  42,643     9,567     11,550  
Net increase/(decrease) in cash  1     (1,110)    (226) 
Cash - beginning of year  -     1,110     1,336  

Cash - end of year  $                    1     $                    -     $             1,110  

                  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   
 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (All Com panies)  
 

About Northeast Utilities, The Connecticut Light an d Power Company, Public Service Company of New Hamp shire 
and Western Massachusetts Electric Company  
Consolidated:  Northeast Utilities (NU or the Company) is the parent company of The Connecticut Light and Power Company (CL&P), 
Public Service Company of New Hampshire (PSNH), Western Massachusetts Electric Company (WMECO), and Yankee Gas Services 
Company (Yankee Gas) (the regulated companies) and NU Enterprises, Inc. (NU Enterprises), as described below.  NU was formed on 
July 1, 1966 when CL&P, WMECO and The Hartford Electric Light Company affiliated under the common ownership of NU.  In 1992, 
PSNH became a subsidiary of NU.  On March 1, 2000, gas became an integral part of NU's Connecticut operations when NU's merger 
with Yankee Energy System, Inc. (Yankee) and its principal subsidiary, Yankee Gas, was completed.  CL&P, PSNH and WMECO are 
reporting companies under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  NU is a public utility holding company under the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 2005 (PUHCA).  Arrangements among the regulated electric companies, NU Enterprises and other NU companies, 
outside agencies and other utilities covering interconnections, interchange of electric power and sales of utility property are subject to 
regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).  The regulated companies are subject to further regulation for rates, 
accounting and other matters by the FERC and/or applicable state regulatory commissions (the Connecticut Department of Public Utility 
Control (DPUC) for CL&P and Yankee Gas, the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission (NHPUC), as well as certain regulatory 
oversight by the Vermont Department of Public Service and the Maine Public Utilities Commission for PSNH, and the Massachusetts 
Department of Public Utilities (DPU) for WMECO).    
 
Regulated Companies:  CL&P, PSNH and WMECO furnish franchised retail electric service in Connecticut, New Hampshire and 
Massachusetts, respectively.  Yankee Gas owns and operates Connecticut's largest natural gas distribution system.  CL&P, PSNH and 
WMECO's results include the operations of their respective distribution and transmission segments.  PSNH's distribution results include 
the operations of its generation business.  Yankee Gas' results include the operations of its gas distribution segment.  
 
NU Enterprises:  NU Enterprises is the parent company of Select Energy, Inc. (Select Energy), E. S. Boulos Company (Boulos), 
Northeast Generation Services Company (NGS), NGS Mechanical, Inc. and Select Energy Contracting, Inc. (SECI), which are 
collectively referred to as NU Enterprises.  For information regarding NU's exit from certain of these businesses, see Note 1B, 
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Presentation," to the consolidated financial statements.    
 

Presentation  
The consolidated financial statements of NU, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO include the accounts of all their respective subsidiaries. 
 Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  
 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
 
In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance on noncontrolling interests in consolidated financial 
statements effective January 1, 2009, the Preferred stock of CL&P, which is not owned by NU or its consolidated subsidiaries and is not 
subject to mandatory redemption, has been presented as a noncontrolling interest in CL&P in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of NU.  The Preferred stock of CL&P is considered to be temporary equity and has been classified between liabilities and 
permanent shareholders' equity on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NU and CL&P due to a provision in CL&P's 
certificate of incorporation that grants preferred stockholders the right to elect a majority of CL&P's board of directors should certain 
conditions exist, such as if preferred dividends are in arrears for one year.  The Net income reported in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of income and cash flows represents consolidated net income prior to apportionment to noncontrolling interests, which is 
represented by dividends on preferred stock of CL&P.    
 
The included presentation and disclosure requirements effective January 1, 2009 have been applied retrospectively to the consolidated 
balance sheet as of December 31, 2008 and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and 
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.  For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, there was no 
change in NU parent's 100 percent ownership of the common equity of CL&P.  
 
Certain other reclassifications of prior period data were made in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and cash flows for all 
companies presented as well as in the accompanying consolidated statements of common shareholders' equity and comprehensive 
income for NU.  These reclassifications were made to conform to the current year's presentation.     
 
NU's consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2007 classifies the following as discontinued operations:  
 

Northeast Generation Company (NGC), including certain components of NGS,  
The Mt. Tom generating plant (Mt. Tom),  
Select Energy Services, Inc. (SESI) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries HEC/Tobyhanna Energy Project, Inc. and HEC/CJTS 
Energy Center LLC,  
A portion of the former Woods Electrical Co., Inc. (Woods Electrical), and  
SECI (including Reeds Ferry Supply Co., Inc.).  
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Included in discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2007 is a net gain of $2.1 million related to the favorable 
resolution of legal and contract issues from businesses sold of $4.2 million, partially offset by a purchase price adjustment of $1.9 
million and other charges from the sale of the competitive generation business.  Included in the 2007 income tax expense for 
discontinued operations is a $0.8 million charge recognized to adjust the estimated income tax accrual for actual taxes paid on the 
gains related to businesses sold in 2006.  No intercompany revenues were included in discontinued operations for the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 or 2007.    
 

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted  
In June 2009, the FASB issued guidance on the consolidation of variable interest entities (VIEs) that requires an enterprise to perform 
an analysis to determine whether the enterprise's variable interest or interests give it a controlling financial interest in a VIE.  This 
analysis identifies the party that must consolidate a VIE, referred to as the primary beneficiary, as the enterprise that has both of the 
following characteristics:  (a) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance 
and (b) the obligation to absorb losses of or receive benefits from the entity that could potentially be significant to the VIE.  The 
guidance reduces emphasis on the quantitative analyses for determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE, which was based on 
identifying which party absorbs the majority of the entity's expected losses, receives a majority of the entity's expected residual returns, 
or both.  This guidance is effective as of January 1, 2010, for interim and annual reporting periods beginning in 2010.  Earlier 
application was prohibited.  NU, including CL&P, PSNH, and WMECO, does not currently consolidate any VIEs with which the 
Company is associated and does not expect implementation of this guidance to have a material effect on the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements.    
 

Accounting Standards Recently Adopted  
On January 1, 2009, NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, adopted fair value measurement guidance for nonrecurring fair value 
measurements of nonfinancial assets and liabilities, including asset retirement obligations (AROs) and goodwill and other impairment 
analyses.  Implementation of this guidance did not affect the accompanying consolidated financial statements.    
 
In the second quarter of 2009, NU, including WMECO, adopted guidance related to the recognition and presentation of other-than-
temporary impairments.  This guidance changes the indicators for determining if unrealized losses on debt securities (the excess of 
amortized cost over fair value) should be recorded in Net income as other-than-temporary impairments.  Beginning in the second 
quarter of 2009, other-than-temporary impairments of debt securities in NU's Trust Under Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 
(SERP) (NU supplemental benefit trust) are reflected in the Company's consolidated statement of income if the Company either intends 
to sell the security or would more likely than not be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost, or if the Company 
does not expect to recover the amortized cost as a result of a credit loss.  For securities that the Company does not intend to sell and it 
is not more likely than not that it will be required to sell before recovery, only the credit loss component of an impairment is recognized 
in Net income, and the remainder is recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss).  NU recorded an after-tax 
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of $0.7 million as an increase to the April 1, 2009 balance of Retained earnings 
with an offset to Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) relating to the reversal of unrealized losses previously recorded in 
Net income on debt securities held in the NU supplemental benefit trust, which did not meet the criteria described above.  The after-tax 
cumulative effect had a de minimus impact to CL&P, PSNH and WMECO.  The guidance had no impact on unrealized losses in 
WMECO's spent nuclear fuel trust as unrealized losses including impairments are recorded in Deferred debits and other assets - other 
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets due to the regulatory accounting treatment of this trust.    
 
In 2009, NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, adopted guidance regarding subsequent events, which incorporates into FASB 
authoritative literature accounting guidance that originated as auditing standards about events or transactions that occur after the 
balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued.  This guidance retains the auditing standard requirements to recognize 
in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed as of the 
balance sheet date and to disclose but not recognize in the financial statements subsequent events that provide evidence about 
conditions that arose after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are issued.  In preparing the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, NU has evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2009 through the issuance of the financial 
statements.  See Note 19, "Subsequent Event" for further information.    
 
In the second quarter of 2009, NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, adopted guidance which clarifies how to estimate fair value 
when the volume and level of activity for an asset or liability have significantly decreased and how to identify transactions that are not 
orderly.  This guidance requires additional disclosures related to fair value measurements.  Implementation of this guidance did not 
affect the companies' valuation of assets or liabilities that are measured at fair value.    
 
In December 2009, NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, adopted accounting guidance on measuring liabilities at fair value, which 
provides guidance on how to measure the fair value of a liability when a quoted price for the liability is not available.  The guidance 
reaffirms existing guidance requiring that fair values reflect the price that NU would expect to pay to transfer the liabilities in the current 
market.  The guidance did not affect the financial statements of NU, CL&P, PSNH, or WMECO upon adoption.  
 
In December 2009, NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, adopted accounting guidance on using net asset values in determining 
the fair values of alternative investments.  NU holds alternative investments, such as private equity partnerships, real estate 
partnerships and hedge funds, in its Pension Plan and postretirement benefits other than pension (PBOP) plan.  This guidance did not 
affect the financial statements of NU, CL&P, PSNH or WMECO upon adoption.  
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Revenues  
Regulated Companies:   The regulated companies' retail revenues are based on rates approved by the state regulatory commissions. 
 In general, rates can only be changed through formal proceedings with the state regulatory commissions.  The regulated companies 
also utilize regulatory commission-approved tracking mechanisms to recover certain costs as incurred.  The tracking mechanisms allow 
for rates to be changed periodically, with overcollections refunded to customers or undercollections collected from customers in future 
periods.  
 
The regulated companies record monthly, day ahead and real time energy purchases and sales net in accordance with accounting 
guidance on reporting realized gains and losses on derivative instruments.  Revenues and expenses associated with derivative 
instruments to purchase and sell energy in the day ahead and real time markets are recorded on a net basis in either Operating 
revenues or Fuel, purchased and net interchange power on the consolidated statements of income.  
 
Regulated Companies' Unbilled Revenues:   Unbilled revenues represent an estimate of electricity or gas delivered to customers for 
which the customers have not yet been billed.  Unbilled revenues are included in Operating revenues on the consolidated statements of 
income and are assets on the consolidated balance sheets that are reclassified to accounts receivable in the following month as 
customers are billed.  Such estimates are subject to adjustment when actual meter readings become available, when changes in 
estimating methodology occur and under other circumstances.  
 
The regulated companies estimate unbilled revenues monthly using the daily load cycle (DLC) method.  The DLC method allocates 
billed sales to the current calendar month based on the daily load for each billing cycle.  The billed sales are subtracted from total 
calendar month sales to estimate unbilled sales.  Unbilled revenues are estimated by first allocating sales to the respective rate 
classes, then applying an average rate to the estimate of unbilled sales.  
 
Regulated Companies' Transmission Revenues - Wholesale Rates:   Wholesale transmission revenues are based on formula rates that 
are approved by the FERC.  Most of NU's wholesale transmission revenues, including CL&P, PSNH, and WMECO, are collected under 
the New England Independent System Operator (ISO-NE) FERC Electric Tariff No. 3, Transmission, Markets and Services Tariff (Tariff 
No. 3).  Tariff No. 3 includes Regional Network Service (RNS) and Schedule 21 - NU rate schedules to recover fees for transmission 
and other services.  The RNS rate, administered by ISO-NE and billed to all New England transmission users, including CL&P, PSNH, 
and WMECO's transmission businesses, is reset on June 1 st of each year and recovers the revenue requirements associated with 
transmission facilities that benefit the New England region.  The Schedule 21 - NU rate, administered by NU, is reset on January 1 st 

and June 1 st of each year and recovers the revenue requirements for local transmission facilities and other transmission costs not 
recovered under the RNS rate, including 100 percent of the construction work in progress (CWIP) that is included in rate base on the 
New England East-West Solutions (NEEWS) projects.  The Schedule 21 - NU rate calculation recovers total transmission revenue 
requirements net of revenues received from other sources (i.e., RNS, rentals, etc.), thereby ensuring that NU recovers all regional and 
local revenue requirements as prescribed in Tariff No. 3.  Both the RNS and Schedule 21 - NU rates provide for annual true-ups to 
actual costs.  The financial impacts of differences between actual and projected costs are deferred for future recovery from, or refunded 
to, customers.  As of December 31, 2009, the Schedule 21 - NU rates were in a total underrecovery position of $38.8 million ($28.2 
million for CL&P, $5.6 million for PSNH and $5 million for WMECO), which will be collected from customers in June 2010.    
 
Regulated Companies' Transmission Revenues - Retail Rates:  A significant portion of the NU transmission segment revenue comes 
from ISO-NE charges to the distribution segments of CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, each of which recovers these costs through rates 
charged to their retail customers.  CL&P, PSNH and WMECO each have a retail transmission cost tracking mechanism as part of their 
rates, which allows the companies to charge their retail customers for transmission costs on a timely basis.  
 
NU Enterprises:  Service revenues are recognized as services are provided, often on a percentage of completion basis.  Wholesale 
marketing revenues are recognized through mark-to-market accounting on underlying derivative contracts and recorded in Fuel, 
purchased and net interchange power on the consolidated statements of income.  This net presentation of the mark-to-market and 
settlement amounts is required because NU Enterprises cannot assert that physical delivery of contract quantities is probable.    
 

Derivative Accounting  
Most of CL&P and PSNH's contracts for the purchase and sale of energy or energy related products are derivatives, along with all but 
one of NU Enterprises', through Select Energy's, remaining wholesale marketing contracts.  The accounting treatment for energy 
contracts entered into varies and depends on the intended use of the particular contract and on whether or not the contract is a 
derivative.    
 
The application of derivative accounting is complex and requires management judgment in the following respects: identification of 
derivatives and embedded derivatives, election and designation of the "normal purchases or normal sales" (normal) exception, 
identifying, electing and designating hedge relationships, assessing and measuring hedge ineffectiveness, and determining the fair 
value of derivatives.  All of these judgments, depending upon their timing and effect, can have a significant impact on the consolidated 
financial statements.  
 
The fair value of derivatives is based upon the contract terms and conditions and the underlying market price or fair value per unit. 
 When quantities are not specified in the contract, the Company determines whether it is a derivative by using amounts referenced in 
default provisions and other relevant sections of the contract.  The estimated quantities to be served are updated during the term of the 
contract, and such updates can have a material impact on mark-to-market amounts.   The fair value of derivative assets and liabilities 
with the same counterparty are offset and recorded as a net derivative asset or liability to the consolidated balance sheets.    
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The judgment applied in the election of the normal exception (and resulting accrual accounting) includes the conclusion that it is 
probable at the inception of the contract and throughout its term that it will result in physical delivery of the underlying product and that 
the quantities will be used or sold by the business over a reasonable period in the normal course of business.  The Company has 
elected normal on many derivative contracts, including all of WMECO's derivative contracts.  If facts and circumstances change and 
management can no longer support this conclusion, then the normal exception and accrual accounting is terminated and fair value 
accounting is applied prospectively.    
 
Most of the contracts that comprise NU Enterprises' wholesale marketing activities are derivatives, and many of NU's regulated 
company contracts for the purchase or sale of energy or energy-related products are derivatives.   Wholesale marketing contracts, 
which are marked-to-market derivative contracts, are not considered to be held for trading purposes, and sales and purchase activity is 
reported on a net basis in Fuel, purchased and net interchange power on the consolidated statements of income.  
 
For further information regarding derivative contracts of NU, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO and their accounting, see Note 3, "Derivative 
Instruments," to the consolidated financial statements.  
 

Fair Value Measurements  
On January 1, 2008, NU, including CL&P, PSNH, and WMECO, adopted fair value measurement guidance, which established a 
framework for defining and measuring fair value and required expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.    
 
Upon adoption, the Company applied this guidance to the regulated and unregulated companies' derivative contracts that are recorded 
at fair value and to the marketable securities held in the NU supplemental benefit trust and WMECO's spent nuclear fuel trust.  Fair 
value measurement guidance also applies to investment valuations used to calculate the funded status of NU's Pension and PBOP 
plans and non-recurring fair value measurements of NU's non-financial assets and liabilities, such as Yankee Gas goodwill and AROs.  
 
As a result of adoption, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge to Net income of $6.1 million as of January 1, 2008 related to 
derivative liabilities for its remaining unregulated wholesale marketing contracts.  In 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded benefits of 
$0.7 million and $0.8 million, respectively, to partially reverse the exit price impact recorded as the Company served out rather than 
exited the contract with the New York Municipal Power Authority (NYMPA).  In 2008, the Company also recorded a benefit of $1.8 
million related to a contract that expired in May 2008.    
 
The Company also recorded changes in fair value of certain derivative contracts of CL&P.  Because CL&P is a cost-of-service, rate-
regulated entity, the cost or benefit of the contracts is expected to be fully recovered from or refunded to CL&P's customers, and an 
offsetting regulatory asset or liability was recorded to reflect these changes.  Accordingly, there was no impact to Net income as a result 
of these contracts.    
 
The Company measures its derivative instruments that are not designated as normal and marketable securities at fair value.    
 
Fair Value Hierarchy:  In measuring fair value the Company uses observable market data when available and minimizes the use of 
unobservable inputs.  Unobservable inputs are needed to value certain derivative contracts due to complexities in terms of the 
contracts.  Inputs used in fair value measurements are categorized into three fair value hierarchy levels for disclosure purposes.  The 
entire fair value measurement is categorized based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  The 
three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:  
 

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.  
Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide 
pricing information on an ongoing basis.    

 
Level 2 - Inputs are quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in 
markets that are not active, and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable.  

 
Level 3 - Quoted market prices are not available.  Fair value is derived from valuation techniques in which one or more 
significant inputs or assumptions are unobservable.  Where possible, valuation techniques incorporate observable market 
inputs that can be validated to external sources such as industry exchanges, including prices of energy and energy-related 
products.  Significant unobservable inputs are used in the valuations, including items such as energy and energy-related 
product prices in future years for which observable prices are not yet available, future contract quantities under full-
requirements or supplemental sales contracts, and market volatilities.  Items valued using these valuation techniques are 
classified according to the lowest level for which there is at least one input that is significant to the valuation.  Therefore, an 
item may be classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant inputs that are readily observable.  

 
Determination of Fair Value:  The valuation techniques and inputs used in NU's fair value measurements are as follows:  
 
Derivative instruments:   Many of the Company's derivative positions that are recorded at fair value are classified as Level 3 within the 
fair value hierarchy and are valued using models that incorporate both observable and unobservable inputs.  Fair value is modeled 
using techniques such as discounted cash flow approaches adjusted for assumptions relating to exit price and the Black-Scholes option 
pricing model, incorporating the terms of the contracts.  Significant unobservable inputs used in the valuations include energy and 
energy-related product prices for future years for long-dated derivative contracts, future contract quantities under requirements and 
supplemental sales contracts, and market volatilities.  Discounted cash flow valuations incorporate estimates of premiums or discounts 
that would be required by a market participant to arrive at an exit price, using available historical market transaction  
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information.  Valuations of derivative contracts also reflect nonperformance risk, including credit.  The derivative contracts classified as 
Level 3 include NU Enterprises' remaining wholesale marketing contract and its related supply contracts, CL&P's contracts for 
differences (CfDs), CL&P's contracts with certain independent power producers (IPPs), PSNH and Yankee Gas physical options and 
CL&P and PSNH financial transmission rights (FTRs).  
 
Other derivative contracts recorded at fair value are classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.  An active market for the same 
or similar contracts exists for these contracts, which include PSNH forward contracts to purchase energy and interest rate swap 
agreements.  For these contracts, valuations are based on quoted prices in the market and include some modeling using market-based 
assumptions.  
 
For further information on derivative contracts, see Note 3, "Derivative Instruments," to the consolidated financial statements.  
 
Marketable securities:  NU and WMECO hold in trust marketable securities, which include equity securities, mutual funds and cash 
equivalents, and fixed income securities.  
 
Equity securities, mutual funds and cash equivalents are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.  These investments are traded 
in active markets and quoted prices for identical investments are available and used in NU's fair value measurements.  
 
Fixed income securities classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy include U.S. Treasury securities, corporate bonds, 
collateralized mortgage obligations, U.S. pass-through bonds, asset-backed securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities, and 
commercial paper.  The fair value of these instruments is estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar 
characteristics or discounted cash flows.  The pricing models utilize observable inputs such as recent trades for the same or similar 
instruments, yield curves, discount margins and bond structures.    
 
For further information see Note 4, "Fair Value Measurements," and Note 9, "Marketable Securities," to the consolidated financial 
statements.  
 
There were no changes to the valuation methodologies for derivative instruments or marketable securities for the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008.    
 

Regulatory Accounting  
The accounting policies of the regulated companies conform to GAAP applicable to rate-regulated enterprises and historically reflect 
the effects of the rate-making process.     
 
The transmission and distribution segments of CL&P, PSNH (including its generation business) and WMECO, along with Yankee Gas' 
distribution segment, continue to be rate-regulated on a cost-of-service basis.  Management believes it is probable that NU's regulated 
companies will recover their respective investments in long-lived assets, including regulatory assets.  All material net regulatory assets 
are earning an equity return, except for the majority of deferred benefit cost assets, regulatory assets offsetting derivative liabilities, 
securitized regulatory assets and income tax assets, which are not supported by equity.  Amortization and deferrals of regulatory 
assets/(liabilities) are included on a net basis in Amortization of regulatory assets/(liabilities), net on the accompanying consolidated 
statements of income.  
 
Regulatory Assets:  The components of regulatory assets are as follows:  
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      As of December 31,  
      2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)     NU     NU  
Deferred benefit costs     $  1,132.1     $ 1,140.9  
Regulatory assets offsetting derivative liabilities        855.6        844.2  
Securitized assets        432.9        677.4  
Income taxes, net        363.2        355.4  
Unrecovered contractual obligations        149.5        169.1  
Regulatory tracker deferrals        104.1        128.6  
Storm cost deferral        60.0        19.3  
Conditional asset retirement obligations (Note 1M)        42.9        42.3  
Losses on reacquired debt        24.0        26.4  
Yankee Gas environmental costs        23.3        25.2  
Other regulatory assets        57.3        73.8  
Totals     $  3,244.9     $ 3,502.6  
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Additionally, the regulated companies had $27.1 million ($9.9 million for CL&P, zero for PSNH, and $9.1 million for WMECO) and $68.3 
million ($5.6 million for CL&P and $62.7 million for PSNH) of regulatory costs as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which 
were included in Deferred debits and other assets - other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (refer to Storm Cost 
Deferral below for further information on balances of PSNH).  The $9.1 million for WMECO relates to a reserve established in 2009 for 
uncollectible hardship accounts receivable.  These amounts represent incurred costs that have not yet been approved for recovery by 
the applicable regulatory agency.  Management believes these costs are probable of recovery in future cost-of-service regulated rates.  
 
Deferred Benefit Costs:   NU's Pension, SERP, and PBOP Plans are accounted for in accordance with accounting guidance on defined 
benefit pension and other postretirement plans.  Under this accounting guidance, the funded status of its pension and PBOP plans is 
recorded with an offset to Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) and is remeasured annually.  However, because the 
regulated companies are cost-of-service rate-regulated entities, offsets were recorded as regulatory assets as of December 31, 2009 
and 2008 as these amounts have been and continue to be recoverable in cost-of-service regulated rates.  Regulatory accounting was 
also applied to the portions of the Northeast Utilities Service Company (NUSCO) costs that support the regulated companies, as these 
amounts are also recoverable.  The deferred benefit costs of CL&P and PSNH are not in rate base and are expected to be amortized 
into expense over a period of up to 12 years.  WMECO's deferred benefit costs are earning an equity return at the same rate as the 
assets included in rate base.  
   
Regulatory Assets Offsetting Derivative Liabilities:  The regulatory assets offsetting derivative liabilities relate to the fair value of 
contracts used to purchase power and other related contracts that will be collected from customers in the future.  Included in these 
amounts are $768.7 million and $677.8 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, of derivative liabilities relating to 
CL&P's capacity contracts, referred to as CfDs.  See Note 3, "Derivative Instruments," to the consolidated financial statements for 
further information.  This asset is excluded from rate base and is being recovered as the actual contract costs settle over the duration of 
the contracts.    
 
Securitized Assets:  In March 2001, CL&P issued $1.4 billion in rate reduction bonds (RRBs).  CL&P used $1.1 billion of the proceeds 
from that issuance to buyout or buydown certain contracts with IPPs.  The unamortized CL&P securitized asset balance was $167 
million and $322.9 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which includes $23.2 million and $44.9 million, respectively, 
related to unrecovered contractual obligations.  CL&P also used the proceeds from the issuance of the RRBs to securitize a portion of 
its regulatory assets associated with income taxes.  The securitized income tax regulatory asset had an unamortized balance of $28.4 
million and $54.9 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.    
 
In April 2001, PSNH issued RRBs in the amount of $525 million.  PSNH used the majority of the proceeds from that issuance to 
buydown its power contracts with an affiliate, North Atlantic Energy Corporation.  In May 2001, WMECO issued $155 million in RRBs 
and used the majority of the proceeds from that issuance to buyout an IPP contract.    
 
Securitized regulatory assets, which are not earning an equity return, are being recovered over the amortization period of their 
associated RRBs.  All outstanding CL&P RRBs are scheduled to fully amortize by December 30, 2010, while PSNH RRBs are 
scheduled to fully amortize by May 1, 2013, and WMECO RRBs are scheduled to fully amortize by June 1, 2013.  
 
Income Taxes, Net:  The tax effect of temporary differences (differences between the periods in which transactions affect income in the 
financial statements and the periods in which they affect the determination of taxable income, including those differences relating to 
uncertain tax positions) is accounted for in accordance with the rate-making treatment of the applicable regulatory commissions and 
accounting guidance for income taxes.  Differences in income taxes between the accounting guidance and the rate-making treatment of 
the applicable regulatory commissions are recorded as regulatory assets.  For further information regarding income taxes, see Note 1I, 
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Income Taxes," to the consolidated financial statements.    
 
Unrecovered Contractual Obligations:  Under the terms of contracts with the Connecticut Yankee Atomic Power Company (CYAPC), 
Yankee Atomic Electric Company (YAEC), and Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company (MYAPC) (Yankee Companies), CL&P, PSNH, 
and WMECO are responsible for their proportionate share of the remaining costs of the nuclear facilities, including decommissioning.  A 
portion of these amounts was recorded as unrecovered contractual obligations regulatory assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. 
 A portion of these obligations for CL&P was securitized in 2001 and was included in securitized regulatory assets.  Amounts for CL&P 
are earning a return and are being recovered through the Competitive Transition Assessment (CTA).  Amounts for WMECO are  
 
 

     As of December 31,  

     2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)    CL&P    PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH    WMECO  
Deferred benefit costs    $ 502.4    $ 154.2     $ 104.9     $ 537.7     $ 142.9    $ 113.5  
Regulatory assets offsetting derivative liabilities      828.6      26.4        -        751.9        92.1      -  
Securitized assets      195.4      180.1        57.4        377.8        227.6      72.0  
Income taxes, net      304.1      21.9        16.9        306.8        16.1      20.7  
Unrecovered contractual obligations      118.0      -        31.5        132.6        -      36.5  
Regulatory tracker deferrals      70.3      19.0        11.3        113.8        13.3      0.2  
Storm cost deferral      -      50.8        9.2        -        8.2      11.1  
Conditional asset retirement obligations (Note 1M)     23.8      14.0        2.8        23.1        13.9      2.8  
Losses on reacquired debt      12.7      9.2        0.4        14.0        10.1      0.5  
Other regulatory assets      13.5      18.5        6.4        16.4        25.7      11.1  
Totals    $ 2,068.8    $ 494.1     $ 240.8     $ 2,274.1     $ 549.9    $ 268.4  
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being recovered without a return along with other stranded costs and are anticipated to be recovered by 2013, the scheduled 
completion date of stranded cost recovery.  Amounts for PSNH were fully recovered by 2006.    
 
Regulatory Tracker Deferrals:   Regulatory tracker deferrals are approved restructuring rate mechanisms that allow utilities to recover 
costs in specific business segments through reconcilable tracking mechanisms that are reviewed at least annually by the applicable 
regulatory commission.  Regulatory tracker deferrals are recorded as regulatory assets if unrecovered costs are in excess of collections 
and are recorded as regulatory liabilities if collections are in excess of costs.  The following regulatory tracker deferrals were recorded 
as either regulatory assets or liabilities as of December 31, 2009 and 2008:  
   
CL&P Tracker Deferrals : The CTA allows CL&P to recover stranded costs, such as securitization costs associated with the RRBs, 
amortization of regulatory assets, and IPP over market costs.  As of December 31, 2009, CL&P's CTA was a $32.2 million regulatory 
asset, as CTA unrecovered costs were in excess of CTA collections.  As of December 31, 2008, CTA collections were in excess of CTA 
costs, and a $47.7 million regulatory liability was recorded.  As part of the CTA reconciliation process, CL&P has also established an 
obligation to potentially refund the variable incentive portion of its transition service procurement fee, which totaled $23.2 million and 
$21.8 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and was recorded as a regulatory liability.    
 
The conservation and load management (C&LM) charge allows CL&P to recover the costs of C&LM programs.  C&LM overcollections 
totaled $32.8 million and were recorded as a regulatory liability as of December 31, 2009 whereas C&LM undercollections totaled $17.6 
million and were recorded as a regulatory asset as of December 31, 2008.  
 
The Generation Service Charge (GSC) allows CL&P to recover the costs of the procurement of energy for Standard Service (SS) and 
Last Resort Service (LRS).  The Federally Mandated Congestion Charges (FMCC) mechanism allows CL&P to recover the costs of 
congestion and other costs associated with power market rules approved by the FERC.  As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, CL&P's 
GSC and FMCC were recorded as a $2.4 million and $31.9 million regulatory asset, respectively, as GSC and FMCC unrecovered 
costs were in excess of GSC and FMCC collections.    
 
The Systems Benefits Charge (SBC) allows CL&P to recover certain regulatory and energy public policy costs, such as public 
education outreach costs, hardship protection costs, transition period property taxes and displaced workers protection costs.  As of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, SBC undercollections totaled $18 million and $43.3 million, respectively, and were recorded as a 
regulatory asset, as SBC unrecovered costs were in excess of SBC collections.  
 
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, CL&P retail transmission costs were in excess of collections and $17.7 million and $21 million, 
respectively, were recorded as a regulatory asset.  
 
PSNH Tracker Deferrals :  PSNH recovers the cost of C&LM programs and C&LM overcollections totaled $4.4 million and $4.6 million 
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  
 
PSNH default energy service (ES) revenues and costs are fully tracked, and the difference between ES revenues and costs are 
deferred.  ES deferrals are being collected from/refunded to customers through a charge/(credit) in the subsequent ES rate period.  As 
of December 31, 2009, the ES deferral was in an underrecovery position of $8.4 million and was recorded as a regulatory asset 
whereas the ES deferral was in an overrecovery position of $33 million and was recorded as a regulatory liability as of December 31, 
2008.  
 
The Stranded Cost Recovery Charge (SCRC) allows PSNH to recover restructuring costs as a result of deregulation and the 
Transmission Cost Adjustment Mechanism (TCAM) covers retail transmission costs incurred by PSNH's distribution business.  As of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, SCRC undercollections totaled $3.9 million and $10.3 million, respectively, and TCAM undercollections 
totaled $6.7 million and $3 million, respectively.    
 
WMECO Tracker Deferrals :   The C&LM charge allows WMECO to recover the costs of C&LM programs.  C&LM undercollections 
totaled $2.5 million and $0.2 million and were recorded as a regulatory asset as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.    
 
The default service rate allows WMECO to recover the costs of the procurement of energy for basic service.  Default service 
overcollections totaled $2.1 million and $1.3 million and were recorded as a regulatory liability as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively.    
 
As part of a rate case settlement, WMECO's pension and PBOP plan costs have been approved to be recovered through a tracking 
mechanism beginning January 1, 2007.  The approved tracking mechanism also allows WMECO to earn a return on its pension and 
PBOP assets and liabilities at its weighted average cost of capital, including the deferred future pension and PBOP benefit obligations. 
As of December 31, 2009, pension/PBOP undercollections totaled $1 million and were recorded as a regulatory asset as the 
pension/PBOP expenses exceeded the revenue collected from customers.  As of December 31, 2008, pension/PBOP overcollections 
totaled $2 million and were recorded as a regulatory liability.  
 
WMECO recovers its stranded costs through a transition charge.  This amount represents the cumulative excess of transition expenses 
over transition revenues.  Transition charge undercollections totaled $6.9 million and were recorded as a regulatory asset as of 
December 31, 2009.  As of December 31, 2008, transition charge overcollections totaled $5.7 million and were recorded as a regulatory 
liability.    
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As of December 31, 2009, WMECO retail transmission costs were in excess of collections and $0.9 million was recorded as a 
regulatory asset.  As of December 31, 2008, retail transmission collections were in excess of costs and $0.2 million was recorded as a 
regulatory liability.  
 
Storm Cost Deferral:  The storm cost deferral relates to costs incurred at PSNH and WMECO for restorations that met regulatory 
agency specified criteria for deferral to a major storm cost reserve.  The deferral as of December 31, 2009 relates primarily to $48.1 
million of remaining costs incurred at PSNH for a major storm in December 2008.  In July 2009, the NHPUC concluded in a temporary 
rate order that PSNH could begin recovery of these storm costs.  These assets are included in rate base.  WMECO expects to begin 
recovery of its deferred storm costs as a result of its next distribution rate proceeding.  
 
Yankee Gas Environmental Costs:  The regulatory asset relates to environmental remediation costs at Yankee Gas.  The DPUC 
approved an allowed level of remediation cost recoveries of approximately $2.2 million annually effective July 1, 2007.  The DPUC has 
stated that to the extent that environmental remediation expenses are prudently incurred, they should be allowed as proper operating 
expenses; therefore, management continues to believe that recording the regulatory asset is appropriate as such costs are probable of 
recovery.    
 
Losses on Reacquired Debt:   The regulatory asset relates to the losses associated with the reacquisition or redemption of long-term 
debt.  These deferred losses are amortized over the life of the new long-term debt issuance.  
 
Regulatory Liabilities:  The components of regulatory liabilities are as follows:    
 

 

 
Cost of Removal:  NU's regulated companies currently recover amounts in rates for future costs of removal of plant assets over the 
lives of the assets.  These amounts are classified as Regulatory liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  This 
liability is included in rate base.  
   
Regulatory Liabilities Offsetting Derivative Assets:  The regulatory liabilities offsetting derivative assets relate to the fair value of 
contracts used to purchase power and other related contracts that will benefit ratepayers in the future.  See Note 3, "Derivative 
Instruments," to the consolidated financial statements for further information.  This liability is excluded from rate base and is refunded as 
the actual contract costs settle over the duration of the contracts.  
 
Pension and PBOP Liabilities - Yankee Gas Acquisition:  When Yankee Gas was acquired by NU, the pension and PBOP liabilities 
were adjusted to fair value with offsets to these adjustments recorded as regulatory liabilities, as approved by the DPUC.  The pension 
and PBOP liabilities were approved for amortization over an approximate 13- and 6-year period, respectively, beginning in 2002 without 
a return on the liabilities.  The PBOP liability was fully amortized as of February 2009.  
 
Overrecovered Gas Costs:   The Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA) clause allows Yankee Gas to recover the costs of the procurement 
of gas for Yankee Gas' firm and seasonal customers.  Differences between actual gas costs and collection amounts on August 31 st of 
each year are deferred and then recovered or returned to customers during the following year.  Carrying charges on outstanding 
balances are calculated using Yankee Gas' weighted average cost of capital in accordance with the directives of the DPUC.  
 
WMECO Provision for Rate Refunds:   The provision for rate refunds was established to reserve a refund to customers as a result of 
DPU service quality penalty guidelines.    
 
 
 

      As of December 31,  
      2009     2008  
 (Millions of Dollars)     NU     NU  
Cost of removal     $  209.2     $  226.0  
Regulatory liabilities offsetting derivative assets        109.4        137.8  
Regulatory tracker deferrals        62.5        116.2  
CL&P AFUDC transmission incentive (Note 1L)        50.4        47.6  
Pension and PBOP liabilities -  
  Yankee Gas acquisition        

 
15.0        

 
17.6  

Overrecovered gas costs        7.1        16.9  
Other regulatory liabilities        32.1        30.4  
Totals     $  485.7     $  592.5  

     As of December 31,  

     2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)    CL&P    PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH    WMECO  
Cost of removal    $ 82.2    $ 60.5     $ 16.6     $ 91.2     $ 64.7    $ 19.2  
Regulatory liabilities offsetting derivative assets      109.0      0.4        -        131.3        4.6      -  
Regulatory tracker deferrals      56.0      4.4        2.1        69.5        37.6      9.1  
CL&P AFUDC transmission incentive (Note 1L)      50.4      -        -        47.6        -      -  
WMECO provision for rate refunds      -      -        2.0        -        -      1.3  
Other regulatory liabilities      18.6      4.6        1.0        23.9        4.5      0.2  

Totals    $ 316.2    $ 69.9     $ 21.7     $ 363.5     $ 111.4    $ 29.8  
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Income Taxes  
The tax effect of temporary differences is accounted for in accordance with the rate-making treatment of the applicable regulatory 
commissions and relevant accounting guidance.  Details of income tax expense related to continuing operations are as follows:  
 

 

I. 

      For the Years Ended December 31,  
      2009     2008     2007  
      NU     NU     NU  
(Millions of Dollars)        
The components of the federal and state  
  income tax provisions are:        

   
      

   
      

   

Current income taxes:                             
  Federal     $  4.5     $ 6.0      $  89.3   
  State        52.7        16.3         18.9   
     Total current        57.2        22.3         108.2   
Deferred income taxes, net:                             
  Federal        155.1        100.2         26.2   
  State        (29.2)       (13.4)        (21.4)  
    Total deferred        125.9        86.8         4.8   
Investment tax credits, net        (3.2)       (3.4)        (3.6)  
Income tax expense     $  179.9     $ 105.7      $  109.4   

      For the Years Ended December 31,  

      2009     2008     2007  

      CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH    WMECO  
(Millions of Dollars)        
Current income taxes:                                                       
  Federal     $  28.3     $  (8.9)    $  (8.6)    $  13.9     $  0.8     $ (1.4)    $  36.3     $ 21.9    $ 26.4  

  State        40.1        5.8        0.9        19.0        (3.6)       -        (10.0)       5.9      3.8  

     Total current        68.4        (3.1)       (7.7)       32.9        (2.8)       (1.4)       26.3        27.8      30.2  

Deferred income taxes, net:                                                                                 
  Federal        80.5        34.4        21.3        68.0        17.4        10.4        23.5        (1.7)     (12.9) 

  State        (27.6)       0.8        1.6        (20.4)       7.6        1.8        5.2        (3.0)     (2.4) 

    Total deferred        52.9        35.2        22.9        47.6        25.0        12.2        28.7        (4.7)     (15.3) 

Investment tax credits, net        (2.5)       (0.1)       (0.3)       (2.6)       (0.2)       (0.2)       (2.6)       (0.3)     (0.3) 

Income tax expense     $  118.8     $  32.0     $  14.9     $  77.9     $  22.0     $ 10.6     $  52.4     $ 22.8    $ 14.6  

 
A reconciliation between income tax expense and the expected tax expense at the statutory rate is as follows:  
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      For the Years Ended December 31,  
      2009     2008     2007  
      NU     NU     NU  
      (Millions of Dollars, except percentages)  
Income from continuing operations  
  before income tax expense     $  

 
515.5  

   
   $  

 
372.0  

   
   $  

 
360.9  

   

                                       
Expected federal income tax expense        180.4           130.2           126.3     
Tax effect of differences:                                      
  Depreciation        (2.7)          (12.9)          (6.6)    
  Investment tax credit amortization        (3.2)           (3.4)           (3.6)    
  Other federal tax credits        (3.8)          (4.6)          (4.2)    
  State income taxes, net of federal impact        11.5           (9.5)          (9.6)    
  Medicare subsidy        (3.5)          (4.2)          (4.4)    
  Tax asset valuation allowance/reserve adjustments        3.8           12.5           10.5     
  Other, net        (2.6)          (2.4)          1.0     
Income tax expense     $  179.9        $  105.7        $  109.4     
Effective tax rate        34.9  %        28.4  %        30.3  %  
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NU, CL&P, PSNH, and WMECO file a consolidated federal income tax return and file separate state income tax returns, with some 
filing in more than one state.  These entities are also parties to a tax allocation agreement under which taxable subsidiaries do not pay 
any more taxes than they would have otherwise paid had they filed a separate company tax return, and subsidiaries generating tax 
losses, if any, are paid for their losses when utilized.  
 
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the current and long-term net accumulated deferred tax obligations are as 
follows:  
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      For the Years Ended December 31,  

      2009      2008        2007  

      CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO  

      (Millions of Dollars, except percentages)  
Income from continuing operations  
  before income tax expense     

 
$  

 
335.2  

       
$  

 
97.6  

       
$  

 
41.1  

       
$  

 
269.0  

       
$  

 
80.1  

       
$ 

 
28.9  

       
$  

 
185.9  

       
$ 

 
77.2  

       
$ 

 
38.2  

   

                                                                                                               
Expected federal income tax expense        117.3           34.1           14.4           94.2           28.0           10.1           65.1           27.0           13.4     
Tax effect of differences:                                                                                                              
  Depreciation        (1.7)          (1.2)          0.3           (11.1)          (1.8)          0.1           (6.6)          -           0.5     
  Investment tax credit amortization        (2.5)          (0.1)          (0.3)          (2.6)          (0.2)          (0.2)          (2.6)         (0.3)          (0.3)    
  Other federal tax credits        (0.1)          (3.7)          -           (1.2)          (3.4)          -           (1.1)          (3.1)          -     
  State income taxes, net of  
    federal impact        

 
8.9  

   
      

 
4.3  

   
      

 
1.6  

   
      

 
(18.5)    

   
   

 
2.6  

      
   

 
1.2  

   
      

 
(11.9) 

   
      

 
1.9  

      
   

 
0.9  

   

  Medicare subsidy        (1.3)          (0.6)          (0.3)          (1.5)          (0.8)          (0.4)          (1.8)          (0.9)          (0.4)    
  Tax asset valuation allowance/  
    reserve adjustments        

 
(0.8) 

   
      

 
-  
   

      
 

-  
   

      
 

19.8     
   
   

 
-  
      

   
 

-  
   

      
 

10.9  
   

      
 

-  
      

   
 

-  
   

  Other, net        (1.0)          (0.8)          (0.8)          (1.2)          (2.4)          (0.2)          0.4           (1.8)          0.5     
Income tax expense     $  118.8        $  32.0        $  14.9        $  77.9        $  22.0        $ 10.6        $  52.4        $ 22.8        $ 14.6     
Effective tax rate        35.4  %       32.8  %       36.3  %       28.9  %       27.5  %       36.7  %       28.2  %       29.5  %       38.2  % 

      As of December 31,  
      2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)     NU     NU  
Deferred tax liabilities - current:                    
  Derivative asset and change in fair value of energy contracts     $  8.5     $ 12.5  
  Property tax accruals and other        49.3        47.5  
Total deferred tax liabilities - current        57.8        60.0  
Deferred tax assets - current:                      
  Derivative liability and change in fair value of energy contracts        17.5        42.4  
  Allowance for uncollectible accounts and other        50.1        35.3  
Total deferred tax assets - current        67.6        77.7  
Net deferred tax (assets)/liabilities – current        (9.8)       (17.7) 
Deferred tax liabilities - long-term:                    
  Accelerated depreciation and other plant-related differences        1,351.0        1,155.4  
  Regulatory amounts:                    
     Securitized contract termination costs        101.6        135.3  
     Other regulatory deferrals        848.6        875.8  
     Income tax gross-up        179.8        192.6  
     Derivative assets        71.6        88.1  
     Other        28.2        14.5  
Total deferred tax liabilities - long-term        2,580.8        2,461.7  
Deferred tax assets - long-term:                    
   Regulatory deferrals        133.0        168.2  
   Employee benefits        493.1        481.3  
   Income tax gross-up        25.8        29.0  
   Derivative liability        374.9        364.8  
   Other        193.7        211.3  
Total deferred tax assets - long-term        1,220.5        1,254.6  
Less: valuation allowance        19.8        16.4  
Net deferred tax assets - long-term        1,200.7        1,238.2  
Net deferred tax liabilities - long-term        1,380.1        1,223.5  
Net deferred tax liabilities     $  1,370.3     $ 1,205.8  
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Net deferred tax liabilities/(assets) - current are recorded as current liabilities or assets and are included in Current liabilities - other or 
Prepayments and other, respectively, on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 
As of December 31, 2009, NU had state net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards of $323.9 million that expire between December 31, 
2010 and December 31, 2027 and state credit carryforwards of $88.7 million that expire by December 31, 2014.  As of December 31, 
2008, NU had state NOL carryforwards of $269.1 million that expire between December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2028 and state 
credit carryforwards of $90.8 million that expire by December 31, 2013.  The NOL carryforward deferred tax asset has been fully 
reserved by a valuation allowance.  As of December 31, 2009, CL&P had state tax credit carryforwards of $61.1 million that expire by 
2014.  As of December 31, 2008, CL&P had state tax credit carryforwards of $64.4 million that expire by 2013.  
 
On July 3, 2008, Massachusetts amended its corporate excise tax provisions, which were effective for tax years beginning on or after 
January 1, 2009.  Companies must account for the impact of income tax law changes in the period that includes the enactment date of 
the law change.  As a result, WMECO recorded an estimate of the impact of the new legislation as a $11.9 million decrease to Deferred 
tax liabilities and a decrease to Regulatory assets on its consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008.    
 
Unrecognized Tax Benefits:   As of December 31, 2009, NU and CL&P had unrecognized tax benefits totaling $124.3 million and $89 
million, all of which would impact the effective tax rate if recognized.  As of December 31, 2008, the portion of NU and CL&P 
unrecognized tax benefits that would impact the effective tax rate, if recognized, were $120 million and $87 million, respectively.  As of 
December 31, 2007, the portion of NU and CL&P unrecognized tax benefits that would impact the effective tax rate, if recognized, were 
$93 million and $62.3 million, respectively.  A reconciliation of the activity in unrecognized tax benefits from January 1, 2007 to 
December 31, 2009 is as follows:  
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     As of December 31,  

     2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)    CL&P    PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH    WMECO  
Deferred tax assets - current:                                                    
  Derivative liability and change in fair value  
    of energy contracts    $ 

 
2.6    $ 

 
7.4     $ 

 
-     $ 

 
3.5     $ 

 
30.6  

  
$ 

 
-  

  Allowance for uncollectible accounts and other      25.3      6.0        2.8        24.3        1.4      2.6  
Total deferred tax assets - current      27.9      13.4        2.8        27.8        32.0      2.6  

Deferred tax liabilities - current:                                                  
  Derivative asset and change in fair value  
    of energy contracts      

 
8.3      

 
0.2        

 
-        

 
12.2        

 
0.3  

  
  

 
-  

  Property tax accruals and other      31.2      5.1        3.0        32.3        4.4      2.5  

Total deferred tax liabilities - current      39.5      5.3        3.0        44.5        4.7      2.5  

Net deferred tax liabilities/(assets) - current      11.6      (8.1)       0.2        16.7        (27.3)     (0.1) 

Deferred tax assets - long-term:                                                  
   Regulatory deferrals      70.0      36.2        5.4        82.3        51.1      12.1  
   Employee benefits      85.2      135.1        8.3        101.9        121.5      13.1  
   Income tax gross-up      12.8      2.2        7.2        14.3        2.8      7.3  
   Derivative liability      364.5      3.0        -        338.2        5.9      -  
   Other      88.8      9.5        8.4        110.7        21.2      13.9  

Net deferred tax assets - long-term      621.3      186.0        29.3        647.4        202.5      46.4  

Deferred tax liabilities - long-term:                                                  
  Accelerated depreciation and other  
    plant-related differences      

 
754.1      

 
263.1        

 
152.8        

 
638.0        

 
216.3  

  
  

 
135.2  

  Regulatory amounts:                                                  
    Securitized contract termination costs      9.6      69.9        22.1        19.3        88.4      27.6  
    Other regulatory deferrals      536.2      111.1        51.2        548.2        134.2      53.4  
    Income tax gross-up      145.3      10.9        14.0        158.5        9.1      15.7  
    Derivative assets      71.4      -        -        85.8        1.5      -  
    Other      6.2      6.7        0.6        9.0        6.7      1.8  

Total deferred tax liabilities - long-term      1,522.8      461.7        240.7        1,458.8        456.2      233.7  

Net deferred tax liabilities - long-term      901.5      275.7        211.4        811.4        253.7      187.3  

Net deferred tax liabilities    $ 913.1    $ 267.6     $ 211.6     $ 828.1     $ 226.4    $ 187.2  
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Interest and Penalties:   Interest on uncertain tax positions is recorded and generally classified as a component of other interest 
expense.  However, when resolution of uncertainties results in the Company receiving interest income, any related interest benefit is 
recorded in Other income, net on the accompanying consolidated statements of income.  No penalties have been recorded.  If penalties 
are recorded in the future, then the estimated penalties would be classified as a component of Other income, net on the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income.  The components of interest on uncertain tax positions by company in 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as 
follows:    
 

 
*The PSNH and WMECO amounts were reflected in Other income, net on the accompanying consolidated statements of income.  
 
Tax Positions:  In 2009, several tax authorities completed examinations and other reviews of various tax years, resulting in the closure 
of federal and state tax audits, which decreased tax expense by approximately $3 million at NU and CL&P.  NU is currently working to 
resolve the treatments of certain timing and other costs in the remaining open periods.  
 
In September 2008, NU and the IRS reached a settlement agreement related to the timing for deducting certain costs.  This agreement 
closed the federal tax years 2002 through 2004 and resulted in a refund of $123 million less a $35 million payment for 2005.  While this 
settlement resulted in $10.1 million of pre-tax interest income ($6.4 million for CL&P, $1.9 million for PSNH and $1.1 million for 
WMECO), recorded in Other income, net on the accompanying consolidated statement of income, it did not have a significant impact on 
income tax expense.    
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      NU  
(Millions of Dollars)           
Balance as of January 1, 2007     $  86.1  
  Gross increases - current year        25.0  
  Gross increases - prior year        10.6  
  Lapse of statute of limitations        (0.6) 
Balance as of December 31, 2007        121.1  
  Gross increases - current year        28.6  
  Gross increases - prior year        7.4  
  Lapse of statute of limitations        (0.8) 
Balance as of December 31, 2008        156.3  
  Gross increases - current year        12.3  
  Settlement        (44.2) 
  Lapse of statute of limitations        (0.1) 
Balance as of December 31, 2009     $  124.3  

      CL&P     PSNH     WMECO  
(Millions of Dollars)                             
Balance as of January 1, 2007     $  62.6     $  0.8     $  -  
  Gross increases - current year        23.5        -        -  
  Gross (decreases)/increases - prior year        (10.2)       9.8        2.9  
  Lapse of statute of limitations        -        -        -  
Balance as of December 31, 2007        75.9        10.6        2.9  
  Gross increases - current year        24.9        -        -  
  Gross increases - prior year        5.6        1.8        0.9  
  Lapse of statute of limitations        -        -        -  
Balance as of December 31, 2008        106.4        12.4        3.8  
  Gross increases - current year        8.6        -        -  
  Settlement        (26.0)       (12.4)       (3.8) 
  Lapse of statute of limitations        -        -        -  
Balance as of December 31, 2009     $  89.0     $  -     $  -  

Other Interest     For the Years Ended December 31,     Accrued Interest     As of December 31,  
Expense/(Income)     2009     2008     2007     Expense/(Income)     2009     2008  

(Millions of Dollars)                                (Millions of Dollars)                    
CL&P     $  (4.2)    $  4.8     $  2.3     CL&P     $  13.8     $  18.0  

PSNH        (1.3)       -        (1.1) *  PSNH        0.5        1.8  

WMECO        (0.4)       0.2        (1.4) *  WMECO        -        0.4  

NU parent and other        1.9        3.2        2.6     NU parent and other        20.4        18.5  

Total     $  (4.0)    $  8.2     $  2.4     Total     $  34.7     $  38.7  
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Tax Years:   The following table summarizes NU, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO's tax years that remain subject to examination by major 
tax jurisdictions as of December 31, 2009:    
 

 
While discussions are currently ongoing with tax authorities, it is reasonably possible that one or more of these open tax years could be 
resolved within the next twelve months.  Management estimates that potential resolutions, which relate to timing and other differences, 
could result in a zero to $22 million decrease in unrecognized tax benefits on an NU consolidated basis and a zero to $14 million 
decrease in unrecognized tax benefits by CL&P.  These estimated changes are related to timing and other tax impacts, which could 
have an impact on NU and CL&P 2010 earnings of zero to $14 million and zero to $9 million, respectively.  Other companies' impacts 
are not expected to be material.  
 

Property, Plant and Equipment and Accumulated Depre ciation  
The following tables summarize the NU, CL&P, PSNH, and WMECO investments in utility plant as of December 31, 2009 and 2008:  
 

 
(1) These assets primarily relate to the Rocky River Realty Company (RRR) ($143.8 million and $119.7 million) and NUSCO ($109 

million and $135 million) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.    
 

 
PSNH charges planned major maintenance activities to Operating expense unless the cost represents the acquisition of additional 
components.  PSNH capitalizes the cost of plant additions.    
 
In 2008, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO entered into certain equipment purchase contracts that required the Company to make advance 
payments during the design, manufacturing, shipment and installation of equipment.  As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, these 
advance payments totaled $27 million and $13.8 million, respectively ($5.4 million and $3.6 million for CL&P, $16.6 million and $8.9 
million for PSNH and $5 million and $1.3 million for WMECO), respectively, and are included in Property, plant and equipment, net on 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
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Description     Tax Years  

Federal     2009  
Connecticut     2001 – 2009  
New Hampshire     2006 – 2009  
Massachusetts     2006 – 2009  

J. 

      As of December 31,  
      2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)     NU     NU  
Distribution - electric     $  5,893.9     $  5,600.7  
Distribution - gas        1,071.1        1,043.7  
Transmission        3,219.2        2,981.2  
Generation        660.1        637.5  
Electric and gas utility        10,844.3        10,263.1  

Other (1)        265.6        290.1  
Total property, plant and equipment        11,109.9        10,553.2  
Less:  accumulated depreciation                    
   Electric and gas utility           2,721.3        2,610.5  
   Other        120.3        159.6  
Total accumulated depreciation        2,841.6        2,770.1  
Net property, plant and equipment        8,268.3        7,783.1  
Construction work in progress        571.7        424.8  
Total property, plant and equipment, net     $  8,840.0     $  8,207.9  

     As of December 31,  

     2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)    CL&P    PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH    WMECO  
Distribution    $ 3,960.1    $ 1,309.2     $ 654.9     $ 3,780.3     $ 1,228.6    $ 625.0  
Transmission      2,573.2      450.2        195.7        2,464.4        372.4      156.5  
Generation      -      660.1        -        -        637.5      -  

Total property, plant and equipment      6,533.3      2,419.5        850.6        6,244.7        2,238.5      781.5  
Less: accumulated depreciation      1,426.6      805.5        218.2        1,346.1        771.3      214.7  
Net property, plant and equipment      5,106.7      1,614.0        632.4        4,898.6        1,467.2      566.8  
Construction work in progress      233.9      200.7        73.4        190.5        113.8      57.4  

Total property, plant and equipment, net    $ 5,340.6    $ 1,814.7     $ 705.8     $ 5,089.1     $ 1,581.0    $ 624.2  
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The following table summarizes average depreciable lives as of December 31, 2009:    
 

 
The provision for depreciation on utility assets is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated remaining useful 
lives of depreciable plant in-service, adjusted for salvage value and removal costs, as approved by the appropriate regulatory agency 
(the DPUC, NHPUC, and the DPU for CL&P, PSNH, and WMECO, respectively).  Depreciation rates are applied to plant-in-service 
from the time it is placed in service.  When a plant is retired from service, the original cost of the plant is charged to the accumulated 
provision for depreciation, which includes cost of removal less salvage.  Cost of removal is classified as a Regulatory liability.  The 
depreciation rates for the several classes of utility plant-in-service are equivalent to composite rates as follows:  
 

 
Equity Method Investments  

Regional Nuclear Companies :  As of December 31, 2009, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO owned common stock in three regional nuclear 
companies (Yankee Companies).  Each of the Yankee Companies owned a single nuclear generating plant that has been 
decommissioned.  Ownership interests in the Yankee Companies as of December 31, 2009, which are accounted for on the equity 
method, are as follows:  
 

 
The total carrying values of ownership interests in CYAPC, YAEC and MYAPC, which are included in Deferred debits and other assets 
- other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the Regulated companies - Electric distribution reportable segment, are 
as follows:    
 

 
Regional Transmission Companies:  NU parent has a 22.7 percent equity ownership interest in two companies that transmit electricity 
imported from the Hydro-Québec system in Canada.  NU parent's investment, which is included in Deferred debits and other assets - 
other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, totaled $6.2 million and $7.2 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively.  
 
Dividends received from the Yankee Companies and the regional transmission companies investments were recorded as a reduction to 
NU's, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, investment and were $3.8 million, $1 million, and $4.5 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively ($1.5 million, zero, and $2.6 million for CL&P, $0.2 million, zero, and $0.5 million for 
PSNH and $0.4 million, zero, and $0.7 million for WMECO, respectively).       
 
Net earnings related to these equity investments are included in Other income, net on the accompanying consolidated statements of 
income.  For further information, see Note 1R, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Other Income, Net," to the consolidated 
financial statements.    
 
For further information on the Yankee Companies, see Note 7D, "Commitments and Contingencies - Deferred Contractual Obligations," 
to the consolidated financial statements.    
 
The application of the equity method is considered the appropriate method to account for the Yankee Companies and the regional 
transmission companies investments because NU has the ability to exercise significant influence over the investees' operating and 
financial policies.  
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      Average Depreciable Life  
(Years)        NU        CL&P        PSNH        WMECO  

Distribution        33.3        30.3        40.4        32.7  
Transmission        43.7        42.6        46.7        55.8  
Generation        31.7        -        31.7        -  
Other        19.7        -        -        -  

(Percent)     2009     2008     2007  

NU        2.9        3.0        3.2  
CL&P        3.0        3.1        3.3  
PSNH        2.7        2.7        2.8  
WMECO        2.9        2.8        2.9  

K. 

(Percent)     CYAPC     YAEC     MYAPC  

CL&P        34.5        24.5        12.0     
PSNH        5.0        7.0        5.0     
WMECO        9.5        7.0        3.0     
Total NU        49.0  %     38.5  %     20.0  %  

(Millions of Dollars)     2009     2008  

CL&P     $  1.6     $  5.0  
PSNH        0.4        0.8  
WMECO        0.5        1.4  
Total NU     $  2.5     $  7.2  
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Allowance for Funds Used During Construction  
Allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) is included in the cost of the regulated companies' utility plant and represents 
the cost of borrowed and equity funds used to finance construction.  The portion of AFUDC attributable to borrowed funds is recorded 
as a reduction of Other interest expense and the AFUDC related to equity funds is recorded as Other income, net on the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income.  
 

 

 
The regulated companies' average AFUDC rate is based on a FERC-prescribed formula that produces an average rate using the cost 
of a company's short-term financings as well as a company's capitalization (preferred stock, long-term debt and common equity).  The 
average rate is applied to average eligible CWIP amounts to calculate AFUDC.  AFUDC is recorded on 100 percent of CL&P's and 
WMECO's CWIP for their NEEWS projects, all of which is being reserved as a regulatory liability to reflect current rate base recovery for 
100 percent of the CWIP as a result of FERC-approved transmission incentives.  For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
50 percent of AFUDC related to other major transmission projects at CL&P were being reserved as a regulatory liability to reflect 
current rate base recovery for 50 percent of the CWIP as a result of FERC-approved transmission incentives.    
 

Asset Retirement Obligations  
In accordance with accounting guidance for conditional AROs, NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, recognizes a liability for the 
fair value of an ARO on the obligation date if the liability's fair value can be reasonably estimated and is conditional on a future event. 
 The guidance provides that settlement dates and future costs should be reasonably estimated when sufficient information becomes 
available and provides direction on the definition and timing of sufficient information in determining expected cash flows and fair values. 
 Management has identified various categories of AROs, primarily certain assets containing asbestos and hazardous contamination.  A 
fair value calculation, reflecting expected probabilities for settlement scenarios, has been performed.  
 
The fair value of an ARO is recorded as a liability in Deferred credits and other liabilities - other with an offset included in Property, plant 
and equipment, net on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  The ARO assets are depreciated, and the ARO liabilities are 
accreted over the estimated life of the obligation with corresponding credits recorded as accumulated depreciation and ARO liabilities, 
respectively.  Both the depreciation and accretion were recorded as increases to Regulatory assets on the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.    
 
As the regulated companies are cost-of-service, rate-regulated entities, these companies apply regulatory accounting guidance and the 
costs associated with the regulated companies' AROs were included in other regulatory assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.    
 
The following tables present the ARO asset, the related accumulated depreciation, the regulatory asset, and the ARO liabilities as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008:    
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L. 

      For the Years Ended December 31,  
      NU  
(Millions of Dollars, except percentages)     2009     2008     2007  
AFUDC:                                      
  Borrowed funds     $  5.9        $  17.8        $  17.5     
  Equity funds        9.4           29.0           17.4     
Totals     $  15.3        $  46.8        $  34.9     
Average AFUDC rates        6.1  %        8.1  %        7.6  % 

      For the Years Ended December 31,  

      2009     2008     2007  
(Millions of Dollars, except 
percentages)  CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH  

   
WMECO     CL&P     PSNH  

   
WMECO  

AFUDC:                                                                                     
  Borrowed funds     $  2.2       $  3.1       $  0.2       $  13.0       $  3.0       $ 1.0       $  10.9       $ 3.0       $ 1.0    
  Equity funds        5.7          3.6          -          23.2          4.4          1.2          14.2          2.0          0.2    

Totals     $  7.9       $  6.7       $  0.2       $  36.2       $  7.4       $ 2.2       $  25.1       $ 5.0       $ 1.2    
Average AFUDC rates        7.2%       6.2%       1.7%       8.4%       7.9%       7.6%       8.0%       7.0%       6.1% 

M. 

NU     As of December 31, 2009  
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)  

   
 

ARO Asset  

   Accumulated  
Depreciation of  

ARO Asset  

    
Regulatory  

Asset  

    
ARO  

Liabilities  
Asbestos     $ 2.7     $  (1.7)    $ 21.8     $  (23.9) 
Hazardous contamination        4.9        (1.4)       16.2        (20.2) 
Other AROs        2.6        (1.2)       4.9        (6.5) 
  Total AROs     $ 10.2     $  (4.3)    $ 42.9     $  (50.6) 
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NU     As of December 31, 2008  
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)  

   
 

ARO Asset  

   Accumulated  
Depreciation of  

ARO Asset  

    
Regulatory  

Asset  

    
ARO  

Liabilities  
Asbestos     $ 2.7     $  (1.6)    $ 20.7     $  (22.6) 
Hazardous contamination        5.1        (1.4)       15.2        (19.4) 
Other AROs        4.0        (2.0)       6.4        (8.6) 
  Total AROs     $ 11.8     $  (5.0)    $ 42.3     $  (50.6) 

CL&P     As of December 31, 2009  
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)  

   
 

ARO Asset  

   Accumulated  
Depreciation of  

ARO Asset  

    
Regulatory  

Asset  

    
ARO  

Liabilities  
Asbestos     $ 1.6     $  (1.0)    $ 12.6     $  (13.2) 
Hazardous contamination        3.9        (1.1)       9.4        (12.2) 
Other AROs        2.4        (1.0)       1.8        (3.2) 
  Total AROs     $ 7.9     $  (3.1)    $ 23.8     $  (28.6) 

CL&P     As of December 31, 2008  
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)  

   
 

ARO Asset  

   Accumulated  
Depreciation of  

ARO Asset  

    
Regulatory  

Asset  

    
ARO  

Liabilities  
Asbestos     $ 1.6     $  (1.0)    $ 12.0     $  (12.6) 
Hazardous contamination        4.1        (1.0)       8.7        (11.8) 
Other AROs        3.4        (1.5)       2.4        (4.3) 
  Total AROs     $ 9.1     $  (3.5)    $ 23.1     $  (28.7) 

PSNH     As of December 31, 2009  
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)  

   
 

ARO Asset  

   Accumulated  
Depreciation of  

ARO Asset  

    
Regulatory  

Asset  

    
ARO  

Liabilities  
Asbestos     $ 0.9     $  (0.5)    $ 7.4     $  (8.7) 
Hazardous contamination        0.5        (0.3)       5.9        (6.7) 
Other AROs        -        -        0.7        (1.0) 
  Total AROs     $ 1.4     $  (0.8)    $ 14.0     $  (16.4) 

PSNH     As of December 31, 2008  
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)  

   
 

ARO Asset  

   Accumulated  
Depreciation of  

ARO Asset  

    
Regulatory  

Asset  

    
ARO  

Liabilities  
Asbestos     $ 0.9     $  (0.5)    $ 7.1     $  (8.3) 
Hazardous contamination        0.5        (0.3)       5.6        (6.3) 
Other AROs        -        -        1.2        (1.3) 
  Total AROs     $ 1.4     $  (0.8)    $ 13.9     $  (15.9) 

WMECO     As of December 31, 2009  
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)  

   
 

ARO Asset  

   Accumulated  
Depreciation of  

ARO Asset  

    
Regulatory  

Asset  

    
ARO  

Liabilities  
Asbestos     $ 0.2     $  (0.1)    $ 1.8     $  (1.9) 
Hazardous contamination        0.5        (0.1)       1.0        (1.4) 
  Total AROs     $ 0.7     $  (0.2)    $ 2.8     $  (3.3) 

WMECO     As of December 31, 2008  
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)  

   
 

ARO Asset  

   Accumulated  
Depreciation of  

ARO Asset  

    
Regulatory  

Asset  

    
ARO  

Liabilities  
Asbestos     $ 0.2     $  (0.1)    $ 1.7     $  (1.8) 
Hazardous contamination        0.5        (0.1)       0.9        (1.3) 
Other AROs        0.3        (0.2)       0.2        (0.3) 
  Total AROs     $ 1.0     $  (0.4)    $ 2.8     $  (3.4) 
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending carrying amounts of regulated companies' AROs is as follows:  
 

 

 
Changes in estimates and revisions in estimated cash flows supporting the carrying amounts of AROs include changes in estimated 
quantities and removal costs, discount rates and inflation rates.  
 

Fuel, Materials and Supplies and Allowance Inventor y  
Fuel, materials and supplies include natural gas storage, coal, oil and materials purchased primarily for construction or operation and 
maintenance (O&M) purposes.  Natural gas inventory, coal and oil are valued at the weighted average cost of gas, coal and oil. 
 Materials and supplies are valued at the lower of average cost or market.  
 
PSNH is subject to federal and state laws and regulations that regulate emissions of air pollutants, including sulfur dioxide (SO 2 ), 

carbon dioxide (CO 2 ), and nitrogen oxide (NO x ) related to its regulated generation units, and uses SO 2 , CO 2 , and NO x emissions 

allowances.  At the end of each compliance period, PSNH is required to relinquish SO 2 , CO 2 , and NO x emissions allowances 

corresponding to the actual emissions emitted by its generating units over the compliance period.  SO 2 and NO x emissions allowances 

are obtained through an annual allocation from the federal and state regulators that are granted at no cost and through purchases from 
third parties.  CO 2 emissions allowances are acquired through auctions and through purchases from third parties.    

 
SO 2 , CO 2 , and NO x emissions allowances are recorded within Fuel, materials and supplies and are classified on the balance sheet 

as short-term or long-term depending on the period they are expected to be utilized against actual emissions.  As of December 31, 
2009 and 2008, PSNH had $7.8 million and $6.5 million, respectively, of short-term SO 2 , CO 2 , and NO x emissions allowances 

classified as Fuel, materials and supplies on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and $20.7 million and $26.3 million, 
respectively, of long-term SO 2 and CO 2 emissions allowances classified as Deferred debits and other assets - other on the 

accompanying consolidated balance sheets.    
 
SO 2 , CO 2 , and NO x emissions allowances are charged to expense based on their weighted average cost as they are utilized against 

emissions volumes at PSNH's generating units.  PSNH recorded expenses of $7.6 million, $2.8 million and $5.9 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, which was included in Fuel, purchased and net interchange power on the 
accompanying consolidated income statements.  These costs are recovered from ratepayers through PSNH ES revenues.  See 
Note 1H, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Regulatory Accounting," for further information.    
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and short-term cash investments that are highly liquid in nature and have original 
maturities of three months or less.  At the end of each reporting period, any overdraft amounts are reclassified from Cash and cash 
equivalents to Accounts payable on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 
As of December 31, 2009, PSNH had $10 million of restricted cash held with a trustee related to insurance proceeds received on 
bondable property, which was included in Prepayments and other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.  As of 
December 31, 2008, there was no restricted cash.  
 

Special Deposits and Counterparty Deposits  
To the extent NU Enterprises, through Select Energy, requires collateral from counterparties, or the counterparties require collateral 
from Select Energy, cash is held on deposit by Select Energy or with unaffiliated counterparties and brokerage firms as a part of the 
total collateral required based on Select Energy's position in transactions with the counterparty.  Select Energy's right to use cash 
collateral is determined by the terms of the related agreements.  Key factors affecting the unrestricted status of a portion of this cash 

      As of December 31,  
      2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)     NU     NU  
Balance at beginning of year     $  (50.6)    $  (49.7) 
Liabilities incurred during the year        -        (1.8) 
Liabilities settled during the year        2.3        3.6  
Accretion        (3.3)       (3.2) 
Changes in estimates        -        -  
Revisions in estimated cash flows        1.0        0.5  
Balance at end of year     $  (50.6)    $  (50.6) 

      As of December 31,  
      2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO  
Balance at beginning of year     $ (28.7)    $ (15.9)    $ (3.4)    $ (28.6)     $ (14.9)     $ (3.7) 
Liabilities incurred during the year        -        -        -        (1.8)        -         -  
Liabilities settled during the year        2.0        -        0.3        3.0         -         0.5  
Accretion        (1.9)       (1.0)       (0.2)       (1.8)        (1.0)        (0.2) 
Changes in estimates        -        -        -        -         -         -  
Revisions in estimated cash flows        -        0.5        -        0.5         -         -  
Balance at end of year     $ (28.6)    $ (16.4)    $ (3.3)    $ (28.7)     $ (15.9)     $ (3.4) 

N. 

O. 

P. 
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collateral include the financial standing of Select Energy and of NU as its credit supporter.  
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NU, including CL&P, PSNH, and WMECO, records special deposits and counterparty deposits posted under master netting agreements 
as an offset to a Derivative asset or liability if the related derivatives are recorded in a net position.  As of December 31, 2009, CL&P 
and Select Energy had $0.5 million and $2.1 million, respectively, of collateral posted under master netting agreements and netted 
against the fair value of the derivatives.  As of December 31, 2008, NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, had no special deposits 
and no counterparty collateral posted under master netting agreements netted against the fair value of derivatives.  
 
Special deposits paid by Select Energy to unaffiliated counterparties and brokerage firms not subject to master netting agreements 
totaled $28.1 million and $26.3 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  These amounts are included in Prepayments 
and other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  There were no counterparty deposits for Select Energy as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008.    
 
NU, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO have established credit policies regarding counterparties to minimize overall credit risk.  These policies 
require an evaluation of potential counterparties, financial condition, collateral requirements and the use of standardized agreements 
that allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single counterparty.  These evaluations result in 
established credit limits prior to entering into a contract.  As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, there were no counterparty deposits for 
these companies.    
 
CL&P, PSNH and WMECO had amounts on deposit related to subsidiaries used to facilitate the issuance of RRBs.  In addition, CL&P, 
PSNH and WMECO had other cash deposits held with unaffiliated parties as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.  These amounts were as 
follows:      
 

 

 
These amounts are included in Deferred debits and other assets - other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 

Other Taxes  
Certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments are collected by CL&P and Yankee Gas from their respective customers. 
 These excise taxes are shown on a gross basis with collections in revenues and payments in expenses.  Gross receipts taxes, 
franchise taxes and other excise taxes were included in Operating revenues and Taxes other than income taxes on the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income as follows:    
 

 
Certain sales taxes are also collected by CL&P, WMECO, and Yankee Gas from their respective customers as agents for state and 
local governments and are recorded on a net basis with no impact on the accompanying consolidated statements of income.  
 

Other Income, Net  
The pre-tax components of other income/(loss) items are as follows:  
 

      As of December 31,  

      2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)     NU     NU  
Rate reduction bond deposits     $  40.2     $  41.3  
Other deposits        8.1        7.0  

      As of December 31,  

      2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars)     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO  
Rate reduction bond deposits     $  16.8     $  19.7     $  3.7     $  18.0     $  19.3     $  4.0  
Other deposits        5.0        2.2        -        5.2        0.9        -  

Q. 

      For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Millions of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  

NU     $  135.6     $  126.6     $  112.2  
CL&P        119.0        107.2        95.0  

R. 

NU     For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Millions of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  

Other Income:                             
  Investment income     $  10.1     $  6.6     $  22.3  
  Interest income        5.6        10.1        -  
  AFUDC - equity funds        9.4        29.0        17.4  
  Equity in earnings of regional nuclear generating and  
    transmission companies  

   
   1.8  

   
   1.6  

       
4.0  

  Other        11.3        18.0        18.6  
Total Other Income        38.2        65.3        62.3  
Other Loss:                             
  Investment losses        -        (14.6)       (0.5) 
  Rental expense        (0.4)       (0.3)      (0.2) 

Total Other Loss        (0.4)       (14.9)      (0.7) 
Total Other Income, Net     $  37.8     $  50.4    $  61.6  
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Equity in earnings of regional nuclear generating and transmission companies relates to the Company's investments, including CL&P, 
PSNH and WMECO's investments, in the Yankee Companies and NU's investments in two regional transmission companies.  For the 
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, income tax expense associated with the equity in earnings was $0.7 million, $0.6 
million and $1.6 million, respectively, for NU ($0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.8 million for CL&P, $40 thousand, $40 thousand and $120 
thousand for PSNH, and $40 thousand, $40 thousand and $200 thousand for WMECO, respectively).    
 
The Energy Independence Act incentives relate to incentives earned by Connecticut regulated companies from the construction of 
distributed generation, new large-scale generation and implementation of C&LM initiatives to reduce FMCC charges.    
 
For further information regarding interest income related to federal tax settlements, see Note 1I, "Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies - Income Taxes," to the consolidated financial statements.    
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CL&P     For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Millions of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  

Other Income:                             
  Investment income     $  6.8     $  6.0     $  7.7  
  Interest income        3.5        6.4        -  
  AFUDC - equity funds        5.7        23.2        14.2  
  Energy Independence Act incentives        6.1        12.1        9.9  
  Equity in earnings of regional nuclear generating companies        0.3        0.3        1.9  
  Other        3.6        3.8        6.2  
Total Other Income        26.0        51.8        39.9  
Other Loss:                               
  Investment losses        -        (9.8)       -  
  Rental expense        (0.1)       (0.1)       (0.1) 
Total Other Loss        (0.1)       (9.9)       (0.1) 
Total Other Income, Net     $  25.9     $  41.9     $  39.8  

PSNH     For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Millions of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  

Other Income:                             
  Investment income     $  1.7     $  1.9     $  2.6  
  Interest income        2.2        1.9        -  
  AFUDC - equity funds        3.6        4.4        2.0  
  Equity in earnings of regional nuclear generating companies        0.1        0.1        0.3  
  Other        1.9        1.4        1.8  
Total Other Income        9.5        9.7        6.7  
Investment losses        -        (2.4)       -  
Total Other Income, Net     $  9.5     $  7.3     $  6.7  

WMECO     For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Millions of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  

Other Income:                             
  Investment income     $  1.5     $  1.2     $  2.7  
  Interest income        (0.3)       1.1        -  
  AFUDC - equity funds        -        1.2        0.2  
  Equity in earnings of regional nuclear generating companies        0.1        0.1        0.5  
  Other        0.6        0.5        0.5  
Total Other Income        1.9        4.1        3.9  
Other Loss:                             
  Investment losses        -        (2.1)       -  
  Rental expense        (0.1)       -        -  
Total Other Loss        (0.1)       (2.1)       -  
Total Other Income, Net     $  1.8     $  2.0     $  3.9  
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Supplemental Cash Flow Information (NU, CL&P, PSNH,  WMECO)  
 

 

 
Cash paid/(received) during the year for income taxes decreased from 2007 to 2008 as a result of the absence in 2008 of a payment of 
approximately $400 million in federal and state income taxes in 2007 related to the 2006 sale of the competitive generation business.  
 
Regulatory overrecoveries/(refunds and underrecoveries) on the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows represents the 
year-over-year change in regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities, net of amortization charged during the year and other adjustments 
for non-cash items.  These deferred amounts are expected to be recovered from or refunded to customers through the rate-making 
process and are generally short-term in nature.  
 
The majority of the short-term borrowings of the companies have original maturities of three months or less.  Accordingly, borrowings 
and repayments are shown net on the statement of cash flows.  In December 2008, NU borrowed $127 million from the NU parent 
revolving credit agreement that had original maturities in excess of 90 days.  These amounts were repaid in March 2009.  This activity 
is included in the net activity seen in the statement of cash flows.  In 2009, 2008 and 2007, NU, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO had no 
other such borrowings.    
 

Operating Expenses  
Fuel, purchased and net interchange power:   For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, fuel, purchased and net 
interchange power included costs related to fuel (and gas costs as it related to Yankee Gas) as follows:    
 

 
Marketable Securities  

NU supplemental benefit trust and WMECO spent nuclear fuel trust :  NU maintains a supplemental benefit trust and WMECO 
maintains a spent nuclear fuel trust, both of which hold marketable securities.  The trusts are used to fund NU's SERP/non-SERP 
obligations and WMECO's prior period spent nuclear fuel liability.  NU and WMECO's debt securities are classified as available-for-sale. 
   
 
Beginning in the second quarter of 2009, other-than-temporary impairments on debt securities held in the NU supplemental benefit trust 
that NU intends to sell or will be required to sell are recorded in Net income.  Credit losses identified on debt securities held in the NU 
supplemental benefit trust are also recorded in Net income.  Unrealized gains and unrealized losses on debt securities that NU does 
not intend to sell, will not be required to sell and do not reflect credit losses held in the NU supplemental benefit trust are recorded in 
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss).  Realized gains and losses on debt securities WMECO intends to sell or will be 
required to sell, credit losses and unrealized gains and losses associated with the WMECO spent nuclear fuel trust are recorded as an 
offset to the spent nuclear fuel trust obligation.  See Note 1D, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Accounting Standards 
Recently Adopted," to the consolidated financial statements.  
 
Prior to the adoption of the new accounting guidance, changes in the fair value of debt securities in the NU supplemental benefit trust 
and the WMECO spent nuclear fuel trust relating to unrealized losses were considered other-than-temporary because NU and WMECO 
did not have the ability to hold the debt securities to maturity.  Losses on the NU supplemental benefit trust were recorded in Net 
income and losses on the WMECO spent nuclear fuel trust were recorded to the WMECO spent nuclear fuel obligation.  Prior to the 
new accounting guidance, changes related to unrealized gains for debt and equity securities were recorded in Accumulated other 
comprehensive income/(loss).    

S. 

      For the Years Ended December 31,  
      2009     2008     2007  
(Millions of Dollars)     NU     NU     NU  

Cash paid/(received) during the year for:                             
    Interest, net of amounts capitalized     $  263.8    $  261.4     $  261.6  
    Income taxes        35.1       (36.1)       496.2  
Non-cash investing activities:                             
    Capital expenditures incurred but not paid        125.5       132.8        184.4  

      For the Years Ended December 31,  

      2009     2008     2007  

      CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH    WMECO  
(Millions of Dollars)        
Cash paid/(received) during the year for:                                                       
  Interest, net of amounts capitalized     $  146.7     $ 49.0     $ 19.4     $ 145.5     $ 50.0     $ 20.0     $ 156.4     $ 50.2    $ 20.3  

   Income taxes        42.4        12.8        (9.1)       (20.6)       1.0        (5.9)       241.2        26.2      65.6  

Non-cash investing activities:                                                                                 
  Capital expenditures incurred but not paid        48.2        46.5        10.3        76.1        31.4        11.5        126.1        37.8      6.6  

T. 

      For the Years Ended December 31,  
(Millions of Dollars)     2009     2008     2007  
CL&P     $  0.5     $  4.1     $  14.2  
PSNH        174.1        177.4        190.2  
WMECO        0.8        0.8        0.8  
Yankee Gas        226.1        358.8        317.7  
Other        0.2        0.6        1.2  
NU     $  401.7     $  541.7     $  524.1  

U. 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 9435 of 9808



 
 

FS-51  
 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 9436 of 9808



 
 

 
In 2009, under applicable fair value accounting guidance, the Company elected to record changes in fair value of newly purchased 
equity securities in the NU supplemental benefit trust in Net income.  Realized and unrealized gains and losses related to these 
securities are included in Other income, net, on the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 
2009.  
 
These trusts are not subject to regulatory oversight by state or federal agencies.  
 
For information regarding marketable securities, see Note 9, "Marketable Securities," to the consolidated financial statements.    
 

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts  
NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, maintain a provision for uncollectible accounts to record their receivables at an estimated net 
realizable value.  This provision is determined based upon a variety of factors, including applying an estimated uncollectible account 
percentage to each receivable aging category, historical collection and write-off experience and management's assessment of 
collectibility from individual customers.  Management reviews at least quarterly the collectibility of the receivables, and if circumstances 
change, collectibility estimates are adjusted accordingly.  Receivable balances are written-off against the provision for uncollectible 
accounts when these balances are deemed to be uncollectible and the accounts are terminated.    
 
The provision for uncollectible accounts as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, which offset Receivables, net on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets, were as follows:  
 

 
The DPUC allows CL&P and Yankee Gas to accelerate the recovery of uncollectible hardship accounts receivable outstanding for 
greater than 90 days.  As of December 31, 2009, CL&P and Yankee Gas had uncollectible hardship accounts receivable reserves in 
the amount of $54.5 million and $8.6 million, respectively, with the corresponding bad debt expense recorded as Regulatory assets as 
these amounts are probable of recovery.  As of December 31, 2008, these amounts totaled $41 million and $10 million, respectively.    
 
In 2009, WMECO established a reserve of $9.1 million for uncollectible hardship accounts receivable with the corresponding bad debt 
expense recorded as Deferred debits and other assets - other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  These amounts 
have not yet been approved for recovery.  Management believes these costs are probable of recovery in future cost of service 
regulated rates.  
 

Self-Insurance Accruals  
NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, are self-insured for employee medical coverage, long-term disability coverage and general 
liability coverage and up to certain limits for workers compensation coverage.  Liabilities for insurance claims include accruals of 
estimated settlements for known claims, as well as accruals of estimates of incurred but not reported claims.  These accruals are 
included in Deferred credits and other liabilities - other on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  In estimating these costs, 
NU considers historical loss experience and makes judgments about the expected levels of costs per claim.  These claims are 
accounted for based on estimates of the undiscounted claims, including those claims incurred but not reported.    
 

Related Parties  
Several wholly-owned subsidiaries of NU provide support services for NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO.  NUSCO provides 
centralized accounting, administrative, engineering, financial, information technology, legal, operational, planning, purchasing, and 
other services to NU's companies.  Two other subsidiaries construct, acquire or lease some of the property and facilities used by NU's 
companies.    
 
As of both December 31, 2009 and 2008, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO had long-term receivables from NUSCO in the amount of $25 
million, $3.8 million and $5.5 million, respectively, which are included in Deferred debits and other assets - other on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets related to the funding of investments held in trust by NUSCO in connection with certain postretirement 
benefits for CL&P, PSNH and WMECO employees.  These amounts have been eliminated in consolidation on the NU financial 
statements.  
 
Included in the CL&P, PSNH and WMECO consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are Accounts receivable 
from affiliated companies and Accounts payable to affiliated companies relating to transactions between CL&P, PSNH and WMECO 
and other subsidiaries that are wholly-owned by NU.  As of December 31, 2009, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO had a de minimus amount 
of tax payments accrued in Accounts payable to affiliated companies related to the estimated quarterly income tax obligation paid in the 
following quarter.  As of December 31, 2008, PSNH had $0.1 million related to this accrual.  CL&P and WMECO had a de minimus 
balance as of December 31, 2008.  These amounts have been eliminated in consolidation on the NU financial statements.  
 
On December 31, 2008, NU's wholly-owned subsidiary, HWP Company (HWP), formerly known as Holyoke Water Power Company, 
transferred $4 million in transmission related assets to WMECO.    
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V. 

(Millions of Dollars)     2009     2008  

NU     $  55.3     $  43.3  
CL&P        26.1        24.0  
PSNH        5.1        4.2  
WMECO        7.2        6.6  

W. 

X. 
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The NU Foundation (Foundation) is an independent not-for-profit charitable entity designed to invest in projects that emphasize 
economic development, workforce training and education, and a clean and healthy environment.  The board of directors of the 
Foundation consists of certain NU officers.  The Foundation is not included in the consolidated financial statements of NU because the 
Foundation is a not-for-profit entity and because the Company does not have title to the Foundation's assets and cannot receive 
contributions back from the Foundation.  NU did not make any contributions to the Foundation in 2009 and 2008.  In 2007, NU made 
aggregate discretionary contributions of $3 million (including $0.6 million for CL&P, $0.6 million for PSNH, and $0.1 million for WMECO) 
to the Foundation.  
 

Short-Term Debt (All Companies)  
 
Limits:   The amount of short-term borrowings that may be incurred by CL&P and WMECO is subject to periodic approval by the FERC 
and short-term borrowings by PSNH are subject to approval by the NHPUC.  On December 12, 2007, the FERC granted authorization 
to allow CL&P and WMECO to incur total short-term borrowings up to a maximum of $450 million and $200 million, respectively, 
through December 31, 2009.  On December 22, 2009, the FERC extended this authorization to allow CL&P to incur total short-term 
borrowings up to a maximum of $450 million and increased WMECO's authorization to $300 million, effective January 1, 2010 through 
December 31, 2011.    
 
PSNH is authorized by regulation of the NHPUC to incur short-term borrowings up to 10 percent of net fixed plant.  In an order dated 
October 5, 2009, the NHPUC increased the amount of short-term borrowings authorized for PSNH to a maximum of 10 percent of net 
fixed plant plus an additional $60 million on a temporary basis that will expire upon PSNH's next NHPUC approval for the issuance of 
long-term debt.  As of December 31, 2009, PSNH's short-term debt authorization under the 10 percent of net fixed plant test plus $60 
million totaled $215 million.  As a result of the NHPUC having jurisdiction over PSNH's short-term debt, PSNH is not currently required 
to obtain FERC approval for its short-term borrowings.    
 
CL&P's certificate of incorporation contains preferred stock provisions restricting the amount of unsecured debt that CL&P may incur, 
including limiting unsecured indebtedness with a maturity of less than 10 years to 10 percent of total capitalization.  In November 2003, 
CL&P obtained from its preferred stockholders a waiver of such 10 percent limit for a ten-year period expiring in March 2014, provided 
that all unsecured indebtedness does not exceed 20 percent of total capitalization.  As of December 31, 2009, CL&P had approximately 
$910.9 million of unsecured debt capacity available under this authorization.  
 
Yankee Gas is not required to obtain approval from any state or federal authority to incur short-term debt.  
 
Regulated Companies Credit Agreement:  CL&P, PSNH, WMECO, and Yankee Gas are parties to a five-year unsecured revolving 
credit facility in the nominal amount of $400 million that expires on November 6, 2010.  CL&P may draw up to $200 million under this 
facility, with PSNH, WMECO, and Yankee Gas able to draw up to $100 million each, subject to the $400 million maximum borrowing 
limit.  This total commitment may be increased to $500 million at the request of the borrowers, subject to lender approval.  There were 
no borrowings outstanding under this facility as of December 31, 2009.  There were $188 million, $45.2 million, $29.9 million and $52.3 
million in short-term borrowings outstanding by CL&P, PSNH, WMECO, and Yankee Gas, respectively, as of December 31, 2008.  The 
weighted-average interest rate on these short-term borrowings on December 31, 2008 was 3.35 percent.  
 
NU Parent Credit Agreement:  NU has a 5-year unsecured revolving credit agreement with a total nominal commitment of $500 million, 
which expires on November 6, 2010.  Subject to the amount of advances outstanding, letters of credit (LOCs) may be issued for periods 
up to 364 days in the name of NU or any of its subsidiaries.  
 
Under this facility, NU can borrow either on a short-term or a long-term basis.  As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, NU had $100.3 
million and $303.5 million, respectively, in short-term borrowings outstanding under this facility.  The weighted-average interest rate on 
such borrowings outstanding under these credit agreements on December 31, 2009 and 2008 was 0.63 percent and 3.35 percent, 
respectively.  There were $41 million ($39 million for PSNH) and $87 million ($85 million for PSNH) in LOCs outstanding as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.    
 
Under the regulated companies' and NU parent credit agreements, NU and the regulated companies may borrow at prime rates or 
variable rates plus an applicable margin based upon the higher of Standard and Poor's or Moody's Investors Service credit ratings 
assigned to the borrower.      
 
A participating lender in both agreements, Lehman Brothers Commercial Bank, Inc. has refused to fund its remaining aggregate 
commitment of approximately $56 million since September 2008.  As a result, the amount of borrowing availability under NU's credit 
facility was $341 million while the amount available under the regulated companies' facility was $361.8 million as of December 31, 
2009.     
 
In addition, NU and the regulated companies must comply with certain financial and non-financial covenants, including a consolidated 
debt to total capitalization ratio.  NU and the regulated companies are in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2009.  If 
NU or the regulated companies were not in compliance with these covenants, an Event of Default would occur requiring all outstanding 
borrowings to be repaid and additional borrowings would not be permitted under the respective credit agreement.    
 
Pool:   NU Parent, CL&P, PSNH, WMECO, Yankee Gas and certain of NU's other subsidiaries are members of the Pool.  The Pool 
provides a more efficient use of cash resources of NU and reduces outside short-term borrowings.  NUSCO participates in the Pool and 
administers the Pool as agent for the member companies.  Short-term borrowing needs of the member companies are met with 
available funds of other member companies, including funds borrowed by NU.  NU may lend to the Pool but may not borrow.  Funds  
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may be withdrawn from or repaid to the Pool at any time without prior notice.  Investing and borrowing subsidiaries receive or pay 
interest based on the average daily federal funds rate.  Borrowings based on external loans of NU, however, bear interest at NU's cost 
and must be repaid based upon the terms of NU's original borrowing.  In NU's consolidated financial statements, Pool amounts payable 
or receivable to or from members eliminate in consolidation.  By order, the FERC has exempted all holding company system money 
pools from active regulation.  As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, CL&P, PSNH and WMECO had the following borrowings from/
(contributions to) the Pool with the respective weighted-average interest rate on borrowings from the Pool:  
 
     As of and for the Years Ended December  31,  

     2009     2008  
(Millions of Dollars, except percentage)    CL&P     PSNH     WMECO     CL&P     PSNH     WMECO  

Borrowings from/(contributions to)    $  (97.8)    $  26.7     $  136.1     $  102.7     $  (53.8)    $  31.6     
Weighted-average interest rate       0.22  %     0.15  %    0.15  %    1.57  %    2.24  %    2.22  % 
 
The net borrowings from/contributions to the Pool are recorded in Notes payable to/Notes receivable from affiliated companies, 
respectively.    
 

Derivative Instruments (NU, NU Enterprises, CL&P, P SNH, Yankee Gas)  
 
The costs and benefits of derivative contracts that meet the definition of and are designated as normal are recognized in Operating 
expenses or Operating revenues on the accompanying consolidated statements of income, as applicable, as electricity or natural gas is 
delivered.    
 
Derivative contracts that are not designated as accounting hedges, or as normal, are recorded at fair value as current or long-term 
derivative assets or liabilities.  Changes in fair values of NU Enterprises' derivatives are included in Net income.  For the regulated 
companies, including CL&P, PSNH, and Yankee Gas, regulatory assets or liabilities are recorded for the changes in fair values of 
derivatives, as these contracts are part of current regulated operating costs, or have an allowed recovery mechanism, and management 
believes that these costs will continue to be recovered from or refunded to customers in cost-of-service, regulated rates.  See below for 
discussion of "Derivatives designated as hedging instruments."  
 
CL&P, PSNH, WMECO, and Yankee Gas are exposed to the volatility of the prices of energy and energy-related products in procuring 
energy supply for their customers.  The costs associated with supplying energy to customers are recoverable through customer rates. 
 The Company manages the risks associated with the price volatility of energy and energy-related products through the use of 
derivative contracts, many of which are accounted for as normal (for WMECO all derivative contracts are accounted for as normal) and 
the use of nonderivative contracts.  
 
CL&P mitigates the risks associated with the price volatility of energy and energy-related products through the use of standard or last 
resort service contracts, which fix the price of electricity purchased for customers for periods of time ranging from three months to three 
years and are accounted for as normal.  CL&P has entered into derivatives, including FTR contracts and bilateral basis swaps, to 
manage the risk of congestion costs associated with its standard offer and last resort service contracts.  As required by regulation, 
CL&P has also entered into derivative and nonderivative contracts for the purchase of energy and energy-related products and 
contracts related to capacity.  While the risks managed by these contracts are regional congestion costs and capacity price risks that 
are not specific to CL&P, Connecticut's electric distribution companies, including CL&P, are required to enter into these contracts.  The 
derivative contracts not accounted for as normal are accounted for at fair value.  Management believes any costs or benefits from these 
contracts are recoverable from or refunded to CL&P's customers, and, therefore any changes in fair value are recorded as Regulatory 
assets and Regulatory liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 
WMECO mitigates the risks associated with the volatility of the prices of energy and energy-related products in procuring energy supply 
for its customers through the use of default service contracts, which fix the price of electricity purchased for customers for periods of 
time ranging from three months to three years and are accounted for as normal.    
 
PSNH mitigates the risks associated with the volatility of energy prices in procuring energy supply for its customers through its 
generation facilities and the use of derivative contracts, including energy forward contracts, options and FTRs.  PSNH enters into these 
contracts in order to stabilize electricity prices for customers.  The derivative contracts not accounted for as normal are accounted for at 
fair value.  Management believes any costs or benefits from these contracts are recoverable from or will be refunded to PSNH's 
customers, and, therefore any changes in fair value are recorded as Regulatory assets and Regulatory liabilities on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets.  
 
Yankee Gas mitigates the risks associated with supply availability and volatility of natural gas prices through the use of storage facilities 
and long-term agreements to purchase gas supply for customers that include nonderivative contracts and contracts that are accounted 
for as normal.  Yankee Gas also manages supply risk through the use of options contracts.  The derivative contracts not accounted for 
as normal are accounted for at fair value.  Management believes any costs or benefits from these contracts are recoverable from or 
refundable to Yankee Gas' customers, and, therefore, any changes in fair value are recorded as Regulatory assets and Regulatory 
liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 
NU Enterprises, through Select Energy, has one remaining fixed price forward sales contract that was part of its wholesale energy 
marketing business.  NU Enterprises mitigates the price risk associated with this contract through the use of forward purchase 
contracts.  NU Enterprises' derivative contracts are accounted for at fair value, and changes in their fair values are recorded in 
Operating expenses on the accompanying consolidated statements of income.    
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NU is also exposed to interest rate risk associated with its long-term debt.  From time to time, various subsidiaries of the Company 
enter into forward starting interest rate swaps, accounted for as cash flow hedges, to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates when 
they expect to issue long-term debt.  NU parent has also entered into an interest rate swap on fixed rate long-term debt in order to 
manage the balance of fixed and floating rate debt.  This interest rate swap mitigates the interest rate risk associated with the fixed rate 
long-term debt and is accounted for as a fair value hedge.  
 
The gross fair values of derivative assets and liabilities with the same counterparty are offset and reported as net Derivative assets or 
Derivative liabilities, with appropriate current and long-term portions, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  The following 
tables present the gross fair values of contracts and the net amounts recorded as current or long-term derivative assets or liabilities, by 
primary underlying risk exposures or purpose:  
 
      As of December 31, 2009  
 
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)     

Gross  
Asset     

Gross  
Liability     

Net Amount  
Recorded as  

Derivative  
Asset     

Gross  
Asset     

 
 

Gross  
Liability     

 
Cash  

Collateral  
Posted  

   Net Amount  
Recorded as  

Derivative  
Liability  

Derivatives not designated as  
  hedging instruments        

   
      

   
      

   
      

   
   

      
   
               

NU Enterprises:                                                                 
Commodity sales contract and related  
  price and supply risk management:        

   
      

   
      

   
      

   
   

      
   
               

     Current     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ 2.2     $ (13.0)    $ 2.1     $ (8.7)  
     Long-Term        -        -        -        6.7        (41.1)       -        (34.4)  
Regulated Companies:                                                                 
CL&P commodity and capacity  
  contracts required by regulation:        

   
      

   
      

   
      

   
   

      
   
               

     Current        20.1        -        20.1        -        (10.3)       -        (10.3)  
     Long-Term        259.0        (75.8)       183.2        -        (913.3)       -        (913.3)  
Commodity price and supply risk  
  management:        

   
      

   
      

   
      

   
   

      
   
               

CL&P:                                                                   
     Current        4.5        -        4.5        -        -        0.5        0.5   
PSNH:                                                                   
     Current (1)        0.4        -        0.4        -        (18.8)       -        (18.8)  

     Long-Term (1)        -        -        -        -        (7.6)       -        (7.6)  
Yankee Gas:                                                                   
     Current        0.1        -        0.1        -        (0.4)       -        (0.4)  
     Long-Term        -        -        -        -        (0.3)       -        (0.3)  
Derivatives designated as hedging  
 instruments        

   
      

   
      

   
      

   
   

      
   
               

Interest rate risk management:                                                                 
     Current (2)        6.7        -        6.7        -        -        -        -   
     Long-Term        6.5        -        6.5        -        -        -        -   

 
On PSNH's accompanying consolidated balance sheet, the current portion of the net derivative asset is shown in Prepayments and 
other and the long-term portion is shown in Deferred debits and other assets - other.  

 
Amount does not include interest receivable of $2.6 million as of December 31, 2009 recorded in Prepayments and other on the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet of NU.    

 
The business activities of the Company that resulted in the recognition of derivative assets also create exposure to various 
counterparties.  As of December 31, 2009, NU had $306.4 million ($283.8 million for CL&P and $0.4 million for PSNH) of derivative 
assets exposed to counterparty credit risk that are contracted with multiple entities.  Of these amounts, $184.2 million ($170.9 million for 
CL&P) is contracted with investment grade entities, $0.4 million related to PSNH is contracted with a government-backed entity, $108.2 
million related to CL&P is contracted with a non-rated subsidiary of an investment grade company, and the remainder are contracted 
with multiple other counterparties.     
 
For further information on the fair value of derivative contracts, see Note 1F, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Derivative 
Accounting," Note 1G, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Fair Value Measurements," and Note 4, "Fair Value 
Measurements," to the consolidated financial statements.  
 
The following provides additional information about the derivatives included in the tables above, including volumes and cash flow 
information.  
 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments  
NU Enterprises' energy sales contract and related price risk management:   As of December 31, 2009, NU Enterprises had 
approximately 0.4 million megawatt-hours (MWh) of supply volumes remaining in its wholesale portfolio when expected sales to the 
New York Municipal Power Agency (an agency that is comprised of municipalities) are compared with contracted supply, both of which 
extend through 2013.    
 

(1) 

(2) 
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CL&P energy and capacity contracts required by regulation :  CL&P has contracts with two IPPs to purchase electricity monthly in 
amounts aggregating approximately 1.5 million MWh per year through March 2015 under one of these contracts and 0.1 million MWh 
per year through December 2020 under the second contract.  CL&P also has two capacity-related CfDs to increase energy supply in 
Connecticut relating to one generating project that has been modified and one generating plant to be built.  The total capacity of these 
CfDs and two additional CfDs of The United Illuminating Company (UI) is expected to be approximately 787 megawatts (MW).  CL&P 
has an agreement with UI, which is also accounted for as a derivative, under which they will share the costs and benefits of the four 
CfDs, with 80 percent allocated to CL&P and 20 percent to UI.  The four CfDs obligate the utilities to pay/receive monthly the difference 
between a set capacity price and the forward capacity market price that the projects receive in the ISO-NE capacity markets for periods 
of up to 15 years beginning in 2009.  For further information, see Note 19, "Subsequent Events," to the consolidated financial 
statements.  
 
CL&P, PSNH, and Yankee Gas energy and natural gas price risk management:   As of December 31, 2009, CL&P had 2.7 million MWh 
remaining under FTRs that extend through 2010 and require monthly payments or receipts.    
 
PSNH has electricity procurement contracts with delivery dates through 2011 to purchase an aggregate amount of 1 million MWh of 
power that is used to serve customer load and manage price risk of its electricity delivery service obligations.  These contracts are 
settled monthly.  PSNH also has two energy call options that it received in exchange for assigning its transmission rights in a direct 
current transmission line.  The options give PSNH the right to purchase 0.6 million MWh of electricity through December 2010.  In 
addition, PSNH has entered into FTRs to manage the risk of congestion costs associated with its electricity delivery service.  As of 
December 31, 2009, there were 0.4 million MWh remaining under FTRs that extend through 2010 and required monthly payments or 
receipts.  The purpose of the PSNH derivative contracts is to provide stable rates for customers by mitigating price uncertainties 
associated with the New England electricity spot market.    
 
As of December 31, 2009, Yankee Gas had two peaking supply option contracts to purchase up to 17 thousand MMBtu of natural gas 
on up to 20 days per season to manage natural gas supply price risk related to winter load obligations.  One contract for 3 thousand 
MMBtu expires on October 31, 2010 and the other contract for 14 thousand MMBtu expires on April 1, 2012.  Demand fees on these 
contracts are paid annually and are included in Yankee Gas' PGA clause for recovery.    
 
The following table presents the realized and unrealized gains/(losses) associated with derivative contracts not designated as hedging 
instruments for the year ended December 31, 2009:  
 

 
For the regulated companies, monthly settlement amounts are recorded as receivables or payables and as Operating revenues or Fuel, 
purchased and net interchange power on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.  Regulatory assets/liabilities are 
established with no impact to Net income.  
 
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments    
Interest Rate Risk Management:   To manage the interest rate risk characteristics of NU parent's fixed rate long-term debt, NU parent 
has a fixed to floating interest rate swap on its $263 million, 7.25 percent fixed rate senior notes maturing on April 1, 2012.  This interest 
rate swap qualifies and was designated as a fair value hedge and requires semi-annual cash settlements.  The changes in fair value of 
the swap and the interest component of the hedged long-term debt instrument are recorded in Interest expense on the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income.  There was no ineffectiveness recorded for the year ended December 31, 2009.  The cumulative 
changes in fair values of the swap and the Long-term debt are recorded as a Derivative asset/liability and an adjustment to Long-term 
debt.  Interest receivable is recorded as a reduction of Interest expense and is included in Prepayments and other.    
 
 
 

FS-56  
 

   

      

   Amount of Gain/(Loss)  
Recognized on  

Derivative Instrument  
Derivatives Not Designated  

as Hedging Instruments     
Location of Gain or Loss  
Recognized on Derivative  

   For the Year Ended  
December 31, 2009  

NU Enterprises:           ( Millions of Dollars)  

Energy sales contract and energy price  
  risk management     

Fuel, purchased and net interchange  
 power  

   
$   6.2  

Regulated Companies:              
CL&P energy and capacity  
  contracts required by regulation     

 
Regulatory assets/liabilities  

   
(99.9) 

Commodity price and supply risk  
management:        

   
  

      CL&P     Regulatory assets/liabilities     (7.8) 
     PSNH     Regulatory assets/liabilities     (62.6) 
     Yankee Gas     Regulatory assets/liabilities     (2.8) 
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For the year ended December 31, 2009, the realized and unrealized gains/(losses) related to changes in fair value of the swap and 
Long-term debt as well as pre-tax Interest expense, recorded in Net income, were as follows:  
 

 
There were no cash flow hedges outstanding as of or during the year ended December 31, 2009 and no ineffectiveness was recorded 
during this period.  From time to time, NU, including CL&P, PSNH and WMECO, enters into forward starting interest rate swap 
agreements on proposed debt issuances that qualify and are designated as cash flow hedges.  Cash flow hedges are recorded at fair 
value, and the changes in the fair value of the effective portion of those contracts are recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive 
income/(loss).  Cash flow hedges impact Net income when hedge ineffectiveness is measured and recorded, when the forecasted 
transaction being hedged is improbable of occurring or when the transaction is settled.  When a cash flow hedge is terminated, the 
settlement amount is recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) and is amortized into Net income over the term of 
the underlying debt instrument.    
 
Pre-tax gains/(losses) amortized from Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) into Interest expense on the accompanying 
consolidated statement of income were as follows:  
 

 
For further information, see Note 14, "Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)," to the consolidated financial statements.  
 
Credit Risk  
Certain derivative contracts that are accounted for at fair value, including PSNH's electricity procurement contracts, CL&P's bilateral 
agreements and NU Enterprises' electricity sourcing contracts, contain credit risk contingent features.  These features require these 
companies or, in NU Enterprises' case, NU parent to maintain investment grade credit ratings from the major rating agencies and to 
post cash or standby LOCs as collateral for contracts in a net liability position over specified credit limits.  NU parent provides standby 
LOCs under its revolving credit agreement for NU subsidiaries to post with counterparties.  The following summarizes the fair value of 
derivative contracts that are in a liability position and subject to credit risk contingent features and the fair value of cash collateral and 
standby LOCs posted with counterparties as of December 31, 2009:  
 

 
Additional collateral is required to be posted by NU Enterprises, CL&P or PSNH, respectively, if NU parent's, CL&P's or PSNH's 
respective unsecured debt credit ratings are downgraded below investment grade.  As of December 31, 2009, no additional cash 
collateral would be required to be posted if credit ratings were downgraded below investment grade.   However, if PSNH's or NU 
parent's senior unsecured debt were downgraded to below investment grade, additional standby LOCs in the amount of $1.8 million 
and $17.8 million would be required to be posted on derivative contracts for PSNH and Select Energy, respectively.  
 
For further information, see Note 1P, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Special Deposits and Counterparty Deposits," to 
the consolidated financial statements.      
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     For the Year Ended December 31, 2009  

(Millions of Dollars)    Swap     Hedged Debt  

Income Statement Classification             
Changes in fair value    $  1.6     $  (1.6) 
Interest recorded in Net income       -        9.1  

 
(Millions of Dollars)  

For the Year Ended  
December 31, 2009  

CL&P  $  (0.7) 
PSNH     (0.2) 
WMECO     0.1  
Yankee Gas     (0.1) 
NU Parent     0.5  
NU  $  (0.4) 

 
 
 
 
(Millions of Dollars)    

Fair Value  
Subject  

to Credit Risk  
Contingent  

Features     

Cash  
Collateral  

Posted     

Standby  
LOCs  

Posted  
PSNH    $  (26.4)    $  -     $  25.0  
NU Enterprises       (20.0)       2.1        -  
NU    $  (46.4)    $  2.1     $  25.0  
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